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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

AeroVironment, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands except share and per share data)
 

January 25,
2014

 

April 30,
2013

(Unaudited)
  

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 92,749 $ 75,332
Short-term investments 74,830 73,241
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,108 at January 25, 2014 and $936 at

April 30, 2013 42,617 19,770
Unbilled receivables and retentions 8,636 11,304
Inventories, net 55,441 62,561
Income tax receivable 5,852 11,777
Deferred income taxes 5,499 5,166
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,755 4,303

Total current assets 289,379 263,454
Long-term investments 45,877 68,916
Property and equipment, net 24,492 24,429
Deferred income taxes 5,548 5,606
Other assets 1,585 1,060
Total assets $ 366,881 $ 363,465
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 15,135 $ 16,144
Wages and related accruals 10,718 12,116
Customer advances 3,642 7,519
Other current liabilities 6,486 6,408

Total current liabilities 35,981 42,187
Deferred rent 1,031 771
Liability for uncertain tax positions 5,211 5,321
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value:
Authorized shares — 10,000,000; none issued or outstanding — —

Common stock, $0.0001 par value:
Authorized shares — 100,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares — 22,765,820 at January 25, 2014 and 22,614,315 at April 30, 2013 2 2

Additional paid-in capital 134,251 130,527
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (618) (705)
Retained earnings 191,023 185,362

Total stockholders’ equity 324,658 315,186
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 366,881 $ 363,465

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income (Unaudited)
(In thousands except share and per share data)

 
Three Months Ended

 

Nine Months Ended
January 25, January 26,

 

January 25,
 

January 26,
2014 2013

 

2014
 

2013
          
Revenue:

Product sales $ 57,041 $ 23,496 $ 135,752 $ 104,601
Contract services 12,180 23,591 42,453 81,441

69,221 47,087 178,205 186,042
Cost of sales:

Product sales 33,193 14,281 85,891 63,055
Contract services 8,976 13,133 28,839 48,173

42,169 27,414 114,730 111,228
Gross margin 27,052 19,673 63,475 74,814
Selling, general and administrative 13,168 10,433 38,711 37,230
Research and development 5,241 10,306 19,292 27,828
Income (loss) from operations 8,643 (1,066) 5,472 9,756
Other income (expense):

Interest income 197 164 597 498
Other income (expense) 4,675 49 (1,026) 49

Income (loss) before income taxes 13,515 (853) 5,043 10,303
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 2,299 (4,722) (618) (918)
Net income $ 11,216 $ 3,869 $ 5,661 $ 11,221
Earnings per share data:

Basic $ 0.50 $ 0.17 $ 0.25 $ 0.51
Diluted $ 0.49 $ 0.17 $ 0.25 $ 0.50

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 22,321,368 22,142,917 22,278,225 22,035,007
Diluted 22,883,583 22,408,377 22,722,795 22,375,126

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 

Three Months Ended
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25, January 26,

 

January 25,
 

January 26,
2014 2013

 

2014
 

2013
          
Net income $ 11,216 $ 3,869 $ 5,661 $ 11,221
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gain on investments, net of tax 58 15 87 42
Total comprehensive income $ 11,274 $ 3,884 $ 5,748 $ 11,263

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)

(In thousands)
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25,

2014
 

January 26,
2013

Operating activities
Net income $ 5,661 $ 11,221
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 6,799 8,340
Provision for doubtful accounts 269 338
Deferred income taxes (333) (407)
Stock-based compensation 2,687 2,629
Change in fair value of conversion feature of convertible bonds 1,032 —
Unrealized foreign currency gain — (53)
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 304 1,536
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (23,116) 24,479
Unbilled receivables and retentions 2,668 11,625
Inventories 7,120 (20,058)
Income tax receivable 5,925 (8,349)
Other assets 662 (282)
Accounts payable (1,009) (4,436)
Other liabilities (5,197) (21,518)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,472 5,065
Investing activities
Acquisitions of property and equipment (6,751) (6,528)
Acquisitions of distribution and licensing rights (750) (850)
Investment in CybAero AB convertible notes — (3,037)
Net redemptions of held-to-maturity investments 20,388 4,690
Net sales of available-for-sale investments 175 250
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 13,062 (5,475)
Financing activities
Exercise of stock options 883 165
Net cash provided by financing activities 883 165
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 17,417 (245)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 75,332 64,220
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 92,749 $ 63,975
      
Supplemental disclosure:
Unrealized gain on long-term investments recorded in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes of

$57 and $28, respectively $ 87 $ 42
Reclassification from share-based liability compensation to equity $ — $ 401

 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (unaudited).
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
1. Organization and Significant Accounting Policies
 
Organization
 
AeroVironment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), is engaged in the design, development, production, support and operation of unmanned
aircraft systems and efficient energy systems for various industries and governmental agencies.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States for interim financial information and with the instructions of Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for complete financial statements. In the opinion
of management, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation with respect to the interim financial
statements have been included. The results of operations for the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014 are not necessarily indicative of the results for
the full year ending April 30, 2014. For further information, refer to the consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto for the year ended April 30,
2013, included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions, including estimates of anticipated contract costs and revenue utilized in the revenue recognition process, that affect the reported
amounts in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 
The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the assets, liabilities and operating results of wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
 
Segments
 
The Company’s products are sold and divided among two reportable segments to reflect the Company’s strategic goals. Operating segments are defined as
components of an enterprise from which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company’s CODM is the Chief Executive Officer, who reviews the
revenue and gross margin results for each of these segments in order to make resource allocation decisions, including the focus of research and development
(“R&D”) activities and performance assessment. The Company’s reportable segments are business units that offer different products and services and are
managed separately.
 
Investments
 
The Company’s investments are accounted for as held-to-maturity and available-for-sale and reported at amortized cost and fair value, respectively.
 
Fair Values of Financial Instruments
 
Fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, unbilled receivables, retentions and accounts payable approximate cost due to the short period
of time to maturity.
 
Government Contracts
 
Payments to the Company on government cost reimbursable contracts are based on provisional, or estimated indirect rates, which are subject to an annual
audit by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (“DCAA”). The cost audits result in the negotiation and determination of the final indirect cost rates that the
Company may use for the period(s) audited. The final rates, if different from the provisional billing rates, may create an additional receivable or liability for
the Company.
 
For example, during the course of its audits, the DCAA may question the Company’s incurred project costs, and if the DCAA believes the Company has
accounted for such costs in a manner inconsistent with the requirements under Federal Acquisition Regulations, the DCAA auditor may recommend to the
Company’s administrative contracting officer to disallow such costs. The Company can provide no assurance that the DCAA or other government audits will
not result in material disallowances for incurred costs in the future.
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
Earnings Per Share
 
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, excluding shares of unvested restricted stock. The
dilutive effect of potential common shares outstanding is included in diluted earnings per share and excludes any anti-dilutive effects of options, shares of
unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units.
 
The reconciliation of basic to diluted shares is as follows:
 

Three Months Ended
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25,

2014
 

January 26,
2013

 

January 25,
2014

 

January 26,
2013

Denominator for basic earnings per share:
Weighted average common shares outstanding,

excluding unvested restricted stock 22,321,368 22,142,917 22,278,225 22,035,007
Dilutive effect of employee stock options, unvested restricted

stock and restricted stock units 562,215 265,460 444,570 340,119
Denominator for diluted earnings per share 22,883,583 22,408,377 22,722,795 22,375,126

 
During the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013, certain shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of stock options, shares of
unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because their inclusion would have
been anti-dilutive. The number of shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of stock options, shares of unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units
that met this anti-dilutive criterion for the three months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013 was approximately 24,000 and 6,000, respectively.
The number of shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of stock options, shares of unvested restricted stock and restricted stock units that met this anti-
dilutive criterion for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013 was approximately 56,000 and 4,000, respectively.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
 
On May 1, 2013, the Company adopted changes in accordance with guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), which requires
additional disclosures for the reclassification of significant amounts from accumulated comprehensive income to net income. This guidance requires that
certain significant amounts be presented either on the face of the consolidated statements of income or in a single note. For other amounts, the Company is
required to cross-reference disclosures that provide additional detail about such amounts.  The adoption of these changes did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance regarding the classification of an unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction of a deferred tax asset when a net operating
loss carry-forward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carry-forward exists.  This guidance became effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2013. Early adoption and retrospective application is permitted. The adoption of this change is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
 
2. Investments
 
Investments consist of the following (in thousands):
 

January 25,
2014

 

April 30,
2013

Short-term investments:
Held-to-maturity securities:

Municipal securities $ 74,830 $ 73,241
Total short-term investments $ 74,830 $ 73,241

Long-term investments:
Held-to-maturity securities:

Municipal securities $ 27,551 $ 54,158
Certificates of deposit 4,632 —

Total held-to-maturity investments 32,183 54,158
Available-for-sale securities:

Auction rate securities 5,483 5,687
Convertible bonds 8,211 9,071

Total available-for-sale investments 13,694 14,758

Total long-term investments $ 45,877 $ 68,916
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
Held-To-Maturity Securities
 

At January 25, 2014 and April 30, 2013, the balance of held-to-maturity securities consisted of state and local government municipal securities and
certificates of deposit. Interest earned from these investments is recorded in interest income.
 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the held-to-maturity investments as of January 25, 2014, were
as follows (in thousands):
 

  

Gross
 

Gross
 

 

Amortized
 

Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

 

Cost
 

Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Municipal securities $ 102,381 $ 101 $ (2) $ 102,480
Certificates of deposit 4,632 — — 4,632
Total held-to-maturity investments $ 107,013 $ 101 $ (2) $ 107,112
 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the held-to-maturity investments as of April 30, 2013, were as
follows (in thousands):
 

  

Gross
 

Gross
 

 

Amortized
 

Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

 

Cost
 

Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Municipal securities $ 127,399 $ 49 $ (23) $ 127,425
Total held-to-maturity investments $ 127,399 $ 49 $ (23) $ 127,425
 
The amortized cost and fair value of the held-to-maturity securities by contractual maturity at January 25, 2014, were as follows (in thousands):
 

Cost
 

Fair Value
      
Due within one year $ 74,830 $ 74,892
Due after one year through three years 32,183 32,220
Total $ 107,013 $ 107,112

 
Available-For-Sale Securities
 

Auction Rate Securities
 

As of January 25, 2014, the entire balance of available-for-sale auction rate securities consisted of three investment grade auction rate municipal bonds with
maturities ranging from 6 to 21 years. These investments have characteristics similar to short-term investments, because at pre-determined intervals, generally
ranging from 30 to 35 days, there is a new auction process at which the interest rates for these securities are reset to current interest rates. At the end of such
period, the Company chooses to roll-over its holdings or redeem the investments for cash. A market maker facilitates the redemption of the securities and the
underlying issuers are not required to redeem the investment within 365 days. Interest earned from these investments is recorded in interest income.
 
During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended April 30, 2008, the Company began experiencing failed auctions on some of its auction rate securities. A
failed auction occurs when a buyer for the securities cannot be obtained and the market maker does not buy the security for its own account. The Company
continues to earn interest on the investments that failed to settle at auction, at the maximum contractual rate until the next auction occurs. In the event the
Company needs to access funds invested in these auction rate securities, the Company may not be able to liquidate these securities at the fair value recorded
on January 25, 2014 until a future auction of these securities is successful or a buyer is found outside of the auction process.
 
As a result of the failed auctions, the fair values of these securities are estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow analysis as of January 25, 2014. The analysis
considers, among other items, the collateralization underlying the security investments, the creditworthiness of the counterparty, the timing of expected
future cash flows, and the estimated date upon which the security is expected to have a successful auction.

 
9



Table of Contents
 

AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
Based on the Company’s ability to access its cash and cash equivalents, expected operating cash flows, and other sources of cash, the Company does not
anticipate the current lack of liquidity of these investments will affect its ability to operate the business in the ordinary course. The Company believes the
current lack of liquidity of these investments is temporary and expects that the securities will be redeemed or refinanced at some point in the future. The
Company will continue to monitor the value of its auction rate securities at each reporting period for a possible impairment if a further decline in fair value
occurs. The auction rate securities have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months. The Company has the ability and the intent to hold
these investments until a recovery of fair value, which may be at maturity and as of January 25, 2014, the Company did not consider these investments to be
other-than-temporarily impaired.

 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the available-for-sale investments as of January 25, 2014, were
as follows (in thousands):
 

  

Gross
 

Gross
 

 

Amortized
 

Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

 

Cost
 

Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Auction rate securities $ 6,575 $ — $ (1,092) $ 5,483
Total available-for-sale investments $ 6,575 $ — $ (1,092) $ 5,483
 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the available-for-sale investments as of April 30, 2013, were as
follows (in thousands):
 

  

Gross
 

Gross
 

 

Amortized
 

Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

 

Cost
 

Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Auction rate securities $ 6,750 $ — $ (1,063) $ 5,687
Total available-for-sale investments $ 6,750 $ — $ (1,063) $ 5,687
 
The amortized cost and fair value of the auction rate securities by contractual maturity at January 25, 2014, were as follows (in thousands):
 

Cost
 

Fair Value
      
Due after five through 10 years $ 1,300 $ 1,207
Due after 10 years 5,275 4,276
Total $ 6,575 $ 5,483
 

Convertible Bonds
 

As of January 25, 2014, the entire balance of available-for-sale convertible bonds consisted of two convertible bonds. The two convertible bonds were issued
by CybAero AB (“CybAero”), a publicly traded company in Sweden that develops and manufactures unmanned aerial vehicles. Each bond is in the amount
of 10 million Swedish Kronor (“SEK”) and is convertible into 1 million CybAero shares at the conversion price of 10 SEK per share. The maturity date of
each of the bonds is November 30, 2017 and each bond bears an annual interest rate of 5%.
 
The Company can exercise its conversion right at any time through October 31, 2017.  CybAero can prepay the bonds with three months notice to the
Company and the Company may exercise its conversion rights during such three-month period. If certain conditions are satisfied after November 30, 2015,
CybAero can require the Company to convert the two bonds in their entirety into CybAero shares.
 
The convertible bonds each contain an embedded conversion feature which is bifurcated from the bond. The changes in the fair value of the embedded
conversion feature are recorded in other income (expense) in the statement of income. Unrealized gains and losses associated with the bonds are excluded
from earnings and reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of deferred income taxes.
 
On May 14, 2013, CybAero effected a reverse stock split whereby every ten shares of CybAero were converted into one share. All amounts discussed as of
January 25, 2014 reflect this reverse stock split.
 
On February 12, 2014, CybAero adjusted the conversion price of each convertible bond, pursuant to anti-dilution provisions in the convertible bonds
agreement, from 10 SEK to 9.41 SEK and increased the number of shares per bond from 1,000,000 to 1,062,699.  The adjusted conversion price and increased
share count was effective February 12, 2014 and the impact of the change on fair value of the convertible bonds will be reflected in the fourth quarter and
year ending April 30, 2014.
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
On February 28, 2014, the Company exercised its conversion right and notified CybAero that it will convert one convertible bond into CybAero common
shares.  The convertible bond is in the amount of 10 million SEK and is being converted into 1,062,699 common shares of CybAero at the conversion price
of 9.41 SEK. CybAero has 30 days to register and deliver the common shares to the Company.  The conversion will be reflected in the fourth quarter and year
ending April 30, 2014.

 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the available-for-sale convertible bonds as of January 25,
2014, were as follows (in thousands):
 

  

Gross
 

Gross
 

 

Amortized
 

Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

 

Cost
 

Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Convertible bonds $ 3,037 $ 5,174 $ — $ 8,211
Total available-for-sale investments $ 3,037 $ 5,174 $ — $ 8,211
 
The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses, and estimated fair value of the available-for-sale convertible bonds as of April 30, 2013,
were as follows (in thousands):
 

Gross
 

Gross
 

Amortized Unrealized
 

Unrealized
 

Cost Gains
 

Losses
 

Fair Value
Convertible bonds $ 3,037 $ 6,173 $ (139) $ 9,071
Total available-for-sale investments $ 3,037 $ 6,173 $ (139) $ 9,071
 
The amortized cost and fair value of the convertible bonds by contractual maturity at January 25, 2014, were as follows (in thousands):
 

Cost
 

Fair Value
Due within five years $ 3,037 $ 8,211
Total $ 3,037 $ 8,211
 
3. Fair Value Measurements
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the
asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy contains three levels as follows:
 
·                 Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation based upon quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that are accessible as of the

measurement date.
 
·             Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation include quoted prices in either markets that are not active, or in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, inputs

other than quoted prices that are observable, and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data.
 
·                 Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
 
The Company’s financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at January 25, 2014, were as follows (in thousands):
 

 

Fair Value Measurement Using

Description
 

Quoted prices in
active markets for

identical assets
(Level 1)

 

Significant
other

observable
inputs

(Level 2)
 

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)

 

Total
Auction rate securities $ — $ — $ 5,483 $ 5,483
Convertible bonds — 5,140 3,071 8,211
Total $ — $ 5,140 $ 8,554 $ 13,694
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
Due to the auction failures of the Company’s auction rate securities that began in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, there are still no quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets as of January 25, 2014.  Therefore, the Company has classified its auction rate securities as Level 3 financial assets.  The following
table provides a reconciliation between the beginning and ending balances of items measured at fair value on a recurring basis in the table above that used
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in thousands):
 

Description
 

Fair Value
Measurements Using

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

(Level 3)
Balance at April 30, 2013 $ 8,585
Transfers to Level 3 —
Total gains (realized or unrealized)

Included in earnings —
Included in other comprehensive income 144

Purchases, issuances and settlements, net (175)
Balance at January 25, 2014 $ 8,554
The amount of total gains or (losses) for the period included in earnings (or change in net assets) attributable to the change

in unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at January 25, 2014 $ —
 

The auction rate securities are valued using a discounted cash flow model.  The analysis considers, among other items, the collateralization underlying the
security investments, the creditworthiness of the counterparty, the timing of expected future cash flows, and the estimated date upon which the security is
expected to have a successful auction.  As of January 25, 2014, the inputs used in the Company’s discounted cash flow analysis included current coupon
rates ranging from 0.1% to 0.3%, estimated redemption periods of 6 to 21 years and discount rates of 7.4% to 19.6%. The discount rates were based on market
rates for municipal bond securities, as adjusted for a risk premium to reflect the lack of liquidity of these investments.
 
The bond components of the convertible bonds are considered level 3 assets and are valued using a discounted cash flow model. The analysis considers,
among other items, the creditworthiness of the counterparty, the timing of expected future cash flows, and the maturity of the bonds. As of January 25, 2014,
the inputs used in the Company’s discounted cash flow analysis included a coupon rate of 5.0%, estimated redemption period of approximately four years
and a discount rate of 5.4%.
 
The embedded conversion features of the convertible bonds are considered level 2 assets and are valued using a binomial option pricing model, which uses
inputs such as CybAero’s stock price, conversion price, volatility and risk-free interest rate.
 
4. Inventories, net
 
Inventories consist of the following (in thousands):
 

January 25,
2014

 

April 30,
2013

Raw materials $ 15,023 $ 12,845
Work in process 7,961 16,745
Finished goods 37,292 36,842
Inventories, gross 60,276 66,432
Reserve for inventory obsolescence (4,835) (3,871)
Inventories, net $ 55,441 $ 62,561

 
5. Warranty Reserves
 
The Company accrues an estimate of its exposure to warranty claims based upon both current and historical product sales data and warranty costs incurred. 
The warranty reserve is included in other current liabilities. The related expense is included in cost of sales.  Warranty reserve activity is summarized as
follows for the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013 (in thousands):
 

Three Months Ended
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25, January 26,

 

January 25,
 

January 26,
2014 2013

 

2014
 

2013
          
Beginning balance $ 1,640 $ 1,259 $ 1,514 $ 2,872
Warranty expense 534 500 1,352 1,708
Warranty claims settled (317) (390) (1,009) (3,211)
Ending balance $ 1,857 $ 1,369 $ 1,857 $ 1,369
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AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
6. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are as follows (in thousands):
 

 

Available-for-sale
securities

 

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss

Balance as of April 30, 2013 $ (705) $ (705)
Unrealized income 144 144
Income taxes (57) (57)

Balance as of January 25, 2014 $ (618) $ (618)
 
7. Customer-Funded Research & Development
 
Customer-funded R&D costs are incurred pursuant to contracts (revenue arrangements) to perform R&D activities according to customer specifications. These
costs are direct contract costs and are expensed to cost of sales when the corresponding revenue is recognized, which is generally as the R&D services are
performed. Revenue from customer-funded R&D was approximately $5.0 million and $21.9 million for the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014,
respectively. Revenue from customer-funded R&D was approximately $11.1 million and $28.1 million for the three and nine months ended January 26,
2013, respectively.
 
8. Income Taxes
 
For the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014, the Company recorded a provision (benefit) for income taxes of $2.3 million and $(0.6) million,
respectively, yielding an effective tax rate of 17.0% and (12.3)%, respectively.  For the three and nine months ended January 26, 2013, the Company
recorded a benefit for income taxes of $4.7 million and $0.9 million, respectively, yielding an effective tax rate of 553.6% and (8.9)%, respectively. The
variance from statutory tax rates for the three and nine months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013 was primarily due to federal research and
development tax credits.
 
9. Segment Data
 
The Company’s product segments are as follows:
 

·                                           Unmanned Aircraft Systems (“UAS”) — The UAS segment focuses primarily on the design, development, production, support and operation of
innovative UAS and tactical missile systems that provide situational awareness, multi-band communications, force protection and other mission
effects to increase the security and effectiveness of the operations of the Company’s customers.

 
·                                           Efficient Energy Systems (“EES”) — The EES segment focuses primarily on the design, development, production, marketing, support and

operation of innovative efficient electric energy systems that address the growing demand for electric transportation solutions.
 

13



Table of Contents
 

AeroVironment, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)

 
The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1, “Organization and Significant Accounting Policies.” The operating
segments do not make sales to each other. Depreciation and amortization related to the manufacturing of goods is included in gross margin for the segments.
The Company does not discretely allocate assets to its operating segments, nor does the CODM evaluate operating segments using discrete asset information.
Consequently, the Company operates its financial systems as a single segment for accounting and control purposes, maintains a single indirect rate structure
across all segments, has no inter-segment sales or corporate elimination transactions, and maintains limited financial statement information by segment. The
segment results are as follows (in thousands):
 

Three Months Ended
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25, January 26,

 

January 25,
 

January 26,
2014 2013

 

2014
 

2013
Revenue:

UAS $ 57,491 $ 37,665 $ 148,781 $ 151,904
EES 11,730 9,422 29,424 34,138

Total 69,221 47,087 178,205 186,042
Cost of sales:

UAS 33,565 20,585 93,444 88,620
EES 8,604 6,829 21,286 22,608

Total 42,169 27,414 114,730 111,228
Gross margin:

UAS 23,926 17,080 55,337 63,284
EES 3,126 2,593 8,138 11,530

Total 27,052 19,673 63,475 74,814
Selling, general and administrative 13,168 10,433 38,711 37,230
Research and development 5,241 10,306 19,292 27,828
Income (loss) from operations 8,643 (1,066) 5,472 9,756
Other income (expense):

Interest income 197 164 597 498
Other income (expense) 4,675 49 (1,026) 49

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 13,515 $ (853) $ 5,043 $ 10,303
 

14



Table of Contents
 

ITEM 2.                MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
This section and other parts of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. In some cases,
forward-looking statements can be identified by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,”
“potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements are based on current expectations,
estimates and projections about our industry, our management’s beliefs and assumptions made by our management. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance and our actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that
might cause such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Part II, Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”
 
Unless required by law, we expressly disclaim any obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as result of new information, future
events or otherwise.
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations discusses our consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. When we prepare these consolidated financial statements, we are
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Some of our accounting policies require
that we make subjective judgments, including estimates that involve matters that are inherently uncertain. Our most critical estimates include those related to
revenue recognition, inventories and reserves for excess and obsolescence, self-insured liabilities, accounting for stock-based awards, and income taxes. We
base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for our judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Our actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
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There have been no material changes made to the critical accounting estimates during the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements from
those disclosed in the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2013.
 
Fiscal Periods
 
Due to our fixed year end date of April 30, our first and fourth quarters each consist of approximately 13 weeks. The second and third quarters each consist of
exactly 13 weeks. Our first three quarters end on a Saturday.  Our 2014 fiscal year ends on April 30, 2014 and our fiscal quarters end on July 27, 2013,
October 26, 2013 and January 25, 2014.
 
Results of Operations
 
Our operating segments are Unmanned Aircraft Systems, or UAS, and Efficient Energy Systems, or EES. The accounting policies for each of these segments
are the same. In addition, a significant portion of our research and development, or R&D, selling, general and administrative, or SG&A, and general overhead
resources are shared across our segments.
 
The following table sets forth our revenue and gross margin generated by each operating segment for the periods indicated (in thousands):
 

Three Months Ended January 25, 2014 Compared to Three Months Ended January 26, 2013
 

Three Months Ended
January 25,

 

January 26,
2014

 

2013
Revenue:

UAS $ 57,491 $ 37,665
EES 11,730 9,422

Total 69,221 47,087
Cost of sales:

UAS 33,565 20,585
EES 8,604 6,829

Total 42,169 27,414
Gross margin:

UAS 23,926 17,080
EES 3,126 2,593

Total 27,052 19,673
Selling, general and administrative 13,168 10,433
Research and development 5,241 10,306
Income (loss) from operations 8,643 (1,066)
Other income:

Interest income 197 164
Other income 4,675 49

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 13,515 $ (853)
 

Revenue. Revenue for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $69.2 million, compared to $47.1 million for the three months ended January 26, 2013,
representing an increase of $22.1 million, or 47%.  UAS revenue increased by $19.8 million, or 53%, to $57.5 million for the three months ended January 25,
2014, primarily due to higher product deliveries of $31.0 million, offset by lower customer-funded R&D revenue of $5.9 million and lower service revenue of
$5.2 million. The increase in product deliveries was primarily due to higher deliveries of Raven and Puma systems and spares.  The decrease in customer-
funded R&D revenue was primarily due to the transition of Switchblade from a developmental program into low-rate production and no revenue associated
with the Global Observer cost reimbursements.  The decrease in service revenue was primarily due to reduced logistic services for small UAS.  EES revenue
increased by $2.3 million, or 24%, to $11.7 million for the three months ended January 25, 2014.  The increase in EES revenue was primarily due to higher
deliveries of passenger electric vehicle charging systems and industrial fast charge systems, offset by lower deliveries of electric vehicle test systems.
 
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $42.2 million, compared to $27.4 million for the three months ended January 26,
2013, representing an increase of $14.8 million, or 54%. As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales increased from 58% to 61%. UAS cost of sales increased
$13.0 million for the three months ended January 25, 2014 due to higher sales volume.
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As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales for UAS increased from 55% to 58% due to lower absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support
costs.  EES cost of sales increased $1.8 million, or 26%, to $8.6 million for the three months ended January 25, 2014 due to higher sales volume.  As a
percentage of revenue, cost of sales for EES increased from 72% to 73%.
 
Gross Margin. Gross margin for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $27.1 million, compared to $19.7 million for the three months ended
January 26, 2013, representing an increase of $7.4 million, or 38%. UAS gross margin increased $6.8 million, or 40%, to $23.9 million for the three months
ended January 25, 2014, primarily due to higher sales volume.  As a percentage of revenue, gross margin for UAS decreased from 45% to 42%, due to lower
absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support costs.  In addition, the three months ended January 26, 2013 included reimbursement costs
for the Global Observer Joint Capability Technology Demonstration contract.  EES gross margin increased $0.5 million, or 21%, to $3.1 million for the three
months ended January 25, 2014, primarily due to higher sales volume.  As a percentage of revenue, EES gross margin decreased from 28% to 27%.
 
Selling, General and Administrative.  SG&A expense for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $13.2 million, or 19% of revenue, compared to SG&A
expense of $10.4 million, or 22% of revenue, for the three months ended January 26, 2013. SG&A expense for the three months ended January 26, 2013
included a reduction of accrued incentive compensation as a result of not achieving anticipated financial performance.
 
Research and Development. R&D expense for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $5.2 million, or 8% of revenue, compared to R&D expense of
$10.3 million, or 22% of revenue, for the three months ended January 26, 2013.  The decrease was primarily due to lower spending on R&D initiatives.
 
Interest Income. Interest income was $0.2 million for both the three months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013.
 
Other Income.  Other income for the three months ended January 25, 2014 was $4.7 million, compared to $0 for the three months ended January 26, 2013.
The increase was primarily due to a $4.7 million increase in fair value of the embedded conversion feature of our convertible bonds investment.
 
Income Tax Expense. Our effective tax rate was 17.0% for the three months ended January 25, 2014, compared to a tax benefit rate of 553.6% for the three
months ended January 26, 2013.  The increase in tax expense was primarily due to higher income before income taxes for the three months ended January 25,
2014 compared to a loss before income taxes for the three months ended January 26, 2013.
 

Nine Months Ended January 25, 2014 Compared to Nine Months Ended January 26, 2013
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25,

 

January 26,
2014

 

2013
Revenue:

UAS $ 148,781 $ 151,904
EES 29,424 34,138

Total 178,205 186,042
Cost of sales:

UAS 93,444 88,620
EES 21,286 22,608

Total 114,730 111,228
Gross margin:

UAS 55,337 63,284
EES 8,138 11,530

Total 63,475 74,814
Selling, general and administrative 38,711 37,230
Research and development 19,292 27,828
Income from operations 5,472 9,756
Other income (expense):

Interest income 597 498
Other (expense) income (1,026) 49

Income before income taxes $ 5,043 $ 10,303
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Revenue. Revenue for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $178.2 million, compared to $186.0 million for the nine months ended January 26, 2013,
representing a decrease of $7.8 million, or 4%.  UAS revenue decreased by $3.1 million, or 2%, to $148.8 million for the nine months ended January 25,
2014, primarily due to lower service revenue of $31.2 million and lower customer-funded R&D revenue of $6.5 million, offset by higher product deliveries of
$34.6 million. The decrease in service revenue was primarily due to reduced logistic services for our small UAS systems.  The decrease in customer-funded
R&D revenue was primarily due to the transition of Switchblade from a developmental program into low-rate production.  The increase in product deliveries
was primarily due to higher deliveries of our Puma AE spares.  EES revenue decreased by $4.7 million, or 14%, to $29.4 million for the nine months ended
January 25, 2014.  The decrease in EES revenue was primarily due to lower deliveries of electric vehicle test systems and industrial fast charge systems, offset
by higher deliveries of passenger electric vehicle charging systems.
 
Cost of Sales. Cost of sales for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $114.7 million, compared to $111.2 million for the nine months ended
January 26, 2013, representing an increase of $3.5 million, or 3%. As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales increased from 60% to 64%. UAS cost of sales
increased $4.8 million, or 5%, to $93.4 million for the nine months ended January 25, 2014.  As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales for UAS increased from
58% to 63% due to lower absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support costs, which included severance costs associated with our
organizational realignment.  EES cost of sales decreased $1.3 million, or 6%, to $21.3 million for the nine months ended January 25, 2014, primarily due to
lower sales volume.  As a percentage of revenue, cost of sales for EES increased from 66% to 72%, primarily due to lower absorption of manufacturing and
engineering overhead support costs, which included severance costs associated with our organizational realignment.
 
Gross Margin. Gross margin for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $63.5 million, compared to $74.8 million for the nine months ended
January 26, 2013, representing a decrease of $11.3 million, or 15%. UAS gross margin decreased $7.9 million, or 13%, to $55.3 million for the nine months
ended January 25, 2014, primarily due to lower absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support costs, which included severance costs
associated with our organizational realignment.  As a percentage of revenue, gross margin for UAS decreased from 42% to 37%, primarily due to lower
absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support costs, which included severance costs associated with our organizational realignment.  EES
gross margin decreased $3.4 million, or 29%, to $8.1 million for the nine months ended January 25, 2014, primarily due to lower sales volume.  As a
percentage of revenue, EES gross margin decreased from 34% to 28%, primarily due to lower absorption of manufacturing and engineering overhead support
costs, which included severance costs associated with our organizational realignment.
 
Selling, General and Administrative.  SG&A expense for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $38.7 million, or 22% of revenue, compared to SG&A
expense of $37.2 million, or 20% of revenue, for the nine months ended January 26, 2013.
 
Research and Development. R&D expense for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $19.3 million, or 11% of revenue, compared to R&D expense of
$27.8 million, or 15% of revenue, for the nine months ended January 26, 2013.  The decrease was primarily due to lower spending on R&D initiatives.
 
Interest Income. Interest income was $0.6 million for the nine months ended January 25, 2014, compared to interest income of $0.5 million for the nine
months ended January 26, 2013.
 
Other Expense.  Other expense for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 was $1.0 million, compared to $0 for the nine months ended January 26, 2013.
The increase was primarily due to a $1.0 million reduction in fair value of the embedded conversion feature of the convertible bonds investment.
 
Income Tax Benefit. Our tax benefit rate was 12.3% for the nine months ended January 25, 2014, compared to our tax benefit rate of 8.9% for the nine
months ended January 26, 2013.
 
Backlog. We define funded backlog as unfilled firm orders for products and services for which funding currently is appropriated to us under the contract by
the customer. As of January 25, 2014 and April 30, 2013, our funded backlog was approximately $95.5 million and $59.4 million, respectively.
 
In addition to our funded backlog, we also had unfunded backlog of $23.6 million and $76.6 million as of January 25, 2014 and April 30, 2013,
respectively.  We define unfunded backlog as the total remaining potential order amounts under sole-source cost reimbursable and fixed price contracts with
multiple one-year options, and indefinite delivery indefinite quantity, or IDIQ, contracts. Unfunded backlog does not obligate the U.S. government to
purchase goods or services. There can be no assurance that unfunded backlog will result in any orders in any particular period, if at all. Management believes
that unfunded backlog does not provide a reliable measure of future estimated revenue under our contracts.
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Because of possible future changes in delivery schedules and/or cancellations of orders, backlog at any particular date is not necessarily representative of
actual sales to be expected for any succeeding period, and actual sales for the year may not meet or exceed the backlog represented. Our backlog is typically
subject to large variations from quarter to quarter as existing contracts expire or are renewed, or new contracts are awarded. A majority of our contracts,
specifically our IDIQ contracts, do not currently obligate the U.S. government to purchase any goods or services. Additionally, all U.S. government contracts
included in backlog, whether or not funded, may be terminated at the convenience of the U.S. government.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
We currently have no material cash commitments, except for normal recurring trade payables, accrued expenses and ongoing research and development costs,
all of which we anticipate funding through our existing working capital and funds provided by operating activities. The majority of our purchase obligations
are pursuant to funded contractual arrangements with our customers. In addition, we do not currently anticipate significant investment in property, plant and
equipment, and we believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents, cash provided by operating activities and other financing sources will be sufficient to
meet our anticipated working capital, capital expenditure and debt service requirements, if any, during the next twelve months. There can be no assurance,
however, that our business will continue to generate cash flow at current levels. Nevertheless, we anticipate that existing sources of liquidity and cash flows
from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our cash needs for the foreseeable future.
 
Our primary liquidity needs are for financing working capital, investing in capital expenditures, supporting product development efforts, introducing new
products and enhancing existing products and services, and marketing acceptance and adoption of our products and services. Our future capital requirements,
to a certain extent, are also subject to general conditions in or affecting the defense and electric vehicle industries and are subject to general economic,
political, financial, competitive, legislative and regulatory factors that are beyond our control. Moreover, to the extent that existing cash, cash equivalents,
cash from operations, and cash from short-term borrowing are insufficient to fund our future activities, we may need to raise additional funds through public
or private equity or debt financing. To the extent we require additional funding, we cannot be certain that such funding will be available to us on acceptable
terms, or at all.  Although we are currently not a party to any material agreement or letter of intent with respect to potential investment in, or acquisitions of,
businesses, services or technologies, we may enter into these types of arrangements in the future, which could also require us to seek additional equity or debt
financing.
 
Our working capital requirements vary by contract type. On cost-plus-fee programs, we typically bill our incurred costs and fees monthly as work progresses,
and therefore working capital investment is minimal. On fixed-price contracts, we typically are paid as we deliver products, and working capital is needed to
fund labor and expenses incurred during the lead time from contract award until contract deliveries begin.
 

Cash Flows
 

The following table provides our cash flow data for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 and January 26, 2013 (in thousands):
 

Nine Months Ended
January 25,

2014
 

January 26,
2013

(Unaudited)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 3,472 $ 5,065
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ 13,062 $ (5,475)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 883 $ 165
 
Cash Provided by Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended January 25, 2014 decreased by $1.6 million to
$3.5 million, compared to net cash provided by operating activities of $5.1 million for the nine months ended January 26, 2013. This decrease in net cash
provided by operating activities was primarily due to lower net income of $5.6 million, lower depreciation and amortization of $1.5 million, and lower tax
benefits from stock option exercises of $1.2 million, partially offset by lower working capital needs of $5.6 million and a $1.0 million reduction in fair value
of the embedded conversion feature of our convertible bonds investment.
 
Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities. Net cash provided by investing activities increased by $18.5 million to $13.1 million for the nine months
ended January 25, 2014, compared to net cash used in investing activities of $5.5 million for the nine months ended January 26, 2013. The increase in net
cash provided by investing activities was primarily due to higher net redemptions of investments of $15.6 million.
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Cash Provided by Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was $0.9 million for the nine months ended January 25, 2014, compared to
net cash provided by financing activities of $0.2 million for the nine months ended January 26, 2013.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
During the third quarter, there were no material changes in our off-balance sheet arrangements or contractual obligations and commercial commitments from
those disclosed in the Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2013.
 
Inflation
 
Our operations have not been, and we do not expect them to be, materially affected by inflation. Historically, we have been successful in adjusting prices to
our customers to reflect changes in our material and labor costs.
 
New Accounting Standards
 
Please refer to Note 1 “Organization and Significant Accounting Policies” to our unaudited consolidated financial statements in Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly
report for a discussion of new accounting pronouncements.
 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
In the ordinary course of business, we are exposed to various market risk factors, including fluctuations in interest rates, changes in general economic
conditions, domestic and foreign competition, and foreign currency exchange rates.
 
Interest Rate Risk
 
It is our policy not to enter into interest rate derivative financial instruments. We do not currently have any significant interest rate exposure.
 
Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk
 
Since a significant part of our sales and expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars, we have not experienced significant foreign exchange gains or losses to
date, and do not expect to incur significant foreign exchange gains or losses in the future. We occasionally engage in forward contracts in foreign currencies
to limit our exposure on non-U.S. dollar transactions.
 
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Controls and Procedures
 
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
 
In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
 
As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures.
 
Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective and were operating at a reasonable assurance level.
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Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting or in other factors identified in connection with the evaluation required by paragraph
(d) of Exchange Act Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 that occurred during the quarter ended January 25, 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. We are, however, subject to lawsuits from time to time in the ordinary course of business.
 
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 
There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed under Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended April 30, 2013.  Please refer to that section for disclosures regarding the risks and uncertainties related to our business.
 
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 
None.
 
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
 
None.
 
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 
None.
 
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
 
None.
 
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
 

Exhibit
Number Description

10.1 First Amendment to Lease Agreement (900 Enchanted Way, Simi Valley, CA 93065) dated as of December 1, 2013, by and between
the Company and Hillside III LLC, and related agreements

10.2 First Amendment to Lease Agreement (994 Flower Glen Street ,Simi Valley, CA 93065) dated as of December 1, 2013, by and
between the Company and Hillside II LLC, and related agreements

10.3 Lease Agreement (996 Flower Glen Street, Simi Valley, CA 93065) dated as of December 1, 2013, by and between the Company and
Hillside II LLC, and related agreements

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.

32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

 
Date: March 4, 2014 AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
   

By: /s/ Timothy E. Conver
Timothy E. Conver
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

   
/s/ Jikun Kim
Jikun Kim
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT
(900 Enchanted Way, Simi Valley, CA 93065)

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”), dated for reference purposes as of December 1, 2013, is entered into

by and between HILLSIDE III LLC, a California Limited Liability Company as Lessor, and AEROVIRONMENT, INC, a Delaware Corporation, as
Lessee with reference to the following:.
 

Recitals
 

A.                                    Lessor and Lessee have entered into that certain AIR Commercial Real Estate Association Standard Industrial/Commercial Single Tenant
Lease — Net, dated March 1, 2008, as addended (the “Lease”) for that certain real property commonly known as 900 Enchanted Way, Simi Valley, CA
93065, more particularly described therein.  Each initially capitalized term not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
the Lease.  Each sectional reference below shall mean and refer to the applicable paragraph of the Lease.

 
B.                                    Lessor and Lessee desire and intend to amend the Lease on the terms and conditions set forth hereinbelow.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and provisions contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby amend the Lease as follows:
 

1.  Term.  Paragraph 1.3 is hereby amended to provide that the Term of the Lease is extended for six and one-half (6.5) years, commencing on
December 1, 2013 and expiring on May 31, 2020 (the “Expiration Date”).

 
2.  Base Rent.  Lessee agrees to pay Base Rent for the Premises during the extended term of the Lease, in advance, at such places as may be

designated from time-to-time by Lessor, without deduction or offset, in the following amounts:
 

(i)                                     From DECEMBER 1, 2013 through NOVEMBER 30, 2015: monthly installments of $56,321.00, together with such
other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease;

 
(ii)                                From DECEMBER 1, 2015 through NOVEMBER 30, 2017: monthly installments of $58,856.00, together with such

other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease;
 
(iii)                            From DECEMBER 1, 2017 through NOVEMBER 30, 2019: monthly installments of $61,505.00, together with such

other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease; and
 
(iv)                             From DECEMBER 1, 2019 THROUGH MAY 31, 2020: monthly installments of $64,272.00,  together with such other

assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease.
 

3.  Base Rent Partial Abatement.  Provided Lessee shall not be in material default of the Lease, after any applicable notice and cure periods,
immediately prior to or during any Base Rent partial abatement period, as provided below, the Base Rent payable by Lessee to Lessor for the Premises, as
provided in Paragraph 2 of this Amendment above, shall be partially abated to the extent provided and during the periods provided in that certain Rental
Concession Agreeement attached hereto.

 



 
4.  Security Deposit.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that Lessor holds the sum of ZERO and no/100 ($0.00) Dollars as Security Deposit

previously received pursuant to Paragraph 5 of the Lease and Lessor shall have no liability to Lessee for the return of any Security Deposit to Lessee upon the
expiration or termination of the Lease.

 
5. Maintenance and Repairs.  Paragraph 7 is hereby amended to provide that Lessee shall be obligated to manage and contract directly for services

related to Lessee’s obligations to maintain the Premises, including, but not limited to, all utilities and janitorial service.  Lessor shall be responsible, at
Lessor’s sole cost and expense, for that portion of roof replacement and future roof repair cost which exceeds $1,000 per occurrence, per building. Lessee
shall be responsible, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, for the first $1,000 of roof replacement and future roof repair cost not payable by Lessor above.  A roof
assessment of the Premises shall be performed by a licensed roofing contractor.  All roofing replacement and/or repair work shall be performed to applicable
governmental code requirements, within one hundred and twenty (120) days of lease execution weather permitting.

 
6. Tax Protest.  During the lease term, Lessee shall be entitled, at its election, to file a protest with the Ventura County Tax Assessor’s Office to

reduce the real property taxes to reflect the current valuation of the Property.
 
7. Exterior Windows and Doors.  Prior to January 31st, 2014, subject to such extension of additional time as may be required due to weather, Lessor,

at Lessor’s sole cost and expense, shall repair and re-seal all exterior windows and doors of the Premises in a workman-like and professional manner, as may
be required.  Lessee shall maintain all exterior windows and doors of the Premises throughout Term of the Lease.

 
8. HVAC.  Lessor and Lessee agree that, within a commercially reasonable time, upon mutual agreement of Lessor and Lessee, the HVAC units of the

Premises that have exceeded their useful life and any other HVAC major components (such as compressors, fans, etc.) that fail, for reasons other than failure of
Lessee to maintain such HVAC major components, during the extended Term of the Lease (collectively, the “HVAC Work”) shall be repaired or replaced, as
may be required, subject to the cost allocation provided below.  Lessee shall not perform any of the HVAC Work without Lessor’s prior approval of the work
to be done and the estimated cost of such work  The cost of such HVAC Work shall be borne 50% by Lessor and 50% by Lessee and Lessee’s share of such
cost shall be payable by Lessee upon demand by Lessor.  In lieu of paying to Lessor its 50% share of the cost of the HVAC work, Lessee shall be entitled to
apply its Base Rent partial abatement or any portion thereof during the twelfth (12 ) through the sixteenth (16 ) months of the Term of this Lease, as
provided in Paragraph 3 of this Amendment above and the attached Rental Concession Agreement, to satisfy its obligation for its share of such HVAC Work
and, in the event of such election by Lessee, the amount of such Base Rent partial abatement shall be reduced by the amount of Lessee’s share of the HVAC
Work so applied (Base rent is not increased and remains the same. Lessee is just not entitled to offset cost of HVAC work as rent concession since Lessee did
not pay).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall maintain all HVAC units and HVAC major components during the Term through a service contract
with Lessor’s approved HVAC vendor.

 
9.  Parking Area.  Lessor shall, within twelve months of lease execution weather permitting (such work to be done during daylight savings time)

slurry coat and restripe the parking areas of the Property, at Lessor’s sole cost and expense, on non-work days (Saturdays and Sundays).
 
10. Rental Refund Payment.  Promptly after mutual execution of this Amendment, Lessor agrees to refund to Lessee Base Rent paid by Lessee for the

Premises during 2013 in the amount of $106,670.00.
 
11. Option to Extend Term.  Lessee shall have one (1) option to extend the Term for sixty (60) months on the terms and subject to the conditions

provided in the attached Option to Renew.
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12. Street Privatization.  Lessor agrees to cooperate with the City of Simi Valley with respect to the privatization of Enchanted Way/Flower Glen

Street.  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining all approvals and permits necessary for such privatization, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense.  If Enchanted
Way/Flower Glen Street are successfully privatized, Lessee shall be responsible for all maintenance of such privatized street(s), at Lessee’s sole cost and
expense during the lease term.

 
13. Non-Disturbance Agreement.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge their respective rights and obligations under Paragraph 30.3 regarding Non-

Disturbance Agreements
 
14.  Warranty.  Lessor and Lessee each warrant and represent to the other that the representing party is not aware of any present and outstanding

violations, defaults or breaches of the Lease by the other party, and each representing party has no known claims or offsets of any kind or nature against the
other party, except as follows as of the date of this Amendment: (i) Lessee’s first installment of 2013-1014 real property taxes for the Premises have not been
paid.

 
15.  Lease Continues in Full Force and Effect.  Except as set forth in this Amendment, the Lease, as amended hereby, remains unmodified and

continues in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.
 

16.  Successor and Assigns.  This Amendment shall be binding on Lessor’s and Lessee’s successors and assigns.
 

17.  Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this First Amendment as of the day and year first above written.
 

 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE III LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California Limited Liability Company A Delaware Corporation
MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
By: /s/ Margaret Kestly

Margaret Kestly, Authorized Agent BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline
CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



 
RENT CONCESSION AGREEMENT

 
This document shall set-forth the agreement of HILLSIDE III LLC, a California Liability Company Lessor, and AEROVIRONMENT, INC., a Delaware
Corporation, Lessee concerning the Rent Concessions offered to Lessee in connection with that certain Lease dated DECEMBER 1 , 2013 by and between
Lessor and Lessee for the premises located at: 900 ENCHANTED WAY City of SIMI VALLEY, State of California (the “Lease”).
 
AS MATERIAL CONSIDERATION for the Rent Concession set-forth herein is Lessee’s agreement to lease the Premises on the terms and provisions of the
Lease for the entire Lease term.  Lessee acknowledges that the Free Rent as set-forth below (herein called “Rent Concession”) is a concession given to Lessee
for leasing the Premises for the term stated in the First Amendment to Lease Agreement.  In the event Lessee becomes in default of any material Lease
provision at any time during the Lease term and has not cured such default within the applicable Notice and Cure periods in the lease, Lessor and Lessee
agree that:  (a) in addition to any other remedy available to Lessor, Lessor shall be entitled to recover from Lessee the unamortized rental amount of any
received Rental Concessions taken by Lessee prior to such default date, (b) Lessee agrees to pay such amount to Lessor with the next rental payment.  Lessee
shall be entitled to the Free Rent and/or Rent Concession(s) provided below for the applicable period of time referenced below:
 

DECEMBER 1, 2013 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013 $ 28,160.50
JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2014 $ 56,321.00
FEBRUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014 $ 56,321.00
MARCH 1, 2014 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2014 $ 56,321.00
APRIL 1, 2014 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2014 $ 28,160.50
MAY 1, 2014 THROUGH MAY 31, 2014 $ 28,160.50
JUNE 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014 $ 28,160.50
NOVEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2014 $ 28,160.50
DECEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014 $ 28,160.50
JANUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2015 $ 28,160.50
FEBRUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2015 $ 28,160.50
MARCH 1, 2015 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2015 $ 28,160.50

 
No NNN as defined in the Lease shall be abated by the Rent Concession.
 
Rent Concession(s) referenced above equal a fair rental value in a sum as determined at the time the Rent Concession commences.
 
THIS DOCUMENT shall not be deemed binding upon Lessor unless and until it is executed by Lessor and a copy delivered to Lessee.
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.
 
 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE III LLC,
A California Limited Liability Company AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES, A Delaware Corporation
Managing Agent
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN
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OPTION TO RENEW

 
Tenant is granted one option to extend the lease for a period of Five (5) years commencing immediately after the expiration of the basic lease term.  It shall be
the obligation of the tenant to notify the Landlord of its intention to exercise its option to renew within the period between 270 days and 360 days prior to
the day that the current lease expires.  The notification of the intent to exercise its option shall be sent by tenant in writing by U.S. mail certified, overnight
courier delivery or registered with return receipt requested.
 
The commencement rent for the first month of the option period shall be equal to comparable market rent for a similar building located within a ten-mile
radius of the lease property giving consideration to all concessions, tenant improvement allowance and rental abatement for a non-renewal and non-sublease
space.  In analyzing the comparable building properties, the parties may take into account all factors including ceiling height, parking ratio, loading docks,
loading doors and height/size of those doors, HVAC, office build out, electrical power and distribution, skylights, yard space, the general location and the
view from inside the building.
 
Upon receipt within the time period spelled out above and the tenant’s exercise of its option to extend said lease both parties will meet and confer in an
attempt to arrive at the beginning rent during the option period.  If the parties are not able to agree on the option period rent, each party shall designate a
licensed real estate broker who has dealt with industrial property in the Simi Valley for not less than 5 years from the date of his appointment, and is at that
time employed by an established real estate brokerage firm.  If both brokers are unable to agree on the reasonable commencement rent for the option period,
then both brokers will attempt to designate a third broker with qualifications at least as stringent as those required of the original brokers. Said third broker
shall be given all of the material used by the original brokers to base their reasonable market value, and said broker shall make his own investigation.  The
third broker then shall select the opinion of one broker as the most correct value, and the value selected by said third broker shall be binding upon the parties.
 
If two original brokers cannot agree on a third broker, or if the third broker is unacceptable to the parties as defined herein, then either party may request that
the presiding judge of the Superior Court of the County of Ventura select a commercial real estate broker from the list usually kept by said presiding judge,
and said appointed brokers opinion shall be absolutely binding on all parties.
 
Any outside broker representing the tenant will receive a 2.5% commission for the option term, payable by Landlord.
 
If Lessee is in monetary default on the date of giving the option notice or at any time prior to the commencement of the renewal term, the option notice shall
be totally ineffective and this Lease shall expire at the end of the initial term.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the new Market Rent Value shall not be less than the rent payable for the month immediately preceding the rent adjustment.
 
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.
 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE III LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California limited liability Company A Delaware Corporation
  
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



Exhibit 10.2
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT
(994 Flower Glen Street, Simi Valley, CA 93065)

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT (this “Amendment”), dated for reference purposes as of December 1, 2013, is entered into

by and between  HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company as Lessor, and AEROVIRONMENT, INC, a Delaware
Corporation, as Lessee with reference to the following:.
 

Recitals
 

A.                                    Lessor and Lessee have entered into that certain AIR Commercial Real Estate Association Standard Industrial/Commercial Single Tenant
Lease - Net, dated April 21, 2008, as addended (the “Lease”) for that certain real property commonly known as 994 Flower Glen Street, Simi Valley, CA
93065, more particularly described therein.  Each initially capitalized term not defined in this Amendment shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in
the Lease.  Each sectional reference below shall mean and refer to the applicable paragraph of the Lease.

 
B.                                    Lessor and Lessee desire and intend to amend the Lease on the terms and conditions set forth hereinbelow.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and provisions contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor and Lessee hereby amend the Lease as follows:
 

1.  Term.  Paragraph 1.3 is hereby amended to provide that the Term of the Lease is extended for eight (8) years, commencing on December 1, 2013
and expiring on November 30, 2021 (the “Expiration Date”).

 
2.  Base Rent.  Lessee agrees to pay Base Rent for the Premises during the extended term of the Lease, in advance, at such places as may be

designated from time-to-time by Lessor, without deduction or offset, in the following amounts:
 

(i)                                     From DECEMBER 1, 2013 through NOVEMBER 30, 2015: monthly installments of $29,368.00, together with such
other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease;

 
(ii)                                From DECEMBER 1, 2015 through NOVEMBER 30, 2017: monthly installments of $30,690.00, together with such

other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease;
 
(iii)                            From DECEMBER 1, 2017 through NOVEMBER 30, 2019: monthly installments of $32,071.00, together with such

other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease; and
 
(iv)                             From DECEMBER 1, 2019 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2021: monthly installments of $33,514.00, together with such

other assessments, additions and pass-throughs as are set forth in the Lease.
 

3.  Base Rent Partial Limited Abatement.  Provided Lessee shall not be in material default of the Lease, after any applicable notice and cure periods,
immediately prior to or during any Base Rent partial abatement period, as provided below, the Base Rent payable by Lessee to Lessor for the Premises, as
provided in Paragraph 2 of this Amendment above, shall be partially abated to the extent provided and during the periods provided in that certain Rental
Concession Agreement attached hereto.
 



 
4.  Security Deposit.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that Lessor holds the sum of ZERO and no/100 ($0.00) Dollars as Security Deposit

previously received pursuant to Paragraph 5 of the Lease and Lessor shall have no liability to Lessee for the return of any Security Deposit to Lessee upon the
expiration or termination of the Lease.

 
5. Maintenance and Repairs.  Paragraph 7 is hereby amended to provide that Lessee shall be obligated to manage and contract directly for services

related to Lessee’s obligations to maintain the Premises, including, but not limited to, all utilities and janitorial service.  Lessor shall be responsible, at
Lessor’s sole cost and expense, for that portion of roof replacement and future roof repair cost which exceeds $1,000 per occurrence, per building. Lessee
shall be responsible, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, for the first $1,000 of roof replacement and future roof repair cost not payable by Lessor above.  A roof
assessment of the Premises shall be performed by a licensed roofing contractor.  All roofing replacement and/or repair work shall be performed to applicable
governmental code requirements, within one humdred and twenty (120) days of lease execution weather permitting.

 
6. Tax Protest.  During the lease term, Lessee shall be entitled, at its election, to file a protest with the Ventura County Tax Assessor’s Office to

reduce the real property taxes to reflect the current valuation of the Property.
 
7. Exterior Windows and Doors.  Prior to January 31st, 2014, subject to such extension of additional time as may be required due to weather, Lessor,

at Lessor’s sole cost and expense, shall repair and re-seal all exterior windows and doors of the Premises in a workman-like and professional manner, as may
be required.  Lessee shall maintain all exterior windows and doors of the Premises throughout Term of the Lease.

 
8. HVAC.  Lessor and Lessee agree that, within a commercially reasonable time, upon mutual agreement of Lessor and Lessee, the HVAC units of the

Premises that have exceeded their useful life and any other HVAC major components (such as compressors, fans, etc.) that fail, for reasons other than failure of
Lessee to maintain such HVAC major components, during the extended Term of the Lease (collectively, the “HVAC Work”) shall be repaired or replaced, as
may be required, subject to the cost allocation provided below.  Lessee shall not perform any of the HVAC Work without Lessor’s prior approval of the work
to be done and the estimated cost of such work  The cost of such HVAC Work shall be borne 50% by Lessor and 50% by Lessee and Lessee’s share of such
cost shall be payable by Lessee upon demand by Lessor.  In lieu of paying to Lessor its 50% share of the cost of the HVAC work, Lessee shall be entitled to
apply its Base Rent partial abatement or any portion thereof during the twelfth (12 ) through the sixteenth (16 ) months of the Term of this Lease, as
provided in Paragraph 3 of this Amendment above and the attached Rental Concession Agreement, to satisfy its obligation for its share of such HVAC Work
and, in the event of such election by Lessee, the amount of such Base Rent partial abatement shall be reduced by the amount of Lessee’s share of the HVAC
Work so applied (Base rent is not increased and remains the same.  Lessee is just not entitled to offset cost of HVAC work as rent concession since Lessee did
not pay).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Lessee shall maintain all HVAC units and HVAC major components during the Term through a service contract
with Lessor’s approved HVAC vendor.

 
9.  Parking Area.  Lessor shall, within twelve (12) months of lease execution weather permitting (such work to be done during daylight savings time)

slurry coat and restripe the parking areas of the Property, at Lessor’s sole cost and expense, on non-work days (Saturdays and Sundays).
 
10. Rental Refund Payment.  Promptly after mutual execution of this Amendment, Lessor agrees to refund to Lessee Base Rent paid by Lessee for the

Premises during 2013 in the amount of $114,720.00.
 
11. Option to Extend Term.  Lessee shall have one (1) option to extend the Term for sixty (60) months on the terms and subject to the conditions

provided in the attached Option to Renew.
 

th th



 
12. Street Privatization.  Lessor agrees to cooperate with the City of Simi Valley with respect to the privatization of Enchanted Way/Flower Glen

Street.  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining all approvals and permits necessary for such privatization, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense.  If Enchanted
Way/Flower Glen Street are successfully privatized, Lessee shall be responsible for all maintenance of such privatized street(s), at Lessee’s sole cost and
expense during the lease term.

 
13. Non-Disturbance Agreement.  Lessor and Lessee acknowledge their respective rights and obligations under Paragraph 30.3 regarding Non-

Disturbance Agreements
 
14.  Warranty.  Lessor and Lessee each warrant and represent to the other that the representing party is not aware of any present and outstanding

violations, defaults or breaches of the Lease by the other party, and each representing party has no known claims or offsets of any kind or nature against the
other party, except as follows as of the date of this Amendment: (i) Lessee’s first installment of 2013-1014 real property taxes for the Premises have not been
paid.

 
15.  Lease Continues in Full Force and Effect.  Except as set forth in this Amendment, the Lease, as amended hereby, remains unmodified and

continues in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.
 

16.  Successor and Assigns.  This Amendment shall be binding on Lessor’s and Lessee’s successors and assigns.
 

17.  Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument.
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this First Amendment as of the day and year first above written.
 

 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California Limited Liability Company A Delaware Corporation
MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
By: /s/ Margaret Kestly

Margaret Kestly, Authorized Agent BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline
CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



 
RENT CONCESSION AGREEMENT

 
This document shall set-forth the agreement of HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC a California Liability Company Lessor, and AEROVIRONMENT, INC.,
a Delaware Corporation, Lessee concerning the Rent Concessions offered to Lessee in connection with that certain Lease dated DECEMBER 1 , 2013 by
and between Lessor and Lessee for the premises located at: 994 FLOWER GLEN STREET City of SIMI VALLEY, State of California (the “Lease”).
 
AS MATERIAL CONSIDERATION for the Rent Concession set-forth herein is Lessee’s agreement to lease the Premises on the terms and provisions of the
Lease for the entire Lease term.  Lessee acknowledges that the Free Rent as set-forth below (herein called “Rent Concession”) is a concession given to Lessee
for leasing the Premises for the term stated in the First Amendment to Lease Agreement.  In the event Lessee becomes in default of any material Lease
provision at any time during the Lease term and has not cured such default within the applicable Notice and Cure periods in the lease, Lessor and Lessee
agree that:  (a) in addition to any other remedy available to Lessor, Lessor shall be entitled to recover from Lessee the unamortized rental amount of any
received Rental Concessions taken by Lessee prior to such default date, (b) Lessee agrees to pay such amount to Lessor with the next rental payment.  Lessee
shall be entitled to the Free Rent and/or Rent Concession(s) provided below for the applicable period of time referenced below:
 

DECEMBER 1, 2013 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013 $ 14,684.00
JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2014 $ 29,368.00
FEBRUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014 $ 29,368.00
MARCH 1, 2014 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2014 $ 29,368.00
APRIL 1, 2014 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2014 $ 14,684.00
MAY 1, 2014 THROUGH MAY 31, 2014 $ 14,684.00
JUNE 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014 $ 14,684.00
NOVEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2014 $ 14,684.00
DECEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014 $ 14,684.00
JANUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2015 $ 14,684.00
FEBRUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2015 $ 14,684.00
MARCH 1, 2015 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2015 $ 14,684.00

 
No NNN as defined in the Lease shall be abated by the Rent Concession.
 
Rent Concession(s) referenced above equal a fair rental value in a sum as determined at the time the Rent Concession commences.
 
THIS DOCUMENT shall not be deemed binding upon Lessor unless and until it is executed by Lessor and a copy delivered to Lessee.
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.
 
 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC
A California Limited Liability Company AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES, A Delaware Corporation
Managing Agent
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN
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OPTION TO RENEW

 
Tenant is granted one option to extend the lease for a period of Five (5) years commencing immediately after the expiration of the basic lease term.  It shall be
the obligation of the tenant to notify the Landlord of its intention to exercise its option to renew within the period between 270 days and 360 days prior to
the day that the current lease expires.  The notification of the intent to exercise its option shall be sent by tenant in writing by U.S. mail certified, overnight
courier delivery or registered with return receipt requested.
 
The commencement rent for the first month of the option period shall be equal to comparable market rent for a similar building located within a ten-mile
radius of the lease property giving consideration to all concessions, tenant improvement allowance and rental abatement for a non-renewal and non-sublease
space.  In analyzing the comparable building properties, the parties may take into account all factors including ceiling height, parking ratio, loading docks,
loading doors and height/size of those doors, HVAC, office build out, electrical power and distribution, skylights, yard space, the general location and the
view from inside the building.
 
Upon receipt within the time period spelled out above and the tenant’s exercise of its option to extend said lease both parties will meet and confer in an
attempt to arrive at the beginning rent during the option period.  If the parties are not able to agree on the option period rent, each party shall designate a
licensed real estate broker who has dealt with industrial property in the Simi Valley for not less than 5 years from the date of his appointment, and is at that
time employed by an established real estate brokerage firm.  If both brokers are unable to agree on the reasonable commencement rent for the option period,
then both brokers will attempt to designate a third broker with qualifications at least as stringent as those required of the original brokers. Said third broker
shall be given all of the material used by the original brokers to base their reasonable market value, and said broker shall make his own investigation. The
third broker then shall select the opinion of one broker as the most correct value, and the value selected by said third broker shall be binding upon the parties.
 
If two original brokers cannot agree on a third broker, or if the third broker is unacceptable to the parties as defined herein, then either party may request that
the presiding judge of the Superior Court of the County of Ventura select a commercial real estate broker from the list usually kept by said presiding judge,
and said appointed brokers opinion shall be absolutely binding on all parties.
 
Any outside broker representing the tenant will receive a 2.5% commission for the option term, payable by Landlord.
 
If Lessee is in monetary default on the date of giving the option notice or at any time prior to the commencement of the renewal term, the option notice shall
be totally ineffective and this Lease shall expire at the end of the initial term.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the new Market Rent Value shall not be less than the rent payable for the month immediately preceding the rent adjustment.
 
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.
 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California limited liability Company A Delaware Corporation
  
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



Exhibit 10.3
 

A IR  C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  S T A N D A R D

IN D U S T R IA L /C O MME R C IA L

S IN G L E -T E N A N T  L E A S E  - N E T  (D O

N O T  U S E  T H IS  F O R M F O R  MU L T I-

T E N A N T  B U IL D IN G S ) 1 . B asic P ro v isio n s (“B asic

P ro v isio n s”). 1 .1  P arties: T h is L ease (“L ease”), d ated  fo r referen ce p u rp o ses

o n ly  D E C E MB E R  1 2 , 2 0 1 3  , is m ad e b y

an d  b etw een  H IL L S ID E  A S S O C IA T E S  II,

L L C  (“L esso r”) an d  A E R O V IR O N ME N T , IN C .,

A  D E L A WA R E  C O R P O R A T IO N  . (“L essee”),

(co llectiv ely  th e “P arties,” o r in d iv id u ally  a “P arty ”). 1 .2  P rem ises: T h at certain  real

p ro p erty , in clu d in g  all im p ro v em en ts th erein  o r to  b e

p ro v id ed  b y  L esso r u n d er th e term s o f th is L ease, an d

co m m o n ly  k n o w n  as 9 9 6  F L O WE R

G L E N  S T R E E T , S IMI V A L L E Y  , lo cated  in

th e C o u n ty  o f V E N T U R A  , S tate o f

C A L IF O R N IA  , an d  g en erally  d escrib ed  as (d escrib e b riefly  th e

n atu re o f th e p ro p erty  an d , if ap p licab le, th e “P ro ject”, if th e p ro p erty  is

lo cated  w ith in  a P ro ject) F R E E  S T A N D IN G

S IN G L E  S T O R Y  4 3 ,0 0 8  S Q U A R E

F O O T  B U IL D IN G  L O C A T E D  WIT H IN

T H E  H IL L S ID E  IN D U S T R IA L

C E N T E R  P R O JE C T  * S E E

P A R A G R A P H  # 2  O F  A D D E N D U M

(“P rem ises”). (S ee also  P arag rap h  2 ) 1 .3  T erm : E IG H T  (8 ) y ears an d

Z E R O  (0 ) m o n th s (“O rig in al T erm ”) co m m en cin g

D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 3  (“C o m m en cem en t D ate”)

an d  en d in g  N O V E MB E R  3 0 , 2 0 2 1

(“E x p iratio n  D ate”). (S ee also  P arag rap h  3 ) 1 .4  E arly  P o ssessio n :

N /A  (“E arly  P o ssessio n  D ate”). (S ee also  P arag rap h s 3 .2  an d  3 .3 )

1 .5  B ase R en t: $ 2 7 ,5 2 5 .0 0  p er m o n th  (“B ase R en t”),

p ay ab le o n  th e F IR S T  d ay  o f each  m o n th

co m m en cin g  D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 3  . (S ee also

P arag rap h  4 ) If th is b o x  is ch eck ed , th ere are p ro v isio n s in  th is L ease

fo r th e B ase R en t to  b e ad ju sted . 1 .6  B ase R en t an d  O th er

Mo n ies P aid  U p o n  E x ecu tio n : (a) B ase R en t:

$ 1 3 ,7 6 2 .5 0  fo r th e p erio d  D E C . 1 , 2 0 1 3

T H R O U G H  D E C . 3 1 , 2 0 1 3  (b ) S ecu rity

D ep o sit: $ 0 .0 0  (“S ecu rity  D ep o sit”). (S ee also  P arag rap h  5 ) (c)

A sso ciatio n  F ees: $ N /A  fo r th e p erio d  N /A  (d ) O th er: $ N /A

fo r N /A  (e) T o tal D u e U p o n  E x ecu tio n  o f th is L ease:

$ 1 3 ,7 6 2 .5 0  . 1 .7  A g reed  U se: O F F IC E  &

WA R E H O U S E  F O R  L IG H T

MA N U F A C T U R IN G  . (S ee also  P arag rap h  6 ) 1 .8

In su rin g  P arty : L esso r is th e “In su rin g  P arty ” u n less o th erw ise stated

h erein . (S ee also  P arag rap h  8 ) 1 .9  R eal E state B ro k ers: (S ee also

P arag rap h  1 5 ) (a) R ep resen tatio n : T h e fo llo w in g  real estate b ro k ers

(th e “B ro k ers”) an d  b ro k erag e relatio n sh ip s ex ist in  th is tran sactio n

(ch eck  ap p licab le b o x es): rep resen ts L esso r ex clu siv ely  (“L esso r’s B ro k er”);

JO S E F  F A R R A R /N E WMA R K

G R U B B  K N IG H T  F R A N K  (N G K F ) rep resen ts

L essee ex clu siv ely  (“L essee’s B ro k er”); o r rep resen ts b o th  L esso r an d  L essee

(“D u al A g en cy ”). (b ) P ay m en t to  B ro k ers: U p o n

ex ecu tio n  an d  d eliv ery  o f th is L ease b y  b o th  P arties, L esso r sh all

p ay  to  th e B ro k er th e fee ag reed  to  in  th eir sep arate w ritten  ag reem en t (o r if th ere is

n o  su ch  ag reem en t, th e su m  o f P E R

A G R E E ME N T  o r %  o f th e to tal B ase R en t) fo r th e

b ro k erag e serv ices ren d ered  b y  th e B ro k ers. 1 .1 0  G u aran to r.

T h e o b lig atio n s o f th e L essee u n d er th is L ease are to  b e g u aran teed

b y  N /A  (“G u aran to r”). (S ee also  P arag rap h  3 7 ) 1 .1 1

A ttach m en ts. A ttach ed  h ereto  are th e fo llo w in g , all o f w h ich

co n stitu te a p art o f th is L ease: an  A d d en d u m  co n sistin g  o f

P arag rap h s 1  th ro u g h  2  ; a p lo t p lan  d ep ictin g  th e

P rem ises; a cu rren t set o f th e R u les an d  R eg u latio n s; a Wo rk  L etter; o th er

(sp ecify ): R E N T  A D JU S T ME N T , R E N T

C O N C E S S IO N  A G R E E ME N T ,

A D D E N D U M, A T T A C H ME N T ,

O P T IO N  T O  R E N E W . 2 . P rem ises. 2 .1  L ettin g .

L esso r h ereb y  leases to  L essee, an d  L essee h ereb y  leases fro m  L esso r, th e P rem ises, fo r

th e term , at th e ren tal, an d  u p o n  all o f th e term s, co v en an ts an d

co n d itio n s set fo rth  in  th is L ease. U n less o th erw ise p ro v id ed

h erein , an y  statem en t o f size set fo rth  in  th is L ease, P A G E  1  O F  1 8
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o r th at m ay  h av e b een  u sed  in  calcu latin g  R en t, is an

ap p ro x im atio n  w h ich  th e P arties ag ree is reaso n ab le an d  an y

p ay m en ts b ased  th ereo n  are n o t su b ject to  rev isio n  w h eth er o r

n o t th e actu al size is m o re o r less. N o te: L essee is ad v ised  to  v erify  th e actu al size p rio r to

ex ecu tin g  th is L ease. 2 .2  C o n d itio n . L esso r sh all d eliv er th e P rem ises

to  L essee b ro o m  clean  an d  free o f d eb ris o n  th e C o m m en cem en t

D ate o r th e E arly  P o ssessio n  D ate, w h ich ev er first o ccu rs (“S tart D ate”), an d , so

lo n g  as th e req u ired  serv ice co n tracts d escrib ed  in  P arag rap h  7 .1 (b )

b elo w  are o b tain ed  b y  L essee an d  in  effect w ith in  th irty  d ay s

fo llo w in g  th e S tart D ate, w arran ts th at th e ex istin g  electrical, p lu m b in g , fire

sp rin k ler, lig h tin g , h eatin g , v en tilatin g  an d  air

co n d itio n in g  sy stem s (“H V A C ”), lo ad in g  d o o rs,

su m p  p u m p s, if an y , an d  all o th er su ch  elem en ts in  th e P rem ises,

o th er th an  th o se co n stru cted  b y  L essee, sh all b e in  g o o d

o p eratin g  co n d itio n  o n  said  d ate, th at th e stru ctu ral elem en ts o f th e

ro o f, b earin g  w alls an d  fo u n d atio n  o f an y  b u ild in g s

o n  th e P rem ises (th e “B u ild in g ”) sh all b e free o f m aterial d efects, an d  th at th e P rem ises

d o  n o t co n tain  h azard o u s lev els o f an y  m o ld  o r fu n g i

d efin ed  as to x ic u n d er ap p licab le state o r fed eral law . If a n o n -co m p lian ce

w ith  said  w arran ty  ex ists as o f th e S tart D ate, o r if o n e o f su ch  sy stem s o r elem en ts

sh o u ld  m alfu n ctio n  o r fail w ith in  th e ap p ro p riate w arran ty

p erio d , L esso r sh all, as L esso r’s so le o b lig atio n  w ith  resp ect to  su ch  m atter,

ex cep t as o th erw ise p ro v id ed  in  th is L ease, p ro m p tly  after receip t o f w ritten

n o tice fro m  L essee settin g  fo rth  w ith  sp ecificity  th e n atu re an d  ex ten t o f

su ch  n o n -co m p lian ce, m alfu n ctio n  o r failu re, rectify  sam e at L esso r’s

ex p en se. T h e w arran ty  p erio d s sh all b e as fo llo w s: (i) 6  m o n th s as to

th e H V A C  sy stem s, an d  (ii) 3 0  d ay s as to  th e rem ain in g  sy stem s

an d  o th er elem en ts o f th e B u ild in g . If L essee d o es n o t g iv e L esso r

th e req u ired  n o tice w ith in  th e ap p ro p riate w arran ty  p erio d ,

co rrectio n  o f an y  su ch  n o n -co m p lian ce, m alfu n ctio n  o r failu re

sh all b e th e o b lig atio n  o f L essee at L essee’s so le co st an d  ex p en se. 2 .3

C o m p lian ce. L esso r w arran ts th at to  th e b est o f its k n o w led g e th e

im p ro v em en ts o n  th e P rem ises co m p ly  w ith  th e

b u ild in g  co d es, ap p licab le law s, co v en an ts o r restrictio n s o f reco rd ,

reg u latio n s, an d  o rd in an ces (“A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts”) th at w ere in  effect at

th e tim e th at each  im p ro v em en t, o r p o rtio n  th ereo f, w as co n stru cted .

S aid  w arran ty  d o es n o t ap p ly  to  th e u se to  w h ich  L essee w ill

p u t th e P rem ises, m o d ificatio n s w h ich  m ay  b e req u ired  b y  th e

A m erican s w ith  D isab ilities A ct o r an y  sim ilar law s as a resu lt o f L essee’s u se (see P arag rap h

5 0 ), o r to  an y  A lteratio n s o r U tility  In stallatio n s (as d efin ed  in

P arag rap h  7 .3 (a)) m ad e o r to  b e m ad e b y  L essee. N O T E : L essee is

resp o n sib le fo r d eterm in in g  w h eth er o r n o t th e A p p licab le

R eq u irem en ts, an d  esp ecially  th e zo n in g , are ap p ro p riate fo r L essee’s

in ten d ed  u se, an d  ack n o w led g es th at p ast u ses o f th e P rem ises m ay

n o  lo n g er b e allo w ed . If th e P rem ises d o  n o t co m p ly  w ith

said  w arran ty , L esso r sh all, ex cep t as o th erw ise p ro v id ed , p ro m p tly  after

receip t o f w ritten  n o tice fro m  L essee settin g  fo rth  w ith  sp ecificity  th e n atu re an d

ex ten t o f su ch  n o n -co m p lian ce, rectify  th e sam e at L esso r’s ex p en se. If L essee

d o es n o t g iv e L esso r w ritten  n o tice o f a n o n -co m p lian ce w ith

th is w arran ty  w ith in  6  m o n th s fo llo w in g  th e S tart D ate,

co rrectio n  o f th at n o n -co m p lian ce sh all b e th e o b lig atio n  o f L essee at

L essee’s so le co st an d  ex p en se. If th e A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts are h ereafter

ch an g ed  so  as to  req u ire d u rin g  th e term  o f th is L ease th e

co n stru ctio n  o f an  ad d itio n  to  o r an  alteratio n  o f th e P rem ises

an d /o r B u ild in g , th e rem ed iatio n  o f an y  H azard o u s

S u b stan ce, o r th e rein fo rcem en t o r o th er p h y sical m o d ificatio n  o f

th e U n it, P rem ises an d /o r B u ild in g  (“C ap ital E x p en d itu re”),

L esso r an d  L essee sh all allo cate th e co st o f su ch  w o rk  as fo llo w s: (a) S u b ject to

P arag rap h  2 .3 (c) b elo w , if su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu res are req u ired  as a

resu lt o f th e sp ecific an d  u n iq u e u se o f th e P rem ises b y  L essee as co m p ared

w ith  u ses b y  ten an ts in  g en eral, L essee sh all b e fu lly  resp o n sib le fo r th e co st

th ereo f, p ro v id ed , h o w ev er th at if su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re is

req u ired  d u rin g  th e last 2  y ears o f th is L ease an d  th e co st th ereo f ex ceed s 6

m o n th s’ B ase R en t, L essee m ay  in stead  term in ate th is L ease u n less L esso r n o tifies

L essee, in  w ritin g , w ith in  1 0  d ay s after receip t o f L essee’s term in atio n  n o tice th at

L esso r h as elected  to  p ay  th e d ifferen ce b etw een  th e actu al co st th ereo f an d  an

am o u n t eq u al to  6  m o n th s’ B ase R en t. If L essee elects term in atio n , L essee sh all

im m ed iately  cease th e u se o f th e P rem ises w h ich  req u ires su ch  C ap ital

E x p en d itu re an d  d eliv er to  L esso r w ritten  n o tice sp ecify in g  a

term in atio n  d ate at least 9 0  d ay s th ereafter. S u ch  term in atio n  d ate sh all,

h o w ev er, in  n o  ev en t b e earlier th an  th e last d ay  th at L essee co u ld  leg ally

u tilize th e P rem ises w ith o u t co m m en cin g  su ch  C ap ital

E x p en d itu re. (b ) If su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re is n o t th e resu lt o f

th e sp ecific an d  u n iq u e u se o f th e P rem ises b y  L essee (su ch  as,

g o v ern m en tally  m an d ated  seism ic m o d ificatio n s), th en  L esso r sh all

p ay  fo r su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re an d  L essee sh all o n ly  b e

o b lig ated  to  p ay , each  m o n th  d u rin g  th e rem ain d er o f th e

term  o f th is L ease, o n  th e d ate th at o n  w h ich  th e B ase R en t is d u e, an

am o u n t eq u al to  1 4 4 th  o f th e p o rtio n  o f su ch  co sts

reaso n ab ly  attrib u tab le to  th e P rem ises. L essee sh all p ay  In terest o n  th e b alan ce

b u t m ay  p rep ay  its o b lig atio n  at an y  tim e. If, h o w ev er, su ch

C ap ital E x p en d itu re is req u ired  d u rin g  th e last 2  y ears o f th is L ease o r if

L esso r reaso n ab ly  d eterm in es th at it is n o t eco n o m ically  feasib le to  p ay  its sh are

th ereo f, L esso r sh all h av e th e o p tio n  to  term in ate th is L ease u p o n

9 0  d ay s p rio r w ritten  n o tice to  L essee u n less L essee n o tifies L esso r, in

w ritin g , w ith in  1 0  d ay s after receip t o f L esso r’s term in atio n  n o tice th at L essee

w ill p ay  fo r su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re. If L esso r d o es n o t elect to

term in ate, an d  fails to  ten d er its sh are o f an y  su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re, L essee

m ay  ad v an ce su ch  fu n d s an d  d ed u ct sam e, w ith  In terest, fro m

R en t u n til L esso r’s sh are o f su ch  co sts h av e b een  fu lly  p aid . If L essee is

u n ab le to  fin an ce L esso r’s sh are, o r if th e b alan ce o f th e R en t d u e an d

p ay ab le fo r th e rem ain d er o f th is L ease is n o t su fficien t to  fu lly  reim b u rse L essee

o n  an  o ffset b asis, L essee sh all h av e th e rig h t to  term in ate th is L ease u p o n

3 0  d ay s w ritten  n o tice to  L esso r. (c) N o tw ith stan d in g  th e

ab o v e, th e p ro v isio n s co n cern in g  C ap ital E x p en d itu res are

in ten d ed  to  ap p ly  o n ly  to  n o n -v o lu n tary ,

u n ex p ected , an d  n ew  A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts. If th e C ap ital

E x p en d itu res are in stead  trig g ered  b y  L essee as a resu lt o f an  actu al o r

p ro p o sed  ch an g e in  u se, ch an g e in  in ten sity  o f u se, o r

m o d ificatio n  to  th e P rem ises th en , an d  in  th at ev en t, L essee sh all eith er: (i)

im m ed iately  cease su ch  ch an g ed  u se o r in ten sity  o f u se an d /o r tak e

su ch  o th er step s as m ay  b e n ecessary  to  elim in ate th e req u irem en t fo r su ch

C ap ital E x p en d itu re, o r (ii) co m p lete su ch  C ap ital E x p en d itu re at its

o w n  ex p en se. L essee sh all n o t, h o w ev er, h av e an y  rig h t to

term in ate th is L ease. 2 .4  A ck n o w led g em en ts. L essee ack n o w led g es

th at: (a) it h as b een  ad v ised  b y  L esso r an d /o r B ro k ers to  satisfy  itself w ith  resp ect

to  th e co n d itio n  o f th e P rem ises (in clu d in g  b u t n o t lim ited

to  th e electrical, H V A C  an d  fire sp rin k ler sy stem s, secu rity , en v iro n m en tal asp ects,

an d  co m p lian ce w ith  A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts an d  th e

A m erican s w ith  D isab ilities A ct), an d  th eir su itab ility  fo r L essee’s in ten d ed  u se, (b )

L essee h as m ad e su ch  in v estig atio n  as it d eem s n ecessary  w ith  referen ce to  su ch  m atters

an d  assu m es all resp o n sib ility  th erefo r as th e sam e relate to  its o ccu p an cy  o f th e

P rem ises, an d  (c) n eith er L esso r, L esso r’s ag en ts, n o r B ro k ers h av e m ad e

an y  o ral o r w ritten  rep resen tatio n s o r w arran ties w ith  resp ect to  said  m atters o th er

th an  as set fo rth  in  th is L ease. In  ad d itio n , L esso r ack n o w led g es th at: (i)

B ro k ers h av e m ad e n o  rep resen tatio n s, p ro m ises o r w arran ties

co n cern in g  L essee’s ab ility  to  h o n o r th e L ease o r su itab ility  to

o ccu p y  th e P rem ises, an d  (ii) it is L esso r’s so le resp o n sib ility  to  in v estig ate th e

fin an cial cap ab ility  an d /o r su itab ility  o f all p ro p o sed  ten an ts. 2 .5  L essee as

P rio r O w n er/O ccu p an t. T h e w arran ties m ad e b y  L esso r in

P arag rap h  2  sh all b e o f n o  fo rce o r effect if im m ed iately  p rio r to  th e S tart D ate

L essee w as th e o w n er o r o ccu p an t o f th e P rem ises. In  su ch  ev en t, L essee sh all

b e resp o n sib le fo r an y  n ecessary  co rrectiv e w o rk . 3 . T erm . 3 .1  T erm .

T h e C o m m en cem en t D ate, E x p iratio n  D ate an d  O rig in al

T erm  o f th is L ease are as sp ecified  in  P arag rap h  1 .3 . 3 .2  E arly  P o ssessio n . If

L essee to tally  o r p artially  o ccu p ies th e P rem ises p rio r to  th e

C o m m en cem en t D ate, th e o b lig atio n  to  p ay  P A G E  2
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B ase R en t sh all b e ab ated  fo r th e p erio d  o f su ch  early  p o ssessio n . A ll

o th er term s o f th is L ease (in clu d in g  b u t n o t lim ited  to  th e

o b lig atio n s to  p ay  R eal P ro p erty  T ax es an d  in su ran ce

p rem iu m s an d  to  m ain tain  th e P rem ises) sh all b e in  effect d u rin g  su ch

p erio d . A n y  su ch  early  p o ssessio n  sh all n o t affect th e E x p iratio n

D ate. 3 .3  D elay  In  P o ssessio n . L esso r ag rees to  u se its b est co m m ercially

reaso n ab le effo rts to  d eliv er p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises to  L essee b y  th e

C o m m en cem en t D ate. If, d esp ite said  effo rts, L esso r is u n ab le to  d eliv er

p o ssessio n  b y  su ch  d ate, L esso r sh all n o t b e su b ject to  an y  liab ility

th erefo r, n o r sh all su ch  failu re affect th e v alid ity  o f th is L ease. L essee sh all n o t,

h o w ev er, b e o b lig ated  to  p ay  R en t o r p erfo rm  its o th er

o b lig atio n s u n til L esso r d eliv ers p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises an d

an y  p erio d  o f ren t ab atem en t th at L essee w o u ld  o th erw ise h av e

en jo y ed  sh all ru n  fro m  th e d ate o f d eliv ery  o f p o ssessio n  an d

co n tin u e fo r a p erio d  eq u al to  w h at L essee w o u ld  o th erw ise

h av e en jo y ed  u n d er th e term s h ereo f, b u t m in u s an y  d ay s

o f d elay  cau sed  b y  th e acts o r o m issio n s o f L essee. If p o ssessio n  is n o t

d eliv ered  w ith in  6 0  d ay s after th e C o m m en cem en t D ate, L essee m ay , at its

o p tio n , b y  n o tice in  w ritin g  w ith in  1 0  d ay s after th e en d

o f su ch  6 0  d ay  p erio d , can cel th is L ease, in  w h ich  ev en t th e P arties sh all

b e d isch arg ed  fro m  all o b lig atio n s h ereu n d er. If su ch  w ritten  n o tice is

n o t receiv ed  b y  L esso r w ith in  said  1 0  d ay  p erio d , L essee’s rig h t

to  can cel sh all term in ate. If p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises is n o t d eliv ered  w ith in

1 2 0  d ay s after th e C o m m en cem en t D ate, th is L ease sh all term in ate u n less

o th er ag reem en ts are reach ed  b etw een  L esso r an d  L essee, in  w ritin g . 3 .4  L essee

C o m p lian ce. L esso r sh all n o t b e req u ired  to  d eliv er p o ssessio n  o f

th e P rem ises to  L essee u n til L essee co m p lies w ith  its o b lig atio n  to

p ro v id e ev id en ce o f in su ran ce (P arag rap h  8 .5 ). P en d in g

d eliv ery  o f su ch  ev id en ce, L essee sh all b e req u ired  to  p erfo rm  all o f its

o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease fro m  an d  after th e S tart D ate, in clu d in g

th e p ay m en t o f R en t, n o tw ith stan d in g  L esso r’s electio n  to

w ith h o ld  p o ssessio n  p en d in g  receip t o f su ch  ev id en ce o f

in su ran ce. F u rth er, if L essee is req u ired  to  p erfo rm  an y  o th er

co n d itio n s p rio r to  o r co n cu rren t w ith  th e S tart D ate, th e S tart D ate sh all

o ccu r b u t L esso r m ay  elect to  w ith h o ld  p o ssessio n  u n til su ch

co n d itio n s are satisfied . 4 . R en t. 4 .1 . R en t D efin ed . A ll m o n etary

o b lig atio n s o f L essee to  L esso r u n d er th e term s o f th is L ease (ex cep t fo r th e

S ecu rity  D ep o sit) are d eem ed  to  b e ren t (“R en t”). 4 .2  P ay m en t. L essee sh all

cau se p ay m en t o f R en t to  b e receiv ed  b y  L esso r in  law fu l

m o n ey  o f th e U n ited  S tates, w ith o u t o ffset o r d ed u ctio n

(ex cep t as sp ecifically  p erm itted  in  th is L ease), o n  o r b efo re th e d ay  o n

w h ich  it is d u e. A ll m o n etary  am o u n ts sh all b e ro u n d ed  to

th e n earest w h o le d o llar. In  th e ev en t th at an y  in v o ice p rep ared  b y

L esso r is in accu rate su ch  in accu racy  sh all n o t co n stitu te a w aiv er an d  L essee sh all b e

o b lig ated  to  p ay  th e am o u n t set fo rth  in  th is L ease. R en t fo r an y

p erio d  d u rin g  th e term  h ereo f w h ich  is fo r less th an  o n e fu ll calen d ar

m o n th  sh all b e p ro rated  b ased  u p o n  th e actu al n u m b er o f

d ay s o f said  m o n th . P ay m en t o f R en t sh all b e m ad e to  L esso r at its

ad d ress stated  h erein  o r to  su ch  o th er p erso n s o r p lace as L esso r m ay  fro m

tim e to  tim e d esig n ate in  w ritin g . A ccep tan ce o f a p ay m en t w h ich  is less

th an  th e am o u n t th en  d u e sh all n o t b e a w aiv er o f L esso r’s rig h ts

to  th e b alan ce o f su ch  R en t, reg ard less o f L esso r’s en d o rsem en t o f an y

ch eck  so  statin g . In  th e ev en t th at an y  ch eck , d raft, o r o th er in stru m en t

o f p ay m en t g iv en  b y  L essee to  L esso r is d ish o n o red  fo r

an y  reaso n , L essee ag rees to  p ay  to  L esso r th e su m  o f $ 2 5  in

ad d itio n  to  an y  L ate C h arg e an d  L esso r, at its o p tio n , m ay

req u ire all fu tu re R en t b e p aid  b y  cash ier’s ch eck . P ay m en ts w ill b e

ap p lied  first to  accru ed  late ch arg es an d  atto rn ey ’s fees, seco n d  to  accru ed  in terest, th en

to  B ase R en t an d  C o m m o n  A rea O p eratin g  E x p en ses,

an d  an y  rem ain in g  am o u n t to  an y  o th er

o u tstan d in g  ch arg es o r co sts. 4 .3  In itials 5 . S ecu rity  D ep o sit. L essee sh all

d ep o sit w ith  L esso r u p o n  ex ecu tio n  h ereo f th e S ecu rity

D ep o sit as secu rity  fo r L essee’s faith fu l p erfo rm an ce o f its o b lig atio n s u n d er

th is L ease. If L essee fails to  p ay  R en t, o r o th erw ise D efau lts u n d er th is L ease, L esso r

m ay  u se, ap p ly  o r retain  all o r an y  p o rtio n  o f said  S ecu rity

D ep o sit fo r th e p ay m en t o f an y  am o u n t d u e alread y  d u e

L esso r, fo r R en ts w h ich  w ill b e d u e in  th e fu tu re, an d / o r to

reim b u rse o r co m p en sate L esso r fo r an y  liab ility , ex p en se, lo ss o r

d am ag e w h ich  L esso r m ay  su ffer o r in cu r b y  reaso n  th ereo f. If L esso r

u ses o r ap p lies all o r an y  p o rtio n  o f th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit, L essee sh all

w ith in  1 0  d ay s after w ritten  req u est th erefo r d ep o sit m o n ies w ith

L esso r su fficien t to  resto re said  S ecu rity  D ep o sit to  th e fu ll am o u n t

req u ired  b y  th is L ease. If th e B ase R en t in creases d u rin g  th e term  o f th is L ease, L essee

sh all, u p o n  w ritten  req u est fro m  L esso r, d ep o sit ad d itio n al

m o n ies w ith  L esso r so  th at th e to tal am o u n t o f th e S ecu rity

D ep o sit sh all at all tim es b ear th e sam e p ro p o rtio n  to  th e in creased  B ase R en t as th e

in itial S ecu rity  D ep o sit b o re to  th e in itial B ase R en t. S h o u ld  th e

A g reed  U se b e am en d ed  to  acco m m o d ate a m aterial ch an g e in  th e

b u sin ess o f L essee o r to  acco m m o d ate a su b lessee o r assig n ee, L esso r sh all h av e

th e rig h t to  in crease th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit to  th e ex ten t n ecessary , in  L esso r’s

reaso n ab le ju d g m en t, to  acco u n t fo r an y  in creased  w ear an d  tear th at th e

P rem ises m ay  su ffer as a resu lt th ereo f. If a ch an g e in  co n tro l o f L essee o ccu rs

d u rin g  th is L ease an d  fo llo w in g  su ch  ch an g e th e fin an cial

co n d itio n  o f L essee is, in  L esso r’s reaso n ab le ju d g m en t, sig n ifican tly

red u ced , L essee sh all d ep o sit su ch  ad d itio n al m o n ies w ith  L esso r as sh all

b e su fficien t to  cau se th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit to  b e at a co m m ercially  reaso n ab le lev el

b ased  o n  su ch  ch an g e in  fin an cial co n d itio n . L esso r sh all n o t

b e req u ired  to  k eep  th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit sep arate fro m  its g en eral acco u n ts.

6 . U se. 6 .1  U se. L essee sh all u se an d  o ccu p y  th e P rem ises o n ly  fo r th e

A g reed  U se, o r an y  o th er leg al u se w h ich  is reaso n ab ly  co m p arab le

th ereto , an d  fo r n o  o th er p u rp o se. L essee sh all n o t u se o r p erm it th e

u se o f th e P rem ises in  a m an n er th at is u n law fu l, creates d am ag e, w aste o r a n u isan ce,

o r th at d istu rb s o ccu p an ts o f o r cau ses d am ag e to

n eig h b o rin g  p rem ises o r p ro p erties. O th er th an  g u id e, sig n al

an d  seein g  ey e d o g s, L essee sh all n o t k eep  o r allo w  in  th e P rem ises

an y  p ets, an im als, b ird s, fish , o r rep tiles. L esso r sh all n o t u n reaso n ab ly

w ith h o ld  o r d elay  its co n sen t to  an y  w ritten  req u est fo r a

m o d ificatio n  o f th e A g reed  U se, so  lo n g  as th e sam e w ill n o t im p air

th e stru ctu ral in teg rity  o f th e im p ro v em en ts o n  th e P rem ises o r th e

m ech an ical o r electrical sy stem s th erein , an d /o r is n o t sig n ifican tly  m o re

b u rd en so m e to  th e P rem ises. If L esso r elects to  w ith h o ld  co n sen t,

L esso r sh all w ith in  7  d ay s after su ch  req u est g iv e w ritten  n o tificatio n  o f

sam e, w h ich  n o tice sh all in clu d e an  ex p lan atio n  o f L esso r’s

o b jectio n s to  th e ch an g e in  th e A g reed  U se. P A G E  3  O F
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6 .2  H azard o u s S u b stan ces. (a) R ep o rtab le U ses R eq u ire C o n sen t.

T h e term  “H azard o u s S u b stan ce” as u sed  in  th is L ease sh all m ean  an y

p ro d u ct, su b stan ce, o r w aste w h o se p resen ce, u se, m an u factu re, d isp o sal,

tran sp o rtatio n , o r release, eith er b y  its if o r in  co m b in atio n  w ith  o th er m aterials

ex p ected  to  b e o n  th e P rem ises, is eith er: (i) p o ten tially  in ju rio u s to  th e

p u b lic h ealth , safety  o r w elfare, th e en v iro n m en t o r th e P rem ises, (ii) reg u lated

o r m o n ito red  b y  an y  g o v ern m en tal au th o rity , o r (iii) a b asis

fo r p o ten tial liab ility  o f L esso r to  an y  g o v ern m en tal ag en cy  o r

th ird  p arty  u n d er an y  ap p licab le statu te o r co m m o n  law

th eo ry . H azard o u s S u b stan ces sh all in clu d e, b u t n o t b e lim ited

to , h y d ro carb o n s, p etro leu m , g aso lin e, an d /o r cru d e o il o r

an y  p ro d u cts, b y -p ro d u cts o r fractio n s th ereo f. L essee sh all n o t

en g ag e in  an y  activ ity  in  o r o n  th e P rem ises w h ich  co n stitu tes a

R ep o rtab le U se o f H azard o u s S u b stan ces w ith o u t th e ex p ress

p rio r w ritten  co n sen t o f L esso r an d  tim ely  co m p lian ce (at L essee’s ex p en se)

w ith  all A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts. “R ep o rtab le U se” sh all m ean  (i) th e

in stallatio n  o r u se o f an y  ab o v e o r b elo w  g ro u n d  sto rag e

tan k , (ii) th e g en eratio n , p o ssessio n , sto rag e, u se, tran sp o rtatio n , o r

d isp o sal o f a H azard o u s S u b stan ce th at req u ires a p erm it fro m , o r w ith

resp ect to  w h ich  a rep o rt, n o tice, reg istratio n  o r b u sin ess p lan  is req u ired  to

b e filed  w ith , an y  g o v ern m en tal au th o rity , an d /o r (iii) th e p resen ce at

th e P rem ises o f a H azard o u s S u b stan ce w ith  resp ect to  w h ich  an y

A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts req u ires th at a n o tice b e g iv en  to  p erso n s

en terin g  o r o ccu p y in g  th e P rem ises o r n eig h b o rin g

p ro p erties. N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , L essee m ay  u se

an y  o rd in ary  an d  cu sto m ary  m aterials reaso n ab ly  req u ired  to  b e

u sed  in  th e n o rm al co u rse o f th e A g reed  U se, o rd in ary  o ffice

su p p lies (co p ier to n er, liq u id  p ap er, g lu e, etc.) an d  co m m o n

h o u seh o ld  clean in g  m aterials, so  lo n g  as su ch  u se is in  co m p lian ce

w ith  all A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, is n o t a R ep o rtab le U se, an d  d o es

n o t ex p o se th e P rem ises o r n eig h b o rin g  p ro p erty  to

an y  m ean in g fu l risk  o f co n tam in atio n  o r d am ag e o r

ex p o se L esso r to  an y  liab ility  th erefo r. In  ad d itio n , L esso r m ay

co n d itio n  its co n sen t to  an y  R ep o rtab le U se u p o n

receiv in g  su ch  ad d itio n al assu ran ces as L esso r reaso n ab ly  d eem s n ecessary  to

p ro tect itself, th e p u b lic, th e P rem ises an d /o r th e en v iro n m en t ag ain st

d am ag e, co n tam in atio n , in ju ry  an d /o r liab ility , in clu d in g ,

b u t n o t lim ited  to , th e in stallatio n  (an d  rem o v al o n  o r b efo re L ease

ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n ) o f p ro tectiv e m o d ificatio n s (su ch  as co n crete

en casem en ts) an d /o r in creasin g  th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit. (b ) D u ty  to

In fo rm  L esso r. If L essee k n o w s, o r h as reaso n ab ie cau se to  b eliev e, th at a

H azard o u s S u b stan ce h as co m e to  b e lo cated  in , o n , u n d er o r

ab o u t th e P rem ises, o th er th an  as p rev io u sly  co n sen ted  to  b y

L esso r, L essee sh all im m ed iately  g iv e w ritten  n o tice o f su ch  fact to  L esso r, an d

p ro v id e L esso r w ith  a co p y  o f an y  rep o rt, n o tice, claim  o r o th er

d o cu m en tatio n  w h ich  it h as co n cern in g  th e p resen ce o f su ch

H azard o u s S u b stan ce. (c) L essee R em ed iatio n . L essee sh all n o t cau se o r p erm it

an y  H azard o u s S u b stan ce to  b e sp illed  o r released  in , o n , u n d er,

o r ab o u t th e P rem ises (in clu d in g  th ro u g h  th e

p lu m b in g  o r san itary  sew er sy stem ) an d  sh all p ro m p tly , at L essee’s

ex p en se, co m p ly  w ith  all A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts an d  tak e all

in v estig ato ry  an d /o r rem ed ial actio n  reaso n ab ly  reco m m en d ed ,

w h eth er o r n o t fo rm ally  o rd ered  o r req u ired , fo r th e clean u p  o f

an y  co n tam in atio n  o f, an d  fo r th e m ain ten an ce, secu rity  an d /o r

m o n ito rin g  o f th e P rem ises o r n eig h b o rin g  p ro p erties, th at

w as cau sed  o r m aterially  co n trib u ted  to  b y  L essee, o r p ertain in g  to  o r

in v o lv in g  an y  H azard o u s S u b stan ce b ro u g h t

o n to  th e P rem ises d u rin g  th e term  o f th is L ease, b y  o r fo r L essee, o r

an y  th ird  p arty . (d ) L essee In d em n ificatio n . L essee sh all in d em n ify ,

d efen d  an d  h o ld  L esso r, its ag en ts, em p lo y ees, len d ers an d

g ro u n d  lesso r, if an y , h arm less fro m  an d  ag ain st an y  an d  all lo ss o f

ren ts an d /o r d am ag es, liab ilities, ju d g m en ts, claim s, ex p en ses, p en alties, an d

atto rn ey s’ an d  co n su ltan ts’ fees arisin g  o u t o f o r in v o lv in g

an y  H azard o u s S u b stan ce b ro u g h t o n to  th e P rem ises

b y  o r fo r L essee, o r an y  th ird  p arty  (p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at

L essee sh all h av e n o  liab ility  u n d er th is L ease w ith  resp ect to

u n d erg ro u n d  m ig ratio n  o f an y  H azard o u s

S u b stan ce u n d er th e P rem ises fro m  ad jacen t p ro p erties n o t cau sed  o r

co n trib u ted  to  b y  L essee). L essee’s o b lig atio n s sh all in clu d e, b u t

n o t b e lim ited  to , th e effects o f an y  co n tam in atio n  o r in ju ry  to

p erso n , p ro p erty  o r th e en v iro n m en t created  o r su ffered  b y  L essee,

an d  th e co st o f in v estig atio n , rem o v al, rem ed iatio n , resto ratio n

an d /o r ab atem en t, an d  sh all su rv iv e th e ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n

o f th is L ease. N o  term in atio n , can cellatio n  o r release ag reem en t en tered  in to  b y

L esso r an d  L essee sh all release L essee fro m  its o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease w ith  resp ect

to  H azard o u s S u b stan ces, u n less sp ecifically  so  ag reed  b y  L esso r in

w ritin g  at th e tim e o f su ch  ag reem en t. (e) L esso r In d em n ificatio n . L esso r

an d  its su ccesso rs an d  assig n s sh all in d em n ify , d efen d , reim b u rse an d

h o ld  L essee, its em p lo y ees an d  len d ers, h arm less fro m  an d  ag ain st an y

an d  all en v iro n m en tal d am ag es, in clu d in g  th e co st o f

rem ed iatio n , w h ich  resu lt fro m  H azard o u s S u b stan ces w h ich

ex isted  o n  th e P rem ises p rio r to  L essee’s o ccu p an cy  o r w h ich  are cau sed

b y  th e g ro ss n eg lig en ce o r w illfu l m isco n d u ct o f L esso r, its ag en ts

o r em p lo y ees. L esso r’s o b lig atio n s, as an d  w h en  req u ired  b y

th e A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, sh all in clu d e, b u t n o t b e lim ited  to ,

th e co st o f in v estig atio n , rem o v al, rem ed iatio n , resto ratio n  an d /o r

ab atem en t, an d  sh all su rv iv e th e ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is L ease. (f)

In v estig atio n s an d  R em ed iatio n s. L esso r sh all retain  th e resp o n sib ility

an d  p ay  fo r an y  in v estig atio n s o r rem ed iatio n  m easu res req u ired

b y  g o v ern m en tal en tities h av in g  ju risd ictio n  w ith  resp ect to  th e

ex isten ce o f H azard o u s S u b stan ces o n  th e P rem ises p rio r to  L essee’s

o ccu p an cy , u n less su ch  rem ed iatio n  m easu re is req u ired  as a resu lt o f L essee’s u se

(in clu d in g  “A lteratio n s”, as d efin ed  in  p arag rap h  7 .3 (a) b elo w ) o f

th e P rem ises, in  w h ich  ev en t L essee sh all b e resp o n sib le fo r su ch

p ay m en t. L essee sh all co o p erate fu lly  in  an y  su ch  activ ities at th e req u est o f

L esso r, in clu d in g  allo w in g  L esso r an d  L esso r’s ag en ts to  h av e

reaso n ab le access to  th e P rem ises at reaso n ab le tim es in  o rd er to  carry  o u t L esso r’s

in v estig ativ e an d  rem ed ial resp o n sib ilities. (g ) L esso r T erm in atio n

O p tio n . If a H azard o u s S u b stan ce C o n d itio n  (see P arag rap h

9 .1 (e)) o ccu rs d u rin g  th e term  o f th is L ease, u n less L essee is leg ally  resp o n sib le

th erefo r (in  w h ich  case L essee sh all m ak e th e in v estig atio n  an d  rem ed iatio n

th ereo f req u ired  b y  th e A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts an d  th is L ease sh all

co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect, b u t su b ject to  L esso r’s rig h ts u n d er

P arag rap h  6 .2 (d ) an d  P arag rap h  1 3 ), L esso r m ay , at L esso r’s

o p tio n , eith er (i) in v estig ate an d  rem ed iate su ch  H azard o u s S u b stan ce

C o n d itio n , if req u ired , as so o n  as reaso n ab ly  p o ssib le at L esso r’s

ex p en se, in  w h ich  ev en t th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect, o r (ii) if

th e estim ated  co st to  rem ed iate su ch  co n d itio n  ex ceed s 1 2  tim es th e th en

m o n th ly  B ase R en t o r $ 1 0 0 ,0 0 0 , w h ich ev er is g reater,

g iv e w ritten  n o tice to  L essee, w ith in  3 0  d ay s after receip t b y  L esso r o f

k n o w led g e o f th e o ccu rren ce o f su ch  H azard o u s S u b stan ce

C o n d itio n , o f L esso r’s d esire to  term in ate th is L ease as o f th e d ate 6 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  th e d ate o f su ch  n o tice. In  th e ev en t L esso r elects to  g iv e a

term in atio n  n o tice, L essee m ay , w ith in  1 0  d ay s th ereafter, g iv e w ritten

n o tice to  L esso r o f L essee’s co m m itm en t to  p ay  th e am o u n t b y

w h ich  th e co st o f th e rem ed iatio n  o f su ch  H azard o u s S u b stan ce

C o n d itio n  ex ceed s an  am o u n t eq u al to  1 2  tim es th e th en

m o n th ly  B ase R en t o r $ 1 0 0 ,0 0 0 , w h ich ev er is g reater. L essee

sh all p ro v id e L esso r w ith  said  fu n d s o r satisfacto ry  assu ran ce th ereo f

w ith in  3 0  d ay s fo llo w in g  su ch  co m m itm en t. In  su ch

ev en t, th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect, an d  L esso r sh all p ro ceed

to  m ak e su ch  rem ed iatio n  as so o n  as reaso n ab ly  p o ssib le after th e

req u ired  fu n d s are av ailab le. If L essee d o es n o t g iv e su ch  n o tice an d

p ro v id e th e req u ired  fu n d s o r assu ran ce th ereo f w ith in  th e tim e

p ro v id ed , th is L ease sh all term in ate as o f th e d ate sp ecified  in  L esso r’s n o tice o f

term in atio n . 6 .3  L essee’s C o m p lian ce w ith  A p p licab le

R eq u irem en ts. E x cep t as o th erw ise p ro v id ed  in  th is L ease, L essee sh all, at L essee’s

so le ex p en se, fu lly , d ilig en tly  an d  in  a tim ely  m an n er, m aterially

co m p ly  w ith  all A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, th e req u irem en ts o f

an y  ap p licab le fire in su ran ce u n d erw riter o r ratin g  b u reau , an d  th e

reco m m en d atio n s o f L esso r’s en g in eers an d /o r co n su ltan ts

w h ich  relate in  an y  m an n er to  th e su ch  P A G E  4  O F  1 8
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R eq u irem en ts, w ith o u t reg ard  to  w h eth er su ch  R eq u irem en ts are

n o w  in  effect o r b eco m e effectiv e after th e S tart D ate. L essee sh all, w ith in  1 0  d ay s after receip t

o f L esso r’s w ritten  req u est, p ro v id e L esso r w ith  co p ies o f all p erm its an d

o th er d o cu m en ts, an d  o th er in fo rm atio n  ev id en cin g  L essee’s

co m p lian ce w ith  an y  A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts sp ecified  b y

L esso r, an d  sh all im m ed iately  u p o n  receip t, n o tify  L esso r in

w ritin g  (w ith  co p ies o f an y  d o cu m en ts in v o lv ed ) o f

an y  th reaten ed  o r actu al claim , n o tice, citatio n , w arn in g , co m p lain t o r

rep o rt p ertain in g  to  o r in v o lv in g  th e failu re o f L essee o r th e P rem ises

to  co m p ly  w ith  an y  A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts. L ik ew ise, L essee

sh all im m ed iately  g iv e w ritten  n o tice to  L esso r o f: (i) an y  w ater d am ag e to

th e P rem ises an d  an y  su sp ected  seep ag e, p o o lin g , d am p n ess o r

o th er co n d itio n  co n d u civ e to  th e p ro d u ctio n  o f

m o ld ; o r (ii) an y  m u stin ess o r o th er o d o rs th at m ig h t in d icate th e

p resen ce o f m o ld  in  th e P rem ises. 6 .4  In sp ectio n ; C o m p lian ce.

L esso r an d  L esso r’s “L en d er” (as d efin ed  in  P arag rap h  3 0 ) an d

co n su ltan ts sh all h av e th e rig h t to  en ter in to  P rem ises at an y  tim e, in  th e case o f

an  em erg en cy , an d  o th erw ise at reaso n ab le tim es after reaso n ab le n o tice, fo r th e

p u rp o se o f in sp ectin g  th e co n d itio n  o f th e P rem ises an d  fo r

v erify in g  co m p lian ce b y  L essee w ith  th is L ease. T h e co st o f an y

su ch  in sp ectio n s sh all b e p aid  b y  L esso r, u n less a v io latio n  o f

A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, o r a H azard o u s S u b stan ce

C o n d itio n  (see p arag rap h  9 .1 ) is fo u n d  to  ex ist o r b e

im m in en t, o r th e in sp ectio n  is req u ested  o r o rd ered  b y  a

g o v ern m en tal au th o rity . In  su ch  case, L essee sh all u p o n  req u est

reim b u rse L esso r fo r th e co st o f su ch  in sp ectio n , so  lo n g  as su ch

in sp ectio n  is reaso n ab ly  related  to  th e v io latio n  o r co n tam in atio n .

In  ad d itio n , L essee sh all p ro v id e co p ies o f all relev an t m aterial safety  d ata sh eets

(MS D S ) to  L esso r w ith in  1 0  d ay s o f th e receip t o f a w ritten  req u est

th erefo r. 7 . Main ten an ce; R ep airs, U tility  In stallatio n s; T rad e F ix tu res an d

A lteratio n s. 7 .1  L essee’s O b lig atio n s. (a) In  G en eral. S u b ject to  th e

p ro v isio n s o f P arag rap h  2 .2  (C o n d itio n ), 2 .3

(C o m p lian ce), 6 .3  (L essee’s C o m p lian ce w ith  A p p licab le

R eq u irem en ts), 7 .2  (L esso r’s O b lig atio n s), 9  (D am ag e o r

D estru ctio n ), an d  1 4  (C o n d em n atio n ), L essee sh all, at L essee’s so le

ex p en se, k eep  th e P rem ises, U tility  In stallatio n s (in ten d ed  fo r L essee’s ex clu siv e

u se, n o  m atter w h ere lo cated ), an d  A lteratio n s in  g o o d  o rd er,

co n d itio n  an d  rep air (w h eth er o r n o t th e p o rtio n  o f th e

P rem ises req u irin g  rep airs, o r th e m ean s o f rep airin g  th e sam e, are reaso n ab ly  o r

read ily  accessib le to  L essee, an d  w h eth er o r n o t th e n eed  fo r su ch  rep airs o ccu rs as a

resu lt o f L essee’s u se, an y  p rio r u se, th e elem en ts o r th e ag e o f su ch  p o rtio n

o f th e P rem ises), in clu d in g , b u t n o t lim ited  to , all eq u ip m en t o r facilities,

su ch  as p lu m b in g , H V A C  eq u ip m en t, electrical, lig h tin g  facilities,

b o ilers, p ressu re v essels, fire p ro tectio n  sy stem , fix tu res, w alls (in terio r an d  ex terio r),

fo u n d atio n s, ceilin g s, ro o fs, ro o f d rain ag e sy stem s, flo o rs,

w in d o w s, d o o rs, p late g lass, sk y lig h ts, lan d scap in g ,

d riv ew ay s, p ark in g  lo ts, fen ces, retain in g  w alls, sig n s, sid ew alk s an d

p ark w ay s lo cated  in , o n , o r ad jacen t to  th e P rem ises. L essee, in  k eep in g

th e P rem ises in  g o o d  o rd er, co n d itio n  an d  rep air, sh all ex ercise an d

p erfo rm  g o o d  m ain ten an ce p ractices, sp ecifically  in clu d in g  th e

p ro cu rem en t an d  m ain ten an ce o f th e serv ice co n tracts req u ired  b y

P arag rap h  7 .1 (b ) b elo w . L essee’s o b lig atio n s sh all in clu d e

resto ratio n s, rep lacem en ts o r ren ew als w h en  n ecessary  to  k eep  th e P rem ises an d  all

im p ro v em en ts th ereo n  o r a p art th ereo f in  g o o d  o rd er,

co n d itio n  an d  state o f rep air. L essee sh all, d u rin g  th e term  o f th is L ease, k eep

th e ex terio r ap p earan ce o f th e B u ild in g  in  a first-class co n d itio n

(in clu d in g , e.g . g raffiti rem o v al) co n sisten t w ith  th e ex terio r ap p earan ce o f

o th er sim ilar facilities o f co m p arab le ag e an d  size in  th e v icin ity , in clu d in g ,

w h en  n ecessary , th e ex terio r rep ain tin g  o f th e B u ild in g . (b ) S erv ice

C o n tracts. L essee sh all, at L essee’s so le ex p en se, p ro cu re an d  m ain tain  co n tracts, w ith

co p ies to  L esso r, in  cu sto m ary  fo rm  an d  su b stan ce fo r, an d  w ith

co n tracto rs sp ecializin g  an d  ex p erien ced  in  th e m ain ten an ce o f th e

fo llo w in g  eq u ip m en t an d  im p ro v em en ts, if an y , if an d

w h en  in stalled  o n  th e P rem ises: (i) H V A C  eq u ip m en t, (ii) b o iler,

an d  p ressu re v essels, (iii) fire ex tin g u ish in g  sy stem s, in clu d in g  fire alarm

an d /o r sm o k e d etectio n , (iv ) lan d scap in g  an d  irrig atio n  sy stem s,

(v ) ro o f co v erin g  an d  d rain s, an d  (v i) clarifiers. * (S ee attach m en t) in itials (c) F ailu re

to  P erfo rm . If L essee fails to  p erfo rm  L essee’s o b lig atio n s u n d er th is

P arag rap h  7 .1 , L esso r m ay  en ter u p o n  th e P rem ises after 1 0  d ay s’

p rio r w ritten  n o tice to  L essee (ex cep t in  th e case o f an  em erg en cy , in  w h ich  case

n o  n o tice sh all b e req u ired ), p erfo rm  su ch  o b lig atio n s o n  L essee’s

b eh alf, an d  p u t th e P rem ises in  g o o d  o rd er, co n d itio n

an d  rep air, an d  L essee sh all p ro m p tly  p ay  to  L esso r a su m  eq u al to

1 1 5 %  o f th e co st th ereo f. (d ) R ep lacem en t. S u b ject to  L essee’s

in d em n ificatio n  o f L esso r as set fo rth  in  P arag rap h  8 .7  b elo w ,

an d  w ith o u t reliev in g  L essee o f liab ility  resu ltin g  fro m  L essee’s failu re to  ex ercise

an d  p erfo rm  g o o d  m ain ten an ce p ractices, if an  item  d escrib ed  in

P arag rap h  7 .1 (b ) can n o t b e rep aired  o th er th an  at a co st w h ich  is in

ex cess o f 5 0 %  o f th e co st o f rep lacin g  su ch  item , th en  su ch  item  sh all b e

rep laced  b y  L esso r, an d  th e co st th ereo f sh all b e p ro rated  b etw een  th e P arties

an d  L essee sh all o n ly  b e o b lig ated  to  p ay , each  m o n th

d u rin g  th e rem ain d er o f th e term  o f th is L ease, o n  th e d ate o n

w h ich  B ase R en t is d u e, an  am o u n t eq u al to  th e p ro d u ct o f

m u ltip ly in g  th e co st o f su ch  rep lacem en t b y  a fractio n , th e

n u m erato r o f w h ich  is o n e, an d  th e d en o m in ato r o f

w h ich  is 1 4 4  (ie. 1 /1 4 4 th  o f th e co st p er m o n th ). L essee sh all

p ay  in terest o n  th e u n am o rtized  b alan ce b u t m ay  p rep ay  its

o b lig atio n  at an y  tim e. 7 .2  L esso r’s O b lig atio n s. S u b ject to  th e

p ro v isio n s o f P arag rap h s 2 .2  (C o n d itio n ), 2 .3

(C o m p lian ce), 9  (D am ag e o r D estru ctio n ) an d  1 4

(C o n d em n atio n ), it is in ten d ed  b y  th e P arties h ereto  th at L esso r

h av e n o  o b lig atio n , in  an y  m an n er w h atso ev er, to  rep air

an d  m ain tain  th e P rem ises, o r th e eq u ip m en t th erein , all o f w h ich

o b lig atio n s are in ten d ed  to  b e th at o f th e L essee. It is th e in ten tio n  o f th e

P arties th at th e term s o f th is L ease g o v ern  th e resp ectiv e o b lig atio n s o f th e P arties as

to  m ain ten an ce an d  rep air o f th e P rem ises, an d  th ey  ex p ressly  w aiv e th e

b en efit o f an y  statu te n o w  o r h ereafter in  effect to  th e ex ten t it is in co n sisten t w ith

th e term s o f th is L ease. 7 .3  U tility  In stallatio n s; T rad e F ix tu res; A lteratio n s. (a)

D efin itio n s. T h e term  “U tility  In stallatio n s” refers to  all flo o r an d  w in d o w

co v erin g s, air an d /o r v acu u m  lin es, p o w er p an els, electrical d istrib u tio n ,

secu rity  an d  fire p ro tectio n  sy stem s, co m m u n icatio n  cab lin g ,

lig h tin g  fix tu res, H V A C  eq u ip m en t, p lu m b in g ,

an d  fen cin g  in  o r o n  th e P rem ises. T h e term  “T rad e F ix tu res” sh all

m ean  L essee’s m ach in ery  an d  eq u ip m en t th at can  b e rem o v ed

w ith o u t d o in g  m aterial d am ag e to  th e P rem ises. T h e term  “A lteratio n s”

sh all m ean  an y  m o d ificatio n  o f th e im p ro v em en ts, o th er th an

U tility  In stallatio n s o r T rad e F ix tu res, w h eth er b y  ad d itio n  o r

d eletio n . “L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d /o r U tility  In stallatio n s” are d efin ed  as

A lteratio n s an d /o r U tility  In stallatio n s m ad e b y  L essee th at are n o t y et

o w n ed  b y  L esso r p u rsu an t to  P arag rap h  7 .4 (a). (b )

C o n sen t. L essee sh all n o t m ak e an y  A lteratio n s o r U tility  In stallatio n s to

th e P rem ises w ith o u t L esso r’s p rio r w ritten  co n sen t. L essee m ay ,

h o w ev er, m ak e n o n -stru ctu ral U tility  In stallatio n s to  th e in terio r o f th e

P rem ises (ex clu d in g  th e ro o f) w ith o u t su ch  co n sen t b u t

u p o n  n o tice to  L esso r, as lo n g  as th ey  are n o t v isib le fro m  th e

o u tsid e, d o  n o t in v o lv e p u n ctu rin g , relo catin g  o r

rem o v in g  th e ro o f o r an y  ex istin g  w alls, w ill n o t affect th e electrical,

p lu m b in g , H V A C , an d /o r life safety  sy stem s, an d  th e

cu m u lativ e co st th ereo f d u rin g  th is L ease as ex ten d ed  d o es n o t

ex ceed  a su m  eq u al to  3  m o n th ’s B ase R en t in  th e

N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , L essee sh all n o t P A G E
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m ak e o r p erm it an y  ro o f p en etratio n s an d /o r in stall an y th in g

o n  th e ro o f w ith o u t th e p rio r w ritten  ap p ro v al o f L esso r.

L esso r m ay , as a p reco n d itio n  to  g ran tin g  su ch  ap p ro v al,

req u ire L essee to  u tilize a co n tracto r ch o sen  an d /o r ap p ro v ed  b y

L esso r. A n y  A lteratio n s o r U tility  In stallatio n s th at L essee sh all d esire to  m ak e

an d  w h ich  req u ire th e co n sen t o f th e L esso r sh all b e p resen ted  to

L esso r in  w ritten  fo rm  w ith  d etailed  p lan s. C o n sen t sh all b e d eem ed

co n d itio n ed  u p o n  L essee’s: (i) acq u irin g  ail ap p licab le

g o v ern m en tal p erm its, (ii) fu rn ish in g  L esso r w ith  co p ies o f

b o th  th e p erm its an d  th e p lan s an d  sp ecificatio n s p rio r to

co m m en cem en t o f th e w o rk , an d  (iii) co m p lian ce w ith  all

co n d itio n s o f said  p erm its an d  o th er A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts

in  a p ro m p t an d  ex p ed itio u s m an n er. A n y  A lteratio n s o r

U tility  In stallatio n s sh all b e p erfo rm ed  in  a w o rk m an lik e m an n er

w ith  g o o d  an d  su fficien t m aterials. L essee sh all p ro m p tly  u p o n

co m p letio n  fu rn ish  L esso r w ith  as-b u ilt p lan s an d  sp ecificatio n s.

F o r w o rk  w h ich  co sts an  am o u n t in  ex cess o f o n e

m o n th ’s B ase R en t, L esso r m ay  co n d itio n  its co n sen t

u p o n  L essee p ro v id in g  a lien  an d  co m p letio n

b o n d  in  an  am o u n t eq u al to  1 5 0 %  o f th e estim ated  co st

o f su ch  A lteratio n  o r U tility  in stallatio n  an d /o r u p o n  L essee’s

p o stin g  an  ad d itio n al S ecu rity  D ep o sit w ith  L esso r. In itials (c) L ien s;

B o n d s. L essee sh all p ay , w h en  d u e, all claim s fo r lab o r o r m aterials

fu rn ish ed  o r alleg ed  to  h av e b een  fu rn ish ed  to  o r fo r L essee at o r fo r

u se o n  th e P rem ises, w h ich  claim s are o r m ay  b e secu red  b y  an y

m ech an ic’s o r m aterialm en ’s lien  ag ain st th e P rem ises o r an y  in terest th erein . L essee sh all

g iv e L esso r n o t less th an  1 0  d ay s n o tice p rio r to  th e

co m m en cem en t o f an y  w o rk  in , o n  o r ab o u t th e P rem ises,

an d  L esso r sh all h av e th e rig h t to  p o st n o tices o f n o n -

resp o n sib ility . If L essee sh all co n test th e v alid ity  o f an y  su ch  lien , claim  o r

d em an d , th en  L essee sh all, at its so le ex p en se d efen d  an d  p ro tect itself. L esso r

an d  th e P rem ises ag ain st th e sam e an d  sh all p ay  an d  satisfy  an y  su ch

ad v erse ju d g m en t th at m ay  b e ren d ered  th ereo n  b efo re th e

en fo rcem en t th ereo f. If L esso r sh all req u ire, L essee sh all fu rn ish  a su rety  b o n d

in  an  am o u n t eq u al to  1 5 0 %  o f th e am o u n t o f su ch

co n tested  lien , claim  o r d em an d , in d em n ify in g  L esso r ag ain st

liab ility  fo r th e sam e. If L esso r elects to  p articip ate in  an y  su ch  actio n , L essee sh all p ay

L esso r’s reaso n ab le atto rn ey s’ fees an d  co sts. In itials 7 .4  O w n ersh ip ;

R em o v al; S u rren d er; an d  R esto ratio n . (a) O w n ersh ip . S u b ject

to  L esso r’s rig h t to  req u ire rem o v al o r elect o w n ersh ip  as h erein after

p ro v id ed , all A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s m ad e b y  L essee sh all b e

th e p ro p erty  o f L essee, b u t co n sid ered  a p art o f th e P rem ises. L esso r m ay , at

an y  tim e, elect in  w ritin g  to  b e th e o w n er o f all o r an y  sp ecified  p art o f th e

L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s. U n less o th erw ise

in stru cted  p er p arag rap h  7 .4 (b ) h ereo f, all L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s

an d  U tility  In stallatio n s sh all, at th e ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is L ease,

b eco m e th e p ro p erty  o f L esso r an d  b e su rren d ered  b y  L essee

w ith  th e P rem ises. (b ) R em o v al. B y  d eliv ery  to  L essee o f w ritten  n o tice

fro m  L esso r n o t earlier th an  9 0  an d  n o t later th an  3 0  d ay s p rio r

to  th e en d  o f th e term  o f th is L ease, L esso r m ay  req u ire th at an y  o r all L essee

O w n ed  A lteratio n s o r U tility  In stallatio n s b e rem o v ed  b y  th e

ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is L ease. L esso r m ay  req u ire th e rem o v al at

an y  tim e o f all o r an y  p art o f an y  L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s o r U tility

In stallatio n s m ad e w ith o u t th e req u ired  co n sen t. (c) S u rren d er;

R esto ratio n . L essee sh all su rren d er th e P rem ises b y  th e E x p iratio n  D ate o r

an y  earlier term in atio n  d ate, w ith  all o f th e im p ro v em en ts, p arts an d  su rfaces

th ereo f b ro o m  clean  an d  free o f d eb ris, an d  in  g o o d

o p eratin g  o rd er, co n d itio n  an d  state o f rep air, o rd in ary  w ear an d  tear

ex cep ted . “O rd in ary  w ear an d  tear” sh all n o t in clu d e an y  d am ag e o r

d eterio ratio n  th at w o u ld  h av e b een  p rev en ted  b y

g o o d  m ain ten an ce p ractice. N o tw ith stan d in g  th e

fo reg o in g , if th is L ease is fo r 1 2  m o n th s o r less, th en  L essee sh all su rren d er

th e P rem ises in  th e sam e co n d itio n  as d eliv ered  to  L essee o n  th e S tart D ate

w ith  N O  allo w an ce fo r o rd in ary  w ear an d  tear. L essee sh all rep air an y

d am ag e o ccasio n ed  b y  th e in stallatio n , m ain ten an ce o r rem o v al o f

T rad e F ix tu res, L essee o w n ed  A lteratio n s an d /o r U tility  In stallatio n s,

fu rn ish in g s, an d  eq u ip m en t as w ell as th e rem o v al o f an y  sto rag e

tan k  in stalled  b y  o r fo r L essee. L essee sh all co m p letely  rem o v e fro m  th e

P rem ises an y  an d  all H azard o u s S u b stan ces b ro u g h t o n to

th e P rem ises b y  o r fo r L essee, o r an y  th ird  p arty  (ex cep t H azard o u s

S u b stan ces w h ich  w ere d ep o sited  v ia u n d erg ro u n d

m ig ratio n  fro m  areas o u tsid e o f th e P rem ises, o r if ap p licab le, th e P rem ises) ev en  if

su ch  rem o v al w o u ld  req u ire L essee to  p erfo rm  o r p ay  fo r

w o rk  th at ex ceed s statu to ry  req u irem en ts. T rad e F ix tu res sh all rem ain  th e

p ro p erty  o f L essee an d  sh all b e rem o v ed  b y  L essee. A n y

p erso n al p ro p erty  o f L essee n o t rem o v ed  o n  o r b efo re th e

E x p iratio n  D ate o r an y  earlier term in atio n  d ate sh all b e d eem ed  to  h av e

b een  ab an d o n ed  b y  L essee an d  m ay  b e d isp o sed  o f o r

retain ed  b y  L esso r as L esso r m ay  d esire. T h e failu re b y  L essee to  tim ely  v acate th e

P rem ises p u rsu an t to  th is P arag rap h  7 .4 (c) w ith o u t th e ex p ress

w ritten  co n sen t o f L esso r sh all co n stitu te a h o ld o v er u n d er th e

p ro v isio n s o f P arag rap h  2 6  b elo w . 8 . In su ran ce;

In d em n ity . 8 .1  P ay m en t F o r In su ran ce. L essee sh all p ay  fo r all

in su ran ce req u ired  u n d er P arag rap h  8  ex cep t to  th e ex ten t o f th e

co st attrib u tab le to  liab ility  in su ran ce carried  b y  L esso r u n d er P arag rap h

8 .2 (b ) in  ex cess o f $ 2 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  p er o ccu rren ce. P rem iu m s

fo r p o licy  p erio d s co m m en cin g  p rio r to  o r ex ten d in g

b ey o n d  th e L ease term  sh all b e p ro rated  to  co rresp o n d  to  th e L ease

term . P ay m en t sh all b e m ad e b y  L essee to  L esso r w ith in  1 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  receip t o f an  in v o ice. 8 .2  L iab ility  In su ran ce. (a) C arried

b y  L essee. L essee sh all o b tain  an d  k eep  in  fo rce a C o m m ercial G en eral

L iab ility  p o licy  o f in su ran ce p ro tectin g  L essee an d  L esso r as an

ad d itio n al in su red  ag ain st claim s fo r b o d ily  in ju ry , p erso n al

in ju ry  an d  p ro p erty  d am ag e b ased  u p o n  o r arisin g

o u t o f th e o w n ersh ip , u se, o ccu p an cy  o r m ain ten an ce o f th e

P rem ises an d  all areas ap p u rten an t th ereto . S u ch  in su ran ce sh all b e o n  an

o ccu rren ce b asis p ro v id in g  sin g le lim it co v erag e in  an  am o u n t

n o t less th an  $ 1 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0  p er o ccu rren ce w ith  an  an n u al

ag g reg ate o f n o t less th an  $ 2 ,0 0 0 ,0 0 0 . L essee sh all ad d  L esso r as

an  ad d itio n al in su red  b y  m ean s o f an  en d o rsem en t at least as b ro ad  as

th e In su ran ce S erv ice O rg an izatio n ’s “A d d itio n al In su red -Man ag ers

o r L esso rs o f P rem ises” E n d o rsem en t. T h e p o licy  sh all n o t

co n tain  an y  in tra-in su red  ex clu sio n s as b etw een  in su red  p erso n s

o r o rg an izatio n s, b u t sh all in clu d e co v erag e fo r liab ility  assu m ed

u n d er th is L ease as an  “in su red  co n tract” fo r th e p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s

in d em n ity  o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease. T h e lim its o f said

in su ran ce sh all n o t, h o w ev er, lim it th e liab ility  o f L essee n o r reliev e L essee o f

an y  o b lig atio n  h ereu n d er. L essee sh all p ro v id e an

en d o rsem en t o n  its liab ility  p o licy (ies) w h ich  p ro v id es th at its

in su ran ce sh all b e p rim ary  to  an d  n o t co n trib u to ry  w ith

an y  sim ilar in su ran ce carried  b y  L esso r, w h o se in su ran ce sh all b e

co n sid ered  ex cess in su ran ce o n ly . In itials (b ) C arried  b y  L esso r. L esso r sh all

m ain tain  liab ility  in su ran ce as d escrib ed  in  P arag rap h  8 .2 (a), in

ad d itio n  to , an d  n o t in  lieu  o f, th e in su ran ce req u ired  to  b e

m ain tain ed  b y  L essee. L essee sh all n o t b e n am ed  as an  ad d itio n al

in su red  th erein . 8 .3  P ro p erty  In su ran ce - B u ild in g ,

Im p ro v em en ts an d  R en tal V alu e. (a) B u ild in g  an d

Im p ro v em en ts. T h e In su rin g  P arty  sh all o b tain  an d  k eep

in  fo rce a p o licy  o r p o licies in  th e n am e o f L esso r, w ith  lo ss p ay ab le to

L esso r, an y  g ro u n d -lesso r, an d  to  an y  L en d er in su rin g

lo ss o r d am ag e to  th e P rem ises. T h e am o u n t o f su ch  in su ran ce sh all

b e eq u al to  th e fu ll in su rab le rep lacem en t co st o f th e P rem ises, as th e sam e sh all ex ist

fro m  tim e to  tim e, o r th e am o u n t req u ired  b y  an y  L en d er,

b u t in  n o  ev en t m o re th an  th e co m m ercially  reaso n ab le an d

av ailab le in su rab le v alu e th ereo f. If L esso r is th e In su rin g  P arty , h o w ev er,

L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s, T rad e F ix tu res, an d

L essee’s p erso n al p ro p erty  sh all b e in su red  b y  L essee u n d er

P arag rap h  8 .4  rath er th an  b y  L esso r. If th e. P A G E  6  O F
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co v erag e is av ailab le an d  co m m ercially  ap p ro p riate, su ch  p o licy  o r

p o licies sh all in su re ag ain st all risk s o f d irect p h y sical lo ss o r d am ag e (ex cep t th e p erils

o f flo o d  an d /o r earth q u ak e u n less req u ired  b y  a L en d er),

in clu d in g  co v erag e fo r d eb ris rem o v al an d  th e en fo rcem en t o f

an y  A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts req u irin g  th e u p g rad in g ,

d em o litio n , reco n stru ctio n  o r rep lacem en t o f an y  p o rtio n  o f

th e P rem ises as th e resu lt o f a co v ered  lo ss. S aid  p o licy  o r p o licies sh all also

co n tain  an  ag reed  v alu atio n  p ro v isio n  in  lieu  o f an y

co in su ran ce clau se, w aiv er o f su b ro g atio n , an d  in flatio n  g u ard

p ro tectio n  cau sin g  an  in crease in  th e an n u al p ro p erty  in su ran ce

co v erag e am o u n t b y  a facto r o f n o t less th an  th e ad ju sted  U .S .

D ep artm en t o f L ab o r C o n su m er P rice In d ex  fo r A ll U rb an

C o n su m ers fo r th e city  n earest to  w h ere th e P rem ises are lo cated . If su ch  in su ran ce

co v erag e h as a d ed u ctib le clau se, th e d ed u ctib le am o u n t sh all n o t

ex ceed  $ 1 ,0 0 0  p er o ccu rren ce, an d  L essee sh all b e liab le fo r su ch

d ed u ctib le am o u n t in  th e ev en t o f an  In su red  L o ss. (b ) R en tal

V alu e. T h e In su rin g  P arty  sh all o b tain  an d  k eep  in  fo rce a

p o licy  o r p o licies in  th e n am e o f L esso r w ith  lo ss p ay ab le to  L esso r

an d  an y  L en d er, in su rin g  th e lo ss o f th e fu ll R en t fo r o n e y ear

w ith  an  ex ten d ed  p erio d  o f in d em n ity  fo r an  ad d itio n al

1 8 0  d ay s (“R en tal V alu e in su ran ce”). S aid  in su ran ce sh all co n tain  an

ag reed  v alu atio n  p ro v isio n  in  lieu  o f an y  co in su ran ce clau se,

an d  th e am o u n t o f co v erag e sh all b e ad ju sted  an n u ally  to  reflect th e

p ro jected  R en t o th erw ise p ay ab le b y  L essee, fo r th e n ex t 1 2

m o n th  p erio d . L essee sh all b e liab le fo r an y  d ed u ctib le am o u n t

in  th e ev en t o f su ch  lo ss. (c) A d jacen t P rem ises. If th e P rem ises are p art o f a larg er

b u ild in g , o r o f a g ro u p  o f b u ild in g s o w n ed

b y  L esso r w h ich  are ad jacen t to  th e P rem ises, th e L essee sh all p ay  fo r an y  in crease

in  th e p rem iu m s fo r th e p ro p erty  in su ran ce o f su ch

b u ild in g  o r b u ild in g s if said  in crease is cau sed  b y  L essee’s acts, o m issio n s,

u se o r o ccu p an cy  o f th e P rem ises. 8 .4  L essee’s P ro p erty ; B u sin ess

In terru p tio n  In su ran ce. (a) P ro p erty  D am ag e. L essee sh all o b tain  an d

m ain tain  in su ran ce co v erag e o n  all o f L essee’s p erso n al p ro p erty , T rad e

F ix tu res, an d  L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s.

S u ch  in su ran ce sh all b e fu ll rep lacem en t co st co v erag e w ith  a d ed u ctib le

o f n o t to  ex ceed  $ 1 ,0 0 0  p er o ccu rren ce. L essee sh all p ro v id e

L esso r w ith  w ritten  ev id en ce th at su ch  in su ran ce is in  fo rce. In itials (b ) B u sin ess

In terru p tio n . L essee sh all o b tain  an d  m ain tain  lo ss o f in co m e an d

ex tra ex p en se in su ran ce in  am o u n ts as w ill reim b u rse L essee fo r d irect o r in d irect

lo ss o f earn in g s attrib u tab le to  all p erils co m m o n ly  in su red  ag ain st

b y  p ru d en t lessees in  th e b u sin ess o f L essee o r attrib u tab le to

p rev en tio n  o f access to  th e P rem ises as a resu lt o f su ch  p erils. (c) N o  R ep resen tatio n

o f A d eq u ate C o v erag e. L esso r m ak es n o  rep resen tatio n  th at th e lim its

o r fo rm s o f co v erag e o f in su ran ce sp ecified  h erein  are ad eq u ate to  co v er L essee’s

p ro p erty , b u sin ess o p eratio n s o r o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease.

8 .5  In su ran ce P o licies. In su ran ce req u ired  h erein  sh all b e b y

co m p an ies d u ly  licen sed  o r ad m itted  to  tran sact b u sin ess in  th e state w h ere

th e P rem ises are lo cated , an d  m ain tain in g  d u rin g  th e p o licy  term  a

“G en eral P o licy h o ld ers R atin g ” o f at least A -, V I, as set fo rth  in  th e m o st cu rren t

issu e o f “B est’s In su ran ce G u id e”, o r su ch  o th er ratin g  as m ay  b e req u ired

b y  a L en d er. L essee sh all n o t d o  o r p erm it to  b e d o n e

an y th in g  w h ich  in v alid ates th e req u ired  in su ran ce p o licies. L essee sh all,

p rio r to  th e S tart D ate, d eliv er to  L esso r certified  co p ies o f p o licies o f su ch

in su ran ce o r certificates ev id en cin g  th e ex isten ce an d  am o u n ts o f th e

req u ired  in su ran ce. N o  su ch  p o licy  sh all b e can celab le o r su b ject to

m o d ificatio n  ex cep t after 3 0  d ay s p rio r w ritten  n o tice to  L esso r. L essee sh all, at least

1 0  d ay s p rio r to  th e ex p iratio n  o f su ch  p o licies, fu rn ish  L esso r

w ith  ev id en ce o f ren ew als o r “in su ran ce b in d ers” ev id en cin g  ren ew al

th ereo f, o r L esso r m ay  o rd er su ch  in su ran ce an d  ch arg e th e co st th ereo f

to  L essee, w h ich  am o u n t sh all b e p ay ab le b y  L essee to  L esso r

u p o n  d em an d . S u ch  p o licies sh all b e fo r a term  o f at least o n e y ear, o r

th e len g th  o f th e rem ain in g  term  o f th is L ease, w h ich ev er is less. If eith er P arty  sh all fail

to  p ro cu re an d  m ain tain  th e in su ran ce req u ired  to  b e carried  b y  it, th e

o th er P arty  m ay , b u t sh all n o t b e req u ired  to , p ro cu re an d

m ain tain  th e sam e. 8 .6  Waiv er o f S u b ro g atio n . With o u t

affectin g  an y  o th er rig h ts o r rem ed ies, L essee an d  L esso r each  h ereb y  release an d

reliev e th e o th er, an d  w aiv e th eir en tire rig h t to  reco v er d am ag es ag ain st th e

o th er, fo r lo ss o f o r d am ag e to  its p ro p erty  arisin g  o u t o f o r

in cid en t to  th e p erils req u ired  to  b e in su red  ag ain st h erein . T h e effect o f

su ch  releases an d  w aiv ers is n o t lim ited  b y  th e am o u n t o f in su ran ce carried

o r req u ired , o r b y  an y  d ed u ctib les ap p licab le h ereto . T h e P arties ag ree

to  h av e th eir resp ectiv e p ro p erty  d am ag e in su ran ce carriers w aiv e an y  rig h t

to  su b ro g atio n  th at su ch  co m p an ies m ay  h av e ag ain st L esso r

o r L essee, as th e case m ay  b e, so  lo n g  as th e in su ran ce is n o t in v alid ated

th ereb y . 8 .7  In d em n ity . E x cep t fo r L esso r’s g ro ss n eg lig en ce

o r w illfu l m isco n d u ct, L essee sh all in d em n ify , p ro tect, d efen d  an d

h o ld  h arm less th e P rem ises, L esso r an d  its ag en ts, L esso r’s m aster o r

g ro u n d  lesso r, p artn ers an d  L en d ers, fro m  an d  ag ain st an y

an d  all claim s, lo ss o f ren ts an d /o r d am ag es, lien s, ju d g m en ts, p en alties,

atto rn ey s’ an d  co n su ltan ts’ fees, ex p en ses an d /o r liab ilities arisin g  o u t o f,

in v o lv in g , o r in  co n n ectio n  w ith , th e u se an d /o r

o ccu p an cy  o f th e P rem ises b y  L essee. If an y  actio n  o r p ro ceed in g  is

b ro u g h t ag ain st L esso r b y  reaso n  o f an y  o f th e

fo reg o in g  m atters, L essee sh all u p o n  n o tice d efen d  th e sam e at L essee’s

ex p en se b y  co u n sel reaso n ab ly  satisfacto ry  to  L esso r an d  L esso r sh all

co o p erate w ith  L essee in  su ch  d efen se. L esso r n eed  n o t h av e first p aid

an y  su ch  claim  in  o rd er to  b e d efen d ed  o r in d em n ified . 8 .8

E x em p tio n  o f L esso r an d  its A g en ts fro m  L iab ility .

N o tw ith stan d in g  th e n eg lig en ce o r b reach  o f th is L ease b y

L esso r o r its ag en ts, n eith er L esso r n o r its ag en ts sh all b e liab le u n d er an y

circu m stan ces fo r: (i) in ju ry  o r d am ag e to  th e p erso n  o r g o o d s, w ares,

m erch an d ise o r o th er p ro p erty  o f L essee, L essee’s em p lo y ees, co n tracto rs,

in v itees, cu sto m ers, o r an y  o th er p erso n  in  o r ab o u t th e P rem ises,

w h eth er su ch  d am ag e o r in ju ry  is cau sed  b y  o r resu lts fro m  fire, steam , electricity ,

g as, w ater o r rain , in d o o r air q u ality , o r fro m  th e b reak ag e, leak ag e,

o b stru ctio n  o r o th er d efects o f p ip es, fire sp rin k lers, w ires, ap p lian ces,

p lu m b in g , H V A C  o r lig h tin g  fix tu res, o r fro m  an y

o th er cau se, w h eth er th e said  in ju ry  o r d am ag e resu lts fro m

co n d itio n s arisin g  u p o n  th e P rem ises o r u p o n  o th er

p o rtio n s o f th e b u ild in g  o f w h ich  th e P rem ises are a p art, o r fro m

o th er so u rces o r p laces, (ii) an y  d am ag es arisin g  fro m  an y  act o r n eg lect o f

an y  o th er ten an t o f L esso r o r fro m  th e failu re o f L esso r o r its ag en ts to

en fo rce th e p ro v isio n s o f an y  o th er lease in  th e P ro ject, o r (iii) in ju ry  to

L essee’s b u sin ess o r fo r an y  lo ss o f in co m e o r p ro fit th erefro m . In stead , it is

in ten d ed  th at L essee’s so le reco u rse in  th e ev en t o f su ch  d am ag es o r

in ju ry  b e to  file a claim  o n  th e in su ran ce p o licy (ies) th at L essee is req u ited  to

m ain tain  p u rsu an t to  th e p ro v isio n s o f p arag rap h  8 . In itials

8 .9  F ailu re to  P ro v id e In su ran ce. L essee ack n o w led g es th at an y

failu re o n  its p art to  o b tain  o r m ain tain  th e in su ran ce req u ired  h erein  w ill

ex p o se L esso r to  risk s an d  p o ten tially  cau se L esso r to  in cu r co sts n o t

co n tem p lated  b y  th is L ease, th e ex ten t o f w h ich  w ill b e ex trem ely

d ifficu lt to  ascertain . A cco rd in g ly , fo r an y  m o n th  o r p o rtio n

th ereo f th at L essee d o es n o t m ain tain  th e req u ired  in su ran ce an d /o r

d o es n o t p ro v id e L esso r w ith  th e req u ired  b in d ers o r certificates

ev id en cin g  th e ex isten ce o f th e req u ired  in su ran ce, th e B ase R en t sh all b e

au to m atically  in creased , w ith o u t an y  req u irem en t fo r n o tice to  L essee,

b y  an  am o u n t eq u al to  1 0 %  o f th e th en  ex istin g  B ase

R en t o r $ 1 0 0 , w h ich ev er is g reater. T h e p arties ag ree th at su ch  in crease in  B ase

R en t rep resen ts fair an d  reaso n ab le co m p en satio n  fo r th e ad d itio n al

risk /co sts th at L esso r w ill in cu r b y  reaso n  o f L essee’s failu re to  m ain tain  th e

req u ired  in su ran ce. S u ch  in crease in  B ase R en t sh all in  n o  ev en t

co n stitu te a w aiv er o f L essee’s D efau lt o r B reach  w ith  resp ect to  th e failu re to  m ain tain

su ch  in su ran ce, p rev en t th e ex ercise o f an y  o f th e o th er rig h ts an d

rem ed ies g ran ted  h ereu n d er, n o r reliev e L essee o f its o b lig atio n  to

m ain tain  th e in su ran ce sp ecified  in  th is L ease. P A G E  7  O F  1 8
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9 . D am ag e o r D estru ctio n . 9 .1  D efin itio n s. (a) “P rem ises P artial D am ag e” sh all

m ean  d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  to  th e im p ro v em en ts o n  th e

P rem ises, o th er th an  L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s,

w h ich  can  reaso n ab ly  b e rep aired  in  6  m o n th s o r less fro m  th e d ate

o f th e d am ag e o r d estru ctio n . L esso r sh all n o tify  L essee in  w ritin g

w ith in  3 0  d ay s fro m  th e d ate o f th e d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  as to

w h eth er o r n o t th e d am ag e is P artial o r T o tal. N o tw ith stan d in g

th e fo reg o in g , P rem ises P artial D am ag e sh all n o t in clu d e d am ag e to

w in d o w s, d o o rs, an d /o r o th er sim ilar item s w h ich  L essee h as th e

resp o n sib ility  to  rep air o r rep lace p u rsu an t to  th e p ro v isio n s o f

P arag rap h  7 .1 ., ex cep t as p ro v id ed  in  S ectio n  7 ,1  (d ) In itials (b )

“P rem ises T o tal D estru ctio n ” sh all m ean  d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  to  th e

P rem ises, o th er th an  L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s

an d  T rad e F ix tu res, w h ich  can n o t reaso n ab ly  b e rep aired  in  6

m o n th s o r less fro m  th e d ate o f th e d am ag e o r d estru ctio n . L esso r sh all

n o tify  L essee in  w ritin g  w ith in  3 0  d ay s fro m  th e d ate o f th e

d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  as to  w h eth er o r n o t th e d am ag e is P artial o r

T o tal. (c) “In su red  L o ss” sh all m ean  d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  to

im p ro v em en ts o n  th e P rem ises, o th er th an  L essee O w n ed

A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s an d  T rad e F ix tu res, w h ich  w as

cau sed  b y  an  ev en t req u ired  to  b e co v ered  b y  th e in su ran ce

d escrib ed  in  P arag rap h  8 .3 (a), irresp ectiv e o f an y  d ed u ctib le

am o u n ts o r co v erag e lim its in v o lv ed . (d ) “R ep lacem en t C o st” sh all

m ean  th e co st to  rep air o r reb u ild  th e im p ro v em en ts o w n ed

b y  L esso r at th e tim e o f th e o ccu rren ce to  th eir co n d itio n  ex istin g

im m ed iately  p rio r th ereto , in clu d in g  d em o litio n , d eb ris

rem o v al an d  u p g rad in g  req u ired  b y  th e o p eratio n  o f

A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, an d  w ith o u t d ed u ctio n  fo r

d ep reciatio n . (e) “H azard o u s S u b stan ce C o n d itio n ” sh all m ean  th e

o ccu rren ce o r d isco v ery  o f a co n d itio n  in v o lv in g  th e

p resen ce o f, o r a co n tam in atio n  b y , a H azard o u s S u b stan ce as

d efin ed  in  P arag rap h  6 .2 (a), in , o n , o r u n d er th e P rem ises

w h ich  req u ires rep air, rem ed iatio n , o r resto ratio n . 9 .2  P artial D am ag e -

In su red  L o ss. If a P rem ises P artial D am ag e th at is an  In su red  L o ss o ccu rs, th en

L esso r sh all, at L esso r’s ex p en se, rep air su ch  d am ag e (b u t n o t L essee’s T rad e

F ix tu res o r L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s) as so o n  as

reaso n ab ly  p o ssib le an d  th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect;

p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at L essee sh all, at L esso r’s electio n , m ak e th e rep air o f

an y  d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  th e to tal co st to  rep air o f w h ich  is

$ 1 0 ,0 0 0  o r less, an d , in  su ch  ev en t, L esso r sh all m ak e an y

ap p licab le in su ran ce p ro ceed s av ailab le to  L essee o n  a reaso n ab le b asis fo r th at

p u rp o se. N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , if th e req u ired

in su ran ce w as n o t in  fo rce o r th e in su ran ce p ro ceed s are n o t su fficien t to  effect

su ch  rep air, th e In su rin g  P arty  sh all p ro m p tly  co n trib u te th e

sh o rtag e in  p ro ceed s (ex cep t as to  th e d ed u ctib le w h ich  is L essee’s

resp o n sib ility ) as an d  w h en  req u ired  to  co m p lete said  rep airs. In  th e

ev en t, h o w ev er, su ch  sh o rtag e w as d u e to  th e fact th at, b y  reaso n  o f

th e u n iq u e n atu re o f th e im p ro v em en ts, fu ll rep lacem en t co st

in su ran ce co v erag e w as n o t co m m ercially  reaso n ab le an d  av ailab le, L esso r

sh all h av e n o  o b lig atio n  to  p ay  fo r th e sh o rtag e in  in su ran ce

p ro ceed s o r to  fu lly  resto re th e u n iq u e asp ects o f th e P rem ises u n less L essee

p ro v id es L esso r w ith  th e fu n d s to  co v er sam e, o r ad eq u ate assu ran ce

th ereo f, w ith in  1 0  d ay s fo llo w in g  receip t o f w ritten  n o tice o f

su ch  sh o rtag e an d  req u est th erefo r. If L esso r receiv es said  fu n d s o r ad eq u ate

assu ran ce th ereo f w ith in  said  1 0  d ay  p erio d , th e p arty  resp o n sib le

fo r m ak in g  th e rep airs sh all co m p lete th em  as so o n  as reaso n ab ly

p o ssib le an d  th is L ease sh all rem ain  in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect. If su ch  fu n d s o r

assu ran ce are n o t receiv ed , L esso r m ay  n ev erth eless elect b y  w ritten  n o tice to  L essee

w ith in  1 0  d ay s th ereafter to : (i) m ak e su ch  resto ratio n  an d  rep air as is

co m m ercially  reaso n ab le w ith  L esso r p ay in g  an y  sh o rtag e in

p ro ceed s, in  w h ich  case th is L ease sh all rem ain  in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect, o r (ii) h av e th is L ease

term in ate 3 0  d ay s th ereafter. L essee sh all n o t b e en titled  to  reim b u rsem en t o f

an y  fu n d s co n trib u ted  b y  L essee to  rep air an y  su ch  d am ag e

o r d estru ctio n . P rem ises P artial D am ag e d u e to  flo o d  o r earth q u ak e

sh all b e su b ject to  P arag rap h  9 .3 , n o tw ith stan d in g  th at th ere

m ay  b e so m e in su ran ce co v erag e, b u t th e n et p ro ceed s o f an y

su ch  in su ran ce sh all b e m ad e av ailab le fo r th e rep airs if m ad e b y  eith er P arty . *

(S ee attach m en t) In itials 9 .3  P artial D am ag e - U n in su red  L o ss. If a P rem ises P artial

D am ag e th at is n o t an  In su red  L o ss o ccu rs, u n less cau sed  b y  a

n eg lig en t o r w illfu l act o f L essee (in  w h ich  ev en t L essee sh all m ak e th e rep airs at L essee’s

ex p en se), L esso r m ay  eith er: (i) rep air su ch  d am ag e as so o n  as reaso n ab ly

p o ssib le at L esso r’s ex p en se, in  w h ich  ev en t th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in

fu ll fo rce an d  effect, o r (ii) term in ate th is L ease b y  g iv in g  w ritten  n o tice to  L essee

w ith in  3 0  d ay s after receip t b y  L esso r o f k n o w led g e o f th e

o ccu rren ce o f su ch  d am ag e. S u ch  term in atio n  sh all b e effectiv e 6 0

d ay s fo llo w in g  th e d ate o f su ch  n o tice. In  th e ev en t L esso r elects to

term in ate th is L ease, L essee sh all h av e th e rig h t w ith in  1 0  d ay s after receip t o f th e

term in atio n  n o tice to  g iv e w ritten  n o tice to  L esso r o f L essee’s

co m m itm en t to  p ay  fo r th e rep air o f su ch  d am ag e w ith o u t

reim b u rsem en t fro m  L esso r. L essee sh all p ro v id e L esso r w ith  said

fu n d s o r satisfacto ry  assu ran ce th ereo f w ith in  3 0  d ay s after m ak in g

su ch  co m m itm en t. In  su ch  ev en t th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce

an d  effect, an d  L esso r sh all p ro ceed  to  m ak e su ch  rep airs as so o n  as

reaso n ab ly  p o ssib le after th e req u ired  fu n d s are av ailab le. If L essee d o es n o t

m ak e th e req u ired  co m m itm en t, th is L ease sh all term in ate as o f th e d ate sp ecified  in

th e term in atio n  n o tice. 9 .4  T o tal D estru ctio n .

N o tw ith stan d in g  an y  o th er p ro v isio n  h ereo f, if a P rem ises

T o tal D estru ctio n  o ccu rs, th is L ease sh all term in ate “6 0  d ay s fo llo w in g

su ch  D estru ctio n . If th e d am ag e o r d estru ctio n  w as cau sed  b y  th e

g ro ss n eg lig en ce o r w illfu l m isco n d u ct o f L essee L esso r sh all h av e th e

rig h t to  reco v er L esso r’s d am ag es fro m  L essee, ex cep t as p ro v id ed  in

P arag rap h  8 .6 . * (S ee attach m en t) In itials 9 .5  D am ag e N ear E n d  o f

T erm . If at an y  tim e d u rin g  th e last 6  m o n th s o f th is L ease th ere is d am ag e

fo r w h ich  th e co st to  rep air ex ceed s o n e m o n th ’s B ase R en t, w h eth er

o r n o t an  In su red  L o ss, L esso r m ay  term in ate th is L ease effectiv e 6 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  th e d ate o f o ccu rren ce o f su ch  d am ag e b y

g iv in g  a w ritten  term in atio n  n o tice to  L essee w ith in  3 0  d ay s after th e

d ate o f o ccu rren ce o f su ch  d am ag e. N o tw ith stan d in g  th e

fo reg o in g , if L essee at th at tim e h as an  ex ercisab le o p tio n  to  ex ten d  th is L ease

o r to  p u rch ase th e P rem ises, th en  L essee m ay  p reserv e th is L ease b y , (a) ex ercisin g

su ch  o p tio n  an d  (b ) p ro v id in g  L esso r w ith  an y

sh o rtag e in  in su ran ce p ro ceed s (o r ad eq u ate assu ran ce th ereo f) n eed ed  to

m ak e th e rep airs o n  o r b efo re th e earlier o f (i) th e d ate w h ich  is 1 0  d ay s after L essee’s receip t

o f L esso r’s w ritten  n o tice p u rp o rtin g  to  term in ate th is L ease, o r (ii) th e d ay

p rio r to  th e d ate u p o n  w h ich  su ch  o p tio n  ex p ires. If L essee

d u ly  ex ercises su ch  o p tio n  d u rin g  su ch  p erio d  an d

p ro v id es L esso r w ith  fu n d s (o r ad eq u ate assu ran ce th ereo f) to  co v er

an y  sh o rtag e in  in su ran ce p ro ceed s, L esso r sh all, at L esso r’s co m m ercially

reaso n ab le ex p en se, rep air su ch  d am ag e as so o n  as reaso n ab ly  p o ssib le

an d  th is L ease sh all co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect. If L essee fails to  ex ercise su ch

o p tio n  an d  p ro v id e su ch  fu n d s o r assu ran ce d u rin g

su ch  p erio d , th en  th is L ease sh all term in ate o n  th e d ate sp ecified  in  th e

term in atio n  n o tice an d  L essee’s o p tio n  sh all b e ex tin g u ish ed .

9 .6  A b atem en t o f R en t; L essee’s R em ed ies. (a) A b atem en t. In  th e ev en t o f

P rem ises P artial D am ag e o r P rem ises T o tal D estru ctio n  o r a H azard o u s

S u b stan ce C o n d itio n  fo r w h ich  L essee is n o t resp o n sib le

u n d er th is L ease, th e R en t p ay ab le b y  L essee fo r th e p erio d  req u ired

fo r th e rep air, rem ed iatio n  o r resto ratio n  o f su ch  d am ag e sh all b e ab ated  in

p ro p o rtio n  to  th e d eg ree to  w h ich  L essee’s u se o f th e P rem ises is

im p aired , b u t A ll o th er o b lig atio n s o f L essee h ereu n d er sh all b e

p erfo rm ed  b y  L essee, an d  L esso r sh all h av e n o  liab ility  fo r an y

su ch  P A G E  8  O F  1 8  IN IT IA L S  IN IT IA L S
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d am ag e, d estru ctio n , rem ed iatio n , rep air o r resto ratio n  ex cep t as

p ro v id ed  h erein . (b ) R em ed ies. If L esso r is o b lig ated  to  rep air o r resto re th e

P rem ises an d  d o es n o t co m m en ce, in  a su b stan tial an d

m ean in g fu l w ay , su ch  rep air o r resto ratio n  w ith in  6 0  d ay s after

su ch  o b lig atio n  sh all accru e, L essee m ay , at an y  tim e p rio r to  th e

co m m en cem en t o f su ch  rep air o r resto ratio n , g iv e w ritten  n o tice to

L esso r an d  to  an y  L en d ers o f w h ich  L essee h as actu al n o tice, o f L essee’s

electio n  to  term in ate th is L ease o n  a d ate n o t less th an  6 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  th e g iv in g  o f su ch  n o tice. If L essee g iv es su ch  n o tice

an d  su ch  rep air o r resto ratio n  is n o t co m m en ced  w ith in  3 0

d ay s th ereafter, th is L ease sh all term in ate as o f th e d ate sp ecified  in  said  n o tice. If th e rep air o r

resto ratio n  is co m m en ced  w ith in  su ch  3 0  d ay s, th is L ease sh all

co n tin u e in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect. “C o m m en ce” sh all m ean  eith er th e

u n co n d itio n al au th o rizatio n  o f th e p rep aratio n  o f th e

req u ired  p lan s, o r th e b eg in n in g  o f th e actu al w o rk  o n  th e

P rem ises, w h ich ev er first o ccu rs. 9 .7  T erm in atio n ; A d v an ce

P ay m en ts. U p o n  term in atio n  o f th is L ease p u rsu an t to

P arag rap h  6 .2 (g ) o r P arag rap h  9 , an  eq u itab le ad ju stm en t sh all

b e m ad e co n cern in g  ad v an ce B ase R en t an d  an y  o th er

ad v an ce p ay m en ts m ad e b y  L essee to  L esso r. L esso r sh all, in

ad d itio n , retu rn  to  L essee an y  rem ain in g  p o rtio n  o f L essee’s

S ecu rity  D ep o sit as is n o t th en  req u ired  to  b e, u sed  b y  L esso r.

1 0 . R eal P ro p erty  T ax es. 1 0 .1  D efin itio n . A s u sed  h erein , th e

term  “R eal P ro p erty  T ax es” sh all in clu d e an y  fo rm  o f assessm en t; real estate, g en eral, sp ecial,

o rd in ary  o r ex trao rd in ary , o r ren tal lev y  o r tax  (o th er th an

in h eritan ce, p erso n al in co m e o r estate tax es); im p ro v em en t b o n d ;

an d /o r licen se fee im p o sed  u p o n  o r lev ied  ag ain st an y  leg al o r

eq u itab le in terest o f L esso r in  th e P rem ises o r th e P ro ject, L esso r’s rig h t to  o th er

in co m e th erefro m , an d /o r L esso r’s b u sin ess o f leasin g , b y  an y

au th o rity  h av in g  th e d irect o r in d irect p o w er to  tax  an d  w h ere

th e fu n d s are g en erated  w ith  referen ce to  th e B u ild in g  ad d ress an d

w h ere th e p ro ceed s so  g en erated  are to  b e ap p lied  b y  th e city ,

co u n ty  o r o th er lo cal tax in g  au th o rity  o f a ju risd ictio n

w ith in  w h ich  th e P rem ises are lo cated . R eal P ro p erty  T ax es sh all also

in clu d e an y  tax , fee, lev y , assessm en t o r ch arg e, o r an y  in crease th erein : (i)

im p o sed  b y  reaso n  o f ev en ts o ccu rrin g  d u rin g  th e term  o f

th is L ease, an d  (ii) lev ied  o f assessed  o n  m ach in ery  o r eq u ip m en t

p ro v id ed  b y  L esso r to  L essee p u rsu an t to  th is L ease. 1 0 .2

P ay m en t o f T ax es. In  ad d itio n  to  B ase R en t, L essee sh all p ay  to

L esso r an  am o u n t eq u al to  th e R eal P ro p erty  T ax  in stallm en t

d u e at least 2 0  d ay s p rio r to  th e ap p licab le d elin q u en cy  d ate. If an y

su ch  in stallm en t sh all co v er an y  p erio d  o f tim e p rio r to  o r after th e

ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is L ease, L essee’s sh are o f su ch  in stallm en t sh all b e

p ro rated . In  th e ev en t L essee in cu rs a late ch arg e o n  an y  R en t p ay m en t,

L esso r m ay  estim ate th e cu rren t R eal P ro p erty  T ax es, an d  req u ire th at su ch

tax es b e p aid  in  ad v an ce to  L esso r b y  L essee m o n th ly  in

ad v an ce w ith  th e p ay m en t o f th e B ase R en t. S u ch

m o n th ly  p ay m en ts sh all b e an  am o u n t eq u al to  th e

am o u n t o f th e estim ated  in stallm en t o f tax es d iv id ed  b y  th e

n u m b er o f m o n th s rem ain in g  b efo re th e m o n th  in

w h ich  said  in stallm en t b eco m es d elin q u en t. Wh en  th e actu al

am o u n t o f th e ap p licab le tax  b ill is k n o w n , th e am o u n t o f

su ch  eq u al m o n th ly  ad v an ce p ay m en ts sh all b e ad ju sted  as

req u ired  to  p ro v id e th e fu n d s n eed ed  to  p ay  th e ap p licab le

tax es. If th e am o u n t co llected  b y  L esso r is in su fficien t to  p ay  su ch  R eal

P ro p erty  T ax es w h en  d u e, L essee sh all p ay  L esso r, u p o n

d em an d , su ch  ad d itio n al su m  as is n ecessary . A d v an ce p ay m en ts

m ay  b e in term in g led  w ith  o th er m o n ey s o f L esso r an d  sh all

n o t b ear in terest. In  th e ev en t o f a B reach  b y  L essee in  th e p erfo rm an ce o f its

o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease, th en  an y  su ch  ad v an ce

p ay m en ts m ay  b e treated  b y  L esso r as an  ad d itio n al S ecu rity

D ep o sit. 1 0 .3  Jo in t A ssessm en t. If th e P rem ises are n o t sep arately  assessed , L essee’s liab ility

sh all b e an  eq u itab le p ro p o rtio n  o f th e R eal P ro p erty  T ax es fo r all

o f th e lan d  an d  im p ro v em en ts in clu d ed  w ith in  th e tax  p arcel

assessed , su ch  p ro p o rtio n  to  b e co n clu siv ely  d eterm in ed  b y

L esso r fro m  th e resp ectiv e v alu atio n s assig n ed  in  th e assesso r’s w o rk  sh eets o r

su ch  o th er in fo rm atio n  as m ay  b e reaso n ab ly  av ailab le. 1 0 .4

P erso n al P ro p erty  T ax es. L essee sh all p ay , p rio r to  d elin q u en cy , all

tax es assessed  ag ain st an d  lev ied  u p o n  L essee O w n ed  A lteratio n s, U tility

In stallatio n s, T rad e F ix tu res, fu rn ish in g s, eq u ip m en t an d  all

p erso n al p ro p erty  o f L essee. Wh en  p o ssib le. L essee sh all cau se its L essee

O w n ed  A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s, T rad e F ix tu res,

fu rn ish in g s, eq u ip m en t an d  all o th er p erso n al p ro p erty  to

b e assessed  an d  b illed  sep arately  fro m  th e real p ro p erty  o f L esso r. If an y  o f L essee’s

said  p ro p erty  sh all b e assessed  w ith  L esso r’s real p ro p erty , L essee sh all p ay  L esso r

th e tax es attrib u tab le to  L essee’s p ro p erty  w ith in  1 0  d ay s after receip t o f a w ritten

statem en t settin g  fo rth  th e tax es ap p licab le to  L essee’s p ro p erty . 1 1 . U tilities an d

S erv ices. L essee sh all p ay  fo r all w ater, g as, h eat, lig h t, p o w er, telep h o n e, trash

d isp o sal an d  o th er u tilities an d  serv ices su p p lied  to  th e P rem ises, to g eth er

w ith  an y  tax es th ereo n . If an y  su ch  serv ices are n o t sep arately  m etered  o r b illed

to  L essee, L essee sh all p ay  a reaso n ab le p ro p o rtio n , to  b e d eterm in ed

b y  L esso r, o f all ch arg es jo in tly  m etered  o r b illed . T h ere sh all b e n o

ab atem en t o f ren t an d  L esso r sh all n o t b e liab le in  an y  resp ect w h atso ev er

fo r th e in ad eq u acy , sto p p ag e, in terru p tio n  o r

d isco n tin u an ce o f an y  u tility  o r serv ice d u e to  rio t, strik e, lab o r

d isp u te, b reak d o w n , accid en t, rep air o r o th er cau se b ey o n d

L esso r’s reaso n ab le co n tro l o r in  co o p eratio n  w ith

g o v ern m en tal req u est o r d irectio n s. 1 2 . A ssig n m en t an d

S u b lettin g . 1 2 .1  L esso r’s C o n sen t R eq u ired . (a) L essee sh all n o t

v o lu n tarily  o r b y  o p eratio n  o f law  assig n , tran sfer, m o rtg ag e o r

en cu m b er (co llectiv ely , “assig n  o r assig n m en t”) o r su b let all o r an y  p art o f

L essee’s in terest in  th is L ease o r in  th e P rem ises w ith o u t L esso r’s p rio r w ritten

co n sen t. (b ) U n less L essee is a co rp o ratio n  an d  its sto ck  is p u b licly  trad ed

o n  a n atio n al sto ck  ex ch an g e, a ch an g e in  th e co n tro l o f L essee sh all

co n stitu te an  assig n m en t req u irin g  co n sen t. T h e tran sfer, o n  a

cu m u lativ e b asis, o f 2 5 %  o r m o re o f th e v o tin g  co n tro l o f

L essee sh all co n stitu te a ch an g e in  co n tro l fo r th is p u rp o se. (c) T h e

in v o lv em en t o f L essee o r its assets in  an y  tran sactio n , o r series o f tran sactio n s (b y

w ay  o f m erg er, sale, acq u isitio n , fin an cin g , tran sfer, lev erag ed  b u y -o u t

o r o th erw ise), w h eth er o r n o t a fo rm al assig n m en t o r

h y p o th ecatio n  o f th is L ease o r L essee’s assets o ccu rs, w h ich  resu lts o r w ill resu lt in  a

red u ctio n  o f th e N et Wo rth  o f L essee b y  an  am o u n t g reater th an

2 5 %  o f su ch  N et Wo rth  as it w as rep resen ted  at th e tim e o f th e ex ecu tio n

o f th is L ease o r at th e tim e o f th e m o st recen t assig n m en t to  w h ich  L esso r h as

co n sen ted , o r as it ex ists im m ed iately  p rio r to  said  tran sactio n  o r tran sactio n s

co n stitu tin g  su ch  red u ctio n , w h ich ev er w as o r is g reater, sh all b e

co n sid ered  an  assig n m en t o f th is L ease to  w h ich  L esso r m ay

w ith h o ld  its co n sen t. “N et Wo rth  o f L essee” sh all m ean  th e n et w o rth

o f L essee (ex clu d in g  an y  g u aran to rs) estab lish ed  u n d er g en erally

accep ted  acco u n tin g  p rin cip les. (d ) A n  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g

w ith o u t co n sen t sh all, at L esso r’s o p tio n , b e a D efau lt cu rab le after n o tice p er

P arag rap h  1 3 .1 (c), o r a n o n cu rab le B reach  w ith o u t th e n ecessity

o f an y  n o tice an d  g race p erio d . If L esso r elects to  treat su ch

u n ap p ro v ed  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  as a n o n cu rab le

B reach , L esso r m ay  eith er: (i) term in ate th is L ease, o r (ii) u p o n  3 0  d ay s w ritten

n o tice, in crease th e m o n th ly  B ase R en t to  1 1 0 %  o f th e B ase
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 R en t th en  in  effect. F u rth er, in  th e ev en t o f su ch  B reach  an d  ren tal

ad ju stm en t, (i) th e p u rch ase p rice o f an y  o p tio n  to  p u rch ase th e

P rem ises h eld  b y  L essee sh all b e su b ject to  sim ilar ad ju stm en t to  1 1 0 %

o f th e p rice p rev io u sly  in  effect, an d  (ii) all fix ed  an d  n o n -fix ed  ren tal

ad ju stm en ts sch ed u led  d u rin g  th e rem ain d er o f th e L ease term  sh all b e

in creased  to  1 1 0 %  o f th e sch ed u led  ad ju sted  ren t. (e) L essee’s rem ed y  fo r

an y  b reach  o f P arag rap h  1 2 .1  b y  L esso r sh all b e lim ited  to

co m p en sato ry  d am ag es an d /o r in ju n ctiv e relief. (f) L esso r m ay

reaso n ab ly  w ith h o ld  co n sen t to  a p ro p o sed  assig n m en t

o r su b lettin g  if L essee is in  D efau lt at th e tim e co n sen t is req u ested . (g )

N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , allo w in g  a d e m in im is

p o rtio n  o f th e P rem ises, ie. 2 0  sq u are feet o r less, to  b e u sed  b y  a th ird

p arty  v en d o r in  co n n ectio n  w ith  th e in stallatio n  o f a

v en d in g  m ach in e o r p ay p h o n e sh all n o t co n stitu te a

su b lettin g . 1 2 .2  T erm s an d  C o n d itio n s A p p licab le to

A ssig n m en t an d  S u b lettin g . (a) R eg ard less o f L esso r’s co n sen t,

n o  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  sh all: (i) b e effectiv e w ith o u t th e ex p ress

w ritten  assu m p tio n  b y  su ch  assig n ee o r su b lessee o f th e

o b lig atio n s o f L essee u n d er th is L ease, (ii) release L essee o f an y  o b lig atio n s

h ereu n d er, o r (iii) alter th e p rim ary  liab ility  o f L essee fo r th e p ay m en t o f R en t

o r fo r th e p erfo rm an ce o f an y  o th er o b lig atio n s to  b e

p erfo rm ed  b y  L essee. (b ) L esso r m ay  accep t R en t o r p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s

o b lig atio n s fro m  an y  p erso n  o th er th an  L essee p en d in g

ap p ro v al o r d isap p ro v al o f an  assig n m en t. N eith er a d elay  in  th e

ap p ro v al o r d isap p ro v al o f su ch  assig n m en t n o r th e accep tan ce

o f R en t o r p erfo rm an ce sh all co n stitu te a w aiv er o r esto p p el o f L esso r’s

rig h t to  ex ercise its rem ed ies fo r L essee’s D efau lt o r B reach . (c) L esso r’s co n sen t to  an y

assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  sh all n o t co n stitu te a co n sen t to  an y

su b seq u en t assig n m en t o r su b lettin g . (d ) In  th e ev en t o f an y

D efau lt o r B reach  b y  L essee, L esso r m ay  p ro ceed  d irectly  ag ain st L essee, an y

G u aran to rs o r an y o n e else resp o n sib le fo r th e p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s

o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease, in clu d in g  an y  assig n ee o r su b lessee,

w ith o u t first ex h au stin g  L esso r’s rem ed ies ag ain st an y  o th er p erso n

o r en tity  resp o n sib le th erefo r to  L esso r, o r an y  secu rity  h eld  b y

L esso r. (e) E ach  req u est fo r co n sen t to  an  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  sh all

b e in  w ritin g , acco m p an ied  b y  in fo rm atio n  relev an t to  L esso r’s

d eterm in atio n  as to  th e fin an cial an d  o p eratio n al resp o n sib ility  an d

ap p ro p riaten ess o f th e p ro p o sed  assig n ee o r su b lessee, in clu d in g

b u t n o t lim ited  to  th e in ten d ed  u se an d /o r req u ired

m o d ificatio n  o f th e P rem ises, if an y , to g eth er w ith  a fee o f $ 5 0 0  as

co n sid eratio n  fo r L esso r’s co n sid erin g  an d  p ro cessin g  said  req u est.

L essee ag rees to  p ro v id e L esso r w ith  su ch  o th er o r ad d itio n al

in fo rm atio n  an d /o r d o cu m en tatio n  as m ay  b e reaso n ab ly

req u ested . (S ee also  P arag rap h  3 6 ) (f) A n y  assig n ee o f, o r su b lessee

u n d er, th is L ease sh all, b y  reaso n  o f accep tin g  su ch  assig n m en t,

en terin g  in to  su ch  su b lease, o r en terin g  in to  p o ssessio n  o f th e

P rem ises o r an y  p o rtio n  th ereo f, b e d eem ed  to  h av e assu m ed

an d  ag reed  to  co n fo rm  an d  co m p ly  w ith  each  an d  ev ery

term , co v en an t, co n d itio n  an d  o b lig atio n  h erein  to  b e

o b serv ed  o r p erfo rm ed  b y  L essee d u rin g  th e term  o f said

assig n m en t o r su b lease, o th er th an  su ch  o b lig atio n s as are co n trary  to

o r in co n sisten t w ith  p ro v isio n s o f an  assig n m en t o r su b lease to

w h ich  L esso r h as sp ecifically  co n sen ted  to  in  w ritin g . (g ) L esso r’s

co n sen t to  an y  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  sh all n o t tran sfer to  th e

assig n ee o r su b lessee an y  O p tio n  g ran ted  to  th e o rig in al L essee b y

th is L ease u n less su ch  tran sfer is sp ecifically  co n sen ted  to  b y  L esso r in  w ritin g .

(S ee P arag rap h  3 9 .2 ) 1 2 .3  A d d itio n al T erm s an d

C o n d itio n s A p p licab le to  S u b lettin g . T h e

fo llo w in g  term s an d  co n d itio n s sh all ap p ly  to  an y

su b lettin g  b y  L essee o f all o r an y  p art o f th e P rem ises an d  sh all b e

d eem ed  in clu d ed  in  all su b leases u n d er th is L ease w h eth er o r n o t

ex p ressly  in co rp o rated  th erein : (a) L essee h ereb y  assig n s an d  tran sfers to  L esso r all

o f L essee’s in terest in  all R en t p ay ab le o n  an y  su b lease, an d  L esso r m ay  co llect

su ch  R en t an d  ap p ly  sam e to w ard  L essee’s o b lig atio n s u n d er

th is L ease; p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at u n til a B reach  sh all o ccu r in  th e

p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s o b lig atio n s, L essee m ay  co llect said  R en t. In  th e ev en t

th at th e am o u n t co llected  b y  L esso r ex ceed s L essee’s th en

o u tstan d in g  o b lig atio n s an y  su ch  ex cess sh all b e refu n d ed

to  L essee. L esso r sh all n o t, b y  reaso n  o f th e fo reg o in g  o r an y

assig n m en t o f su ch  su b lease, n o r b y  reaso n  o f th e co llectio n  o f

R en t, b e d eem ed  liab le to  th e su b lessee fo r an y  failu re o f L essee to  p erfo rm

an d  co m p ly  w ith  an y  o f L essee’s o b lig atio n s to  su ch  su b lessee.

L essee h ereb y  irrev o cab ly  au th o rizes an d  d irects an y  su ch  su b lessee,

u p o n  receip t o f a w ritten  n o tice fro m  L esso r statin g  th at a B reach  ex ists in  th e

p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease, to  p ay  to  L esso r all

R en t d u e an d  to  b eco m e d u e u n d er th e su b lease. S u b lessee sh all

rely  u p o n  an y  su ch  n o tice fro m  L esso r an d  sh all p ay  all R en ts

to  L esso r w ith o u t an y  o b lig atio n  o r rig h t to  in q u ire as to

w h eth er su ch  B reach  ex ists, n o tw ith stan d in g  an y  claim  fro m  L essee

to  th e co n trary . (b ) In  th e ev en t o f a B reach  b y  L essee, L esso r m ay , at its

o p tio n , req u ire su b lessee to  atto rn  to  L esso r, in  w h ich  ev en t L esso r

sh all u n d ertak e th e o b lig atio n s o f th e su b lesso r u n d er su ch

su b lease fro m  th e tim e o f th e ex ercise o f said  o p tio n  to  th e ex p iratio n  o f

su ch  su b lease; p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, L esso r sh all n o t b e liab le fo r

an y  p rep aid  ren ts o r secu rity  d ep o sit p aid  b y  su ch  su b lessee to

su ch  su b lesso r o r fo r an y  p rio r D efau lts o r B reach es o f su ch  su b lesso r. (c)

A n y  m atter req u irin g  th e co n sen t o f th e su b lesso r u n d er a su b lease

sh all also  req u ire th e co n sen t o f L esso r. (d ) N o  su b lessee sh all fu rth er assig n  o r

su b let all o r an y  p art o f th e P rem ises w ith o u t L esso r’s p rio r w ritten

co n sen t. (e) L esso r sh all d eliv er a co p y  o f an y  n o tice o f D efau lt o r B reach

b y  L essee to  th e su b lessee, w h o  sh all h av e th e rig h t to  cu re th e D efau lt o f

L essee w ith in  th e g race p erio d , if an y , sp ecified  in  su ch  n o tice. T h e su b lessee

sh all h av e a rig h t o f reim b u rsem en t an d  o ffset fro m  an d  ag ain st L essee fo r

an y  su ch  D efau lts cu red  b y  th e su b lessee. 1 3 . D efau lt; B reach ; R em ed ies.

1 3 .1  D efau lt; B reach . A  “D efau lt” is d efin ed  as a failu re b y  th e L essee to

co m p ly  w ith  o r p erfo rm  an y  o f th e term s, co v en an ts,

co n d itio n s o r R u les an d  R eg u latio n s u n d er th is L ease. A

“B reach ” is d efin ed  as th e o ccu rren ce o f o n e o r m o re o f th e fo llo w in g

D efau lts, an d  th e failu re o f L essee to  cu re su ch  D efau lt w ith in  an y  ap p licab le

g race p erio d : (a) T h e ab an d o n m en t o f th e P rem ises; o r th e v acatin g

o f th e P rem ises w ith o u t p ro v id in g  a co m m ercially  reaso n ab le lev el

o f secu rity , o r w h ere th e co v erag e o f th e p ro p erty  in su ran ce d escrib ed

in  P arag rap h  8 .3  is jeo p ard ized  as a resu lt th ereo f, o r w ith o u t

p ro v id in g  reaso n ab le assu ran ces to  m in im ize p o ten tial v an d alism .

(b ) T h e failu re o f L essee to  m ak e an y  p ay m en t o f R en t o r an y

S ecu rity  D ep o sit req u ired  to  b e m ad e b y  L essee h ereu n d er,

w h eth er to  L esso r o r to  a th ird  p arty , w h en  d u e, to  p ro v id e

reaso n ab le ev id en ce o f in su ran ce o r su rety  b o n d , o r to  fu lfill an y

o b lig atio n  u n d er th is L ease w h ich  en d an g ers o r th reaten s life o r

p ro p erty , w h ere su ch  failu re co n tin u es fo r a p erio d  o f 3  b u sin ess

d ay s fo llo w in g  w ritten  n o tice to  L essee. T H E

A C C E P T A N C E  B Y  L E S S O R  O F  A

P A R T IA L  P A Y ME N T  O F  R E N T  O R

S E C U R IT Y  D E P O S IT  S H A L L  N O T

C O N S T IT U T E  A  WA IV E R  O F  A N Y  O F

L E S S O R ’S  R IG H T S , IN C L U D IN G

L E S S O R ’S  R IG H T  T O  R E C O V E R

P O S S E S S IO N  O F  T H E  P R E MIS E S . (c)

T h e failu re o f L essee to  allo w  L esso r an d /o r its ag en ts access to  th e P rem ises o r th e

co m m issio n  o f w aste, act o r acts co n stitu tin g  p u b lic o r p riv ate n u isan ce,

an d /o r an  illeg al activ ity  o n  th e P rem ises b y  L essee, w h ere su ch  actio n s

co n tin u e fo r a p erio d  o f 3  b u sin ess d ay s P A G E  1 0
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 fo llo w in g  w ritten  n o tice to  L essee. “(S ee A ttach m en t) (d ) T h e failu re b y

L essee to  p ro v id e (i) reaso n ab le w ritten  ev id en ce o f co m p lian ce w ith

A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts, (ii) th e serv ice co n tracts, (iii) th e rescissio n  o f an

u n au th o rized  assig n m en t o r su b lettin g , (iv ) an  E sto p p el C ertificate

o r fin an cial statem en ts, (v ) a req u ested  su b o rd in atio n , (v i) ev id en ce

co n cern in g  an y  g u aran ty  an d /o r G u aran to r, (v ii) an y

d o cu m en t req u ested  u n d er P arag rap h  4 2 , (v iii) m aterial safety  d ata sh eets

(MS D S ), o r (ix ) an y  o th er d o cu m en tatio n  o r

in fo rm atio n  w h ich  L esso r m ay  reaso n ab ly  req u ire o f L essee

u n d er th e term s o f th is L ease, w h ere an y  su ch  failu re co n tin u es fo r a

p erio d  o f 1 0  d ay s fo llo w in g  w ritten  n o tice to  L essee. (e) A  D efau lt

b y  L essee as to  th e term s, co v en an ts, co n d itio n s o r p ro v isio n s o f

th is L ease, o r o f th e ru les ad o p ted  u n d er P arag rap h  4 0  h ereo f,

o th er th an  th o se d escrib ed  in  su b p arag rap h s 1 3 .1 (a), (b ), (c) o r (d ),

ab o v e, w h ere su ch  D efau lt co n tin u es fo r a p erio d  o f 3 0  d ay s after

w ritten  n o tice; p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at if th e n atu re o f L essee’s D efau lt is

su ch  th at m o re th an  3 0  d ay s are reaso n ab ly  req u ired  fo r its cu re, th en  it

sh all n o t b e d eem ed  to  b e a B reach  if L essee co m m en ces su ch  cu re w ith in

said  3 0  d ay  p erio d  an d  th ereafter d ilig en tly  p ro secu tes su ch  cu re to

co m p letio n . (f) T h e o ccu rren ce o f an y  o f th e fo llo w in g  ev en ts: (i)

th e m ak in g  o f an y  g en eral arran g em en t o r assig n m en t fo r th e

b en efit o f cred ito rs; (ii) b eco m in g  a “d eb to r” as d efin ed  in  1 1  U .S .C .

§ 1 0 1  o r an y  su ccesso r statu te th ereto  (u n less, in  th e case o f a p etitio n  filed

ag ain st L essee, th e sam e is d ism issed  w ith in  6 0  d ay s); (iii) th e ap p o in tm en t

o f a tru stee o r receiv er to  tak e p o ssessio n  o f su b stan tially  all o f L essee’s assets lo cated  at th e P rem ises

o r o f L essee’s in terest in  th is L ease, w h ere p o ssessio n  is n o t resto red  to  L essee w ith in

3 0  d ay s; o r (iv ) th e attach m en t, ex ecu tio n  o r o th er ju d icial seizu re o f

su b stan tially  all o f L essee’s assets lo cated  at th e P rem ises o r o f L essee’s in terest in  th is L ease, w h ere su ch

seizu re is n o t d isch arg ed  w ith in  3 0  d ay s; p ro v id ed ,

h o w ev er, in  th e ev en t th at an y  p ro v isio n  o f th is

su b p arag rap h  is co n trary  to  an y  ap p licab le law , su ch

p ro v isio n  sh all b e o f n o  fo rce o r effect, an d  n o t affect th e v alid ity  o f th e

rem ain in g  p ro v isio n s. (g ) T h e d isco v ery  th at an y  fin an cial

statem en t o f L essee o r o f an y  G u aran to r g iv en  to  L esso r w as m aterially  false. (h ) If

th e p erfo rm an ce o f L essee’s o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease is g u aran teed : (i) th e

d eath  o f a G u aran to r, (ii) th e term in atio n  o f a G u aran to r’s liab ility  w ith  resp ect

to  th is L ease o th er th an  in  acco rd an ce w ith  th e term s o f su ch  g u aran ty , (iii) a

G u aran to r’s b eco m in g  in so lv en t o r th e su b ject o f a

b an k ru p tcy  filin g , (iv ) a G u aran to r’s refu sal to  h o n o r th e

g u aran ty , o r (v ) a G u aran to r’s b reach  o f its g u aran ty  o b lig atio n

o n  an  an ticip ato ry  b asis, an d  L essee’s failu re, w ith in  6 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  w ritten  n o tice o f an y  su ch  ev en t, to  p ro v id e

w ritten  altern ativ e assu ran ce o r secu rity , w h ich , w h en  co u p led  w ith  th e

th en  ex istin g  reso u rces o f L essee, eq u als o r ex ceed s th e co m b in ed  fin an cial

reso u rces o f L essee an d  th e G u aran to rs th at ex isted  at th e tim e o f ex ecu tio n  o f

th is L ease. 1 3 .2  R em ed ies. If L essee fails to  p erfo rm  an y  o f its affirm ativ e d u ties o r

o b lig atio n s, w ith in  1 0  d ay s after w ritten  n o tice (o r in  case o f an

em erg en cy , w ith o u t n o tice), L esso r m ay , at its o p tio n , p erfo rm

su ch  d u ty  o r o b lig atio n  o n  L essee’s b eh alf, in clu d in g

b u t n o t lim ited  to  th e o b tain in g  o f reaso n ab ly  req u ired

b o n d s, in su ran ce p o licies, o r g o v ern m en tal licen ses, p erm its o r

ap p ro v als. L essee sh all p ay  to  L esso r an  am o u n t eq u al to

1 1 5 %  o f th e co sts an d  ex p en ses in cu rred  b y  L esso r in  su ch

p erfo rm an ce u p o n  receip t o f an  in v o ice th erefo r. In  th e ev en t o f a

B reach , L esso r m ay , w ith  o r w ith o u t fu rth er n o tice o r d em an d ,

an d  w ith o u t lim itin g  L esso r in  th e ex ercise o f an y  rig h t o r

rem ed y  w h ich  L esso r m ay  h av e b y  reaso n  o f su ch  B reach : (a)

T erm in ate L essee’s rig h t to  p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises b y  an y  law fu l

m ean s, in  w h ich  case th is L ease sh all term in ate an d  L essee sh all im m ed iately  su rren d er

p o ssessio n  to  L esso r. In  su ch  ev en t L esso r sh all b e en titled  to  reco v er

fro m  L essee: (i) th e u n p aid  R en t w h ich  h ad  b een  earn ed  at th e tim e o f

term in atio n ; (ii) th e w o rth  at th e tim e o f aw ard  o f th e am o u n t b y

w h ich  th e u n p aid  ren t w h ich  w o u ld  h av e b een  earn ed  after

term in atio n  u n til th e tim e o f aw ard  ex ceed s th e am o u n t o f su ch  ren tal

lo ss th at th e L essee p ro v es co u ld  h av e b een  reaso n ab ly  av o id ed ; (iii)

th e w o rth  at th e tim e o f aw ard  o f th e am o u n t b y  w h ich  th e

u n p aid  ren t fo r th e b alan ce o f th e term  after th e tim e o f aw ard  ex ceed s th e

am o u n t o f su ch  ren tal lo ss th at th e L essee p ro v es co u ld  b e

reaso n ab ly  av o id ed ; an d  (iv ) an y  o th er am o u n t n ecessary  to

co m p en sate L esso r fo r all th e d etrim en t p ro x im ately  cau sed  b y  th e L essee’s

failu re to  p erfo rm  its o b lig atio n s u n d er th is L ease o r w h ich  in  th e

o rd in ary  co u rse o f th in g s w o u ld  b e lik ely  to  resu lt th erefro m ,

in clu d in g  b u t n o t lim ited  to  th e co st o f reco v erin g

p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises, ex p en ses o f relettin g , in clu d in g  n ecessary

ren o v atio n  an d  alteratio n  o f th e P rem ises, reaso n ab le atto rn ey s’ fees, an d  th at

p o rtio n  o f an y  leasin g  co m m issio n  p aid  b y  L esso r in

co n n ectio n  w ith  th is L ease ap p licab le to  th e u n ex p ired  term  o f th is

L ease. T h e w o rth  at th e tim e o f aw ard  o f th e am o u n t referred  to  in

p ro v isio n  (iii) o f th e im m ed iately  p reced in g  sen ten ce sh all b e

co m p u ted  b y  d isco u n tin g  su ch  am o u n t at th e

d isco u n t rate o f th e F ed eral R eserv e B an k  o f th e D istrict w ith in  w h ich

th e P rem ises are lo cated  at th e tim e o f aw ard  p lu s o n e p ercen t. E ffo rts b y  L esso r

to  m itig ate d am ag es cau sed  b y  L essee’s B reach  o f th is L ease sh all n o t w aiv e

L esso r’s rig h t to  reco v er d am ag es u n d er P arag rap h  1 2 . If

term in atio n  o f th is L ease is o b tain ed  th ro u g h  th e p ro v isio n al

rem ed y  o f u n law fu l d etain er, L esso r sh all h av e th e rig h t to  reco v er in

su ch  p ro ceed in g  an y  u n p aid  R en t an d  d am ag es as are

reco v erab le th erein , o r L esso r m ay  reserv e th e rig h t to  reco v er all o r an y  p art

th ereo f in  a sep arate su it. If a n o tice an d  g race p erio d  req u ired  u n d er

P arag rap h  1 3 .1  w as n o t p rev io u sly  g iv en , a n o tice to

p ay  ren t o r q u it, o r to  p erfo rm  o r q u it g iv en  to  L essee u n d er

th e u n law fu l d etain er statu te sh all also  co n stitu te th e n o tice req u ired  b y

P arag rap h  1 3 .1 . In  su ch  case, th e ap p licab le g race p erio d  req u ired

b y  P arag rap h  1 3 .1  an d  th e u n law fu l d etain er statu te sh all ru n

co n cu rren tly , an d  th e failu re o f L essee to  cu re th e D efau lt w ith in  th e g reater o f

th e tw o  su ch  g race p erio d s sh all co n stitu te b o th  an  u n law fu l

d etain er an d  a B reach  o f th is L ease en titlin g  L esso r to  th e rem ed ies

p ro v id ed  fo r in  th is L ease an d /o r b y  said  statu te. (b ) C o n tin u e

th e L ease an d  L essee’s rig h t to  p o ssessio n  an d  reco v er th e R en t as it b eco m es

d u e, in  w h ich  ev en t L essee m ay  su b let o r assig n , su b ject o n ly  to

reaso n ab le lim itatio n s. A cts o f m ain ten an ce, effo rts to  relet, an d /o r th e

ap p o in tm en t o f a receiv er to  p ro tect th e L esso r’s in terests, sh all n o t co n stitu te a

term in atio n  o f th e L essee’s rig h t to  p o ssessio n . (c) P u rsu e an y  o th er

rem ed y  n o w  o r h ereafter av ailab le u n d er th e law s o r ju d icial d ecisio n s o f

th e state w h erein  th e P rem ises are lo cated . T h e ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is

L ease an d /o r th e term in atio n  o f L essee’s rig h t to  p o ssessio n  sh all n o t reliev e

L essee fro m  liab ility  u n d er an y  in d em n ity  p ro v isio n s o f th is

L ease as to  m atters o ccu rrin g  o r accru in g  d u rin g  th e term  h ereo f o r b y

reaso n  o f L essee’s o ccu p an cy  o f th e P rem ises. 1 3 .3  In d u cem en t

R ecap tu re. A n y  ag reem en t fo r free o r ab ated  ren t o r o th er ch arg es, o r fo r th e

g iv in g  o r p ay in g  b y  L esso r to  o r fo r L essee o f an y  cash  o r

o th er b o n u s, in d u cem en t o r co n sid eratio n  fo r L essee’s en terin g

in to  th is L ease, all o f w h ich  co n cessio n s are h erein after referred  to  as “In d u cem en t

P ro v isio n s,” sh all b e d eem ed  co n d itio n ed  u p o n  L essee’s fu ll

an d  faith fu l p erfo rm an ce o f all o f th e term s, co v en an ts an d

co n d itio n s o f th is L ease. U p o n  B reach  o f th is L ease b y  L essee, an y

su ch  In d u cem en t P ro v isio n  sh all au to m atically  b e d eem ed

d eleted  fro m  th is L ease an d  o f n o  fu rth er fo rce o r effect, an d  an y  ren t, o th er

ch arg e, b o n u s, in d u cem en t o r co n sid eratio n  th ereto fo re ab ated ,

g iv en  o r p aid  b y  L esso r u n d er su ch  an  in d u cem en t

P ro v isio n  sh all b e im m ed iately  d u e an d  p ay ab le b y  L essee to

L esso r, n o tw ith stan d in g  an y  su b seq u en t cu re o f said  B reach

b y  L essee. T h e accep tan ce b y  L esso r o f ren t o r th e cu re o f th e B reach

w h ich  in itiated  th e o p eratio n  o f th is p arag rap h  sh all n o t b e

d eem ed  a w aiv er b y  L esso r o f th e p ro v isio n s o f th is p arag rap h

u n less sp ecifically  so  stated  in  w ritin g  b y  L esso r at th e tim e o f su ch  accep tan ce.

1 3 .4  L ate C h arg es. L essee h ereb y  ack n o w led g es th at late p ay m en t

b y  L essee o f R en t w ill cau se L esso r to  in cu r co sts n o t co n tem p lated

b y  th is L ease, th e ex act am o u n t o f w h ich  w ill b e ex trem ely  d ifficu lt to

ascertain . S u ch  co sts in clu d e, b u t are n o t lim ited  to , p ro cessin g  an d

acco u n tin g  ch arg es, an d  late ch arg es w h ich  m ay  b e im p o sed

u p o n  L esso r b y  an y  L en d er. A cco rd in g ly , if an y

R en t sh all n o t b e receiv ed  b y  L esso r P A G E  1 1  O F  1 8
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 w ith in  5  d ay s after su ch  am o u n t sh all b e d u e, th en , w ith o u t

an y  req u irem en t fo r n o tice to  L essee, L essee sh all im m ed iately  p ay  to  L esso r a

o n e-tim e late ch arg e eq u al to  1 0 %  o f each  su ch  o v erd u e

am o u n t o r $ 1 0 0 , w h ich ev er is g reater. T h e P arties h ereb y  ag ree th at

su ch  late ch arg e rep resen ts a fair an d  reaso n ab le estim ate o f th e co sts L esso r w ill in cu r b y

reaso n  o f su ch  late p ay m en t. A ccep tan ce o f su ch  late ch arg e b y  L esso r sh all

in  n o  ev en t co n stitu te a w aiv er o f L essee’s D efau lt o r B reach  w ith  resp ect to

su ch  o v erd u e am o u n t, n o r p rev en t th e ex ercise o f an y  o f th e

o th er rig h ts an d  rem ed ies g ran ted  h ereu n d er. In  th e ev en t th at a late ch arg e is

p ay ab le h ereu n d er, w h eth er o r n o t co llected , fo r 3  co n secu tiv e

in stallm en ts o f B ase R en t, th en  n o tw ith stan d in g  an y

p ro v isio n  o f th is L ease to  th e co n trary , B ase R en t sh all, at L esso r’s

o p tio n , b eco m e d u e an d  p ay ab le q u arterly  in  ad v an ce.

1 3 .5  In terest. A n y  m o n etary  p ay m en t d u e L esso r

h ereu n d er, o th er th an  late ch arg es, n o t receiv ed  b y  L esso r, w h en

d u e as to  sch ed u led  p ay m en ts (su ch  as B ase R en t) o r w ith in  3 0

d ay s fo llo w in g  th e d ate o n  w h ich  it w as d u e fo r n o n -

sch ed u led  p ay m en t, sh all b ear in terest fro m  th e d ate w h en  d u e, as to

sch ed u led  p ay m en ts, o r th e 3 1  st d ay  after it w as d u e as to  n o n -

sch ed u led  p ay m en ts. T h e in terest (“In terest”) ch arg ed  sh all b e co m p u ted  at

th e rate o f 1 0 %  p er an n u m  b u t sh all n o t ex ceed  th e

m ax im u m  rate allo w ed  b y  law . In terest is p ay ab le in  ad d itio n  to  th e

p o ten tial late ch arg e p ro v id ed  fo r in  P arag rap h  1 3 .4 . 1 3 .6

B reach  b y  L esso r. (a) N o tice o f B reach . L esso r sh all n o t b e d eem ed  in

b reach  o f th is L ease u n less L esso r fails w ith in  a reaso n ab le tim e to  p erfo rm  an

o b lig atio n  req u ired  to  b e p erfo rm ed  b y  L esso r. F o r

p u rp o ses o f th is P arag rap h , a reaso n ab le tim e sh all in  n o  ev en t b e less

th an  3 0  d ay s after receip t b y  L esso r, an d  an y  L en d er w h o se

n am e an d  ad d ress sh all h av e b een  fu rn ish ed  L essee in  w ritin g  fo r

su ch  p u rp o se, o f w ritten  n o tice sp ecify in g  w h erein  su ch

o b lig atio n  o f L esso r h as n o t b een  p erfo rm ed ; p ro v id ed ,

h o w ev er, th at if th e n atu re o f L esso r’s o b lig atio n  is su ch  th at m o re

th an  3 0  d ay s are reaso n ab ly  req u ired  fo r its p erfo rm an ce, th en  L esso r

sh all n o t b e in  b reach  if p erfo rm an ce is co m m en ced  w ith in  su ch

3 0  d ay  p erio d  an d  th ereafter d ilig en tly  p u rsu ed  to

co m p letio n . (b ) P erfo rm an ce b y  L essee o n  B eh alf o f L esso r. In  th e

ev en t th at n eith er L esso r n o r L en d er cu res said  b reach  w ith in  3 0

d ay s after receip t o f said  n o tice, o r if h av in g  co m m en ced  said  cu re th ey

d o  n o t d ilig en tly  p u rsu e it to  co m p letio n , th en  L essee m ay  elect

to  cu re said  b reach  at L essee’s ex p en se an d  o ffset fro m  R en t th e actu al an d

reaso n ab le co st to  p erfo rm  su ch  cu re, p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at

su ch  o ffset sh all n o t ex ceed  an  am o u n t eq u al to  th e g reater o f o n e

m o n th ’s B ase R en t o r th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit, reserv in g  L essee’s rig h t to

seek  reim b u rsem en t fro m  L esso r fo r an y  su ch  ex p en se in  ex cess o f

su ch  o ffset. L essee sh all d o cu m en t th e co st o f said  cu re an d  su p p ly  said

d o cu m en tatio n  to  L esso r. 1 4 . C o n d em n atio n . If th e

P rem ises o r an y  p o rtio n  th ereo f are tak en  u n d er th e p o w er o f

em in en t d o m ain  o r so ld  u n d er th e th reat o f th e ex ercise o f said

p o w er (co llectiv ely  “C o n d em n atio n ”), th is L ease sh all term in ate as to  th e p art

tak en  as o f th e d ate th e co n d em n in g  au th o rity  tak es title o r

p o ssessio n , w h ich ev er first o ccu rs. If m o re th an  1 0 %  o f th e

B u ild in g , o r m o re th an  2 5 %  o f th at p o rtio n  o f th e

P rem ises n o t o ccu p ied  b y  an y  b u ild in g , is tak en  b y

C o n d em n atio n , L essee m ay , at L essee’s o p tio n , to  b e ex ercised  in

w ritin g  w ith in  1 0  d ay s after L esso r sh all h av e g iv en  L essee w ritten

n o tice o f su ch  tak in g  (o r in  th e ab sen ce o f su ch  n o tice, w ith in

1 0  d ay s after th e co n d em n in g  au th o rity  sh all h av e tak en

p o ssessio n ) term in ate th is L ease as o f th e d ate th e co n d em n in g

au th o rity  tak es su ch  p o ssessio n . If L essee d o es n o t term in ate th is L ease in

acco rd an ce w ith  th e fo reg o in g , th is L ease sh all rem ain  in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect as to

th e p o rtio n  o f th e P rem ises rem ain in g , ex cep t th at th e B ase R en t sh all b e

red u ced  in  p ro p o rtio n  to  th e red u ctio n  in  u tility  o f th e

P rem ises cau sed  b y  su ch  C o n d em n atio n .

C o n d em n atio n  aw ard s an d /o r p ay m en ts sh all b e th e

p ro p erty  o f L esso r, w h eth er su ch  aw ard  sh all b e m ad e as

co m p en satio n  fo r d im in u tio n  in  v alu e o f th e leaseh o ld , th e

v alu e o f th e p art tak en , o r fo r sev eran ce d am ag es, p ro v id ed ,

h o w ev er, th at L essee sh all b e en titled  to  an y  co m p en satio n  p aid

b y  th e co n d em n o r fo r L essee’s relo catio n  ex p en ses, lo ss o f b u sin ess

g o o d w ill an d /o r T rad e F ix tu res, w ith o u t reg ard  to

w h eth er o r n o t th is L ease is term in ated  p u rsu an t to  th e p ro v isio n s

o f th is P arag rap h . A ll A lteratio n s an d  U tility  In stallatio n s m ad e to  th e

P rem ises b y  L essee, fo r p u rp o ses o f C o n d em n atio n  o n ly ,

sh all b e co n sid ered  th e p ro p erty  o f th e L essee an d  L essee sh all b e en titled  to

an y  an d  all co m p en satio n  w h ich  is p ay ab le th erefo r. In  th e ev en t

th at th is L ease is n o t term in ated  b y  reaso n  o f th e C o n d em n atio n ,

L esso r sh all rep air an y  d am ag e to  th e P rem ises cau sed  b y  su ch

C o n d em n atio n . 1 5 . B ro k erag e F ees. 1 5 .3

R ep resen tatio n s an d  In d em n ities o f B ro k er R elatio n sh ip s. L essee

an d  L esso r each  rep resen t an d  w arran t to  th e o th er th at it h as h ad  n o

d ealin g s w ith  an y  p erso n , firm , b ro k er o r fin d er (o th er th an  th e

B ro k ers, if an y ) in  co n n ectio n  w ith  th is L ease, an d  th at n o  o n e

o th er th an  said  n am ed  B ro k ers is en titled  to  an y  co m m issio n  o r

fin d er’s fee in  co n n ectio n  h erew ith . L essee an d  L esso r d o  each  h ereb y

ag ree to  in d em n ify , p ro tect, d efen d  an d  h o ld  th e o th er h arm less

fro m  an d  ag ain st liab ility  fo r co m p en satio n  o r ch arg es w h ich

m ay  b e claim ed  b y  an y  su ch  u n n am ed  b ro k er, fin d er o r

o th er sim ilar p arty  b y  reaso n  o f an y  d ealin g s o r actio n s o f th e

in d em n ify in g  P arty , in clu d in g  an y  co sts, ex p en ses,

atto rn ey s’ fees reaso n ab ly  in cu rred  w ith  resp ect th ereto . 1 6 . E sto p p el C ertificates. (a)

E ach  P arty  (as “R esp o n d in g  P arty ”) sh all w ith in  1 0  d ay s after

w ritten  n o tice fro m  th e o th er P arty  (th e “R eq u estin g  P arty ”) ex ecu te,

ack n o w led g e an d  d eliv er to  th e R eq u estin g  P arty  a statem en t in

w ritin g  in  fo rm  sim ilar to  th e th en  m o st cu rren t “E sto p p el C ertificate” fo rm

p u b lish ed  b y  th e A IR  C o m m ercial R eal E state A sso ciatio n , p lu s

su ch  ad d itio n al in fo rm atio n , co n firm atio n  an d /o r statem en ts as

m ay  b e reaso n ab ly  P A G E  1 2  O F  1 8  IN IT IA L S
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 req u ested  b y  th e R eq u estin g  P arty . (b ) If th e R esp o n d in g

P arty  sh all fail to  ex ecu te o r d eliv er th e E sto p p el C ertificate w ith in  su ch  1 0

d ay  p erio d , th e R eq u estin g  P arty  m ay  ex ecu te an  E sto p p el

C ertificate statin g  th at: (i) th e L ease is in  fu ll fo rce an d  effect w ith o u t m o d ificatio n  ex cep t as

m ay  b e rep resen ted  b y  th e R eq u estin g  P arty , (ii) th ere are n o

u n cu red  d efau lts in  th e R eq u estin g  P arty ’s p erfo rm an ce, an d  (iii) if

L esso r is th e R eq u estin g  P arty , n o t m o re th an  o n e m o n th ’s

ren t h as b een  p aid  in  ad v an ce. P ro sp ectiv e p u rch asers an d

en cu m b ran cers m ay  rely  u p o n  th e R eq u estin g  P arty ’s

E sto p p el C ertificate, an d  th e R esp o n d in g  P arty  sh all b e

esto p p ed  fro m  d en y in g  th e tru th  o f th e facts co n tain ed  in  said

C ertificate. (c) If L esso r d esires to  fin an ce, refin an ce, o r sell th e P rem ises, o r an y  p art th ereo f, L essee an d  all

G u aran to rs sh all w ith in  1 0  d ay s after w ritten  n o tice fro m  L esso r d eliv er

to  an y  p o ten tial len d er o r p u rch aser d esig n ated  b y  L esso r su ch

fin an cial statem en ts as m ay  b e reaso n ab ly  req u ired  b y  su ch  len d er o r

p u rch aser, in clu d in g  b u t n o t lim ited  to  L essee’s fin an cial statem en ts fo r th e

p ast 3  y ears. A ll su ch  fin an cial statem en ts sh all b e receiv ed  b y  L esso r an d  su ch

len d er o r p u rch aser in  co n fid en ce an d  sh all b e u sed  o n ly  fo r th e

p u rp o ses h erein  set fo rth . 1 7 . D efin itio n  o f L esso r. T h e term  “L esso r” as

u sed  h erein  sh all m ean  th e o w n er o r o w n ers at th e tim e in  q u estio n

o f th e fee title to  th e P rem ises, o r, if th is is a su b lease, o f th e L essee’s in terest in  th e p rio r lease. In  th e ev en t

o f a tran sfer o f L esso r’s title o r in terest in  th e P rem ises o r th is L ease, L esso r sh all d eliv er to  th e tran sferee

o r assig n ee (in  cash  o r b y  cred it) an y  u n u sed  S ecu rity  D ep o sit

h eld  b y  L esso r. U p o n  su ch  tran sfer o r assig n m en t an d

d eliv ery  o f th e S ecu rity  D ep o sit, as afo resaid , th e p rio r L esso r sh all b e reliev ed

o f all liab ility  w ith  resp ect to  th e o b lig atio n s an d /o r co v en an ts

u n d er th is L ease th ereafter to  b e p erfo rm ed  b y  th e L esso r. S u b ject to  th e

fo reg o in g , th e o b lig atio n s an d /o r co v en an ts in  th is L ease to

b e p erfo rm ed  b y  th e L esso r sh all b e b in d in g  o n ly

u p o n  th e L esso r as h erein ab o v e d efin ed . 1 8 . S ev erab ility .

T h e in v alid ity  o f an y  p ro v isio n  o f th is L ease, as d eterm in ed

b y  a co u rt o f co m p eten t ju risd ictio n , sh all in  n o  w ay  affect th e

v alid ity  o f an y  o th er p ro v isio n  h ereo f. 1 9 . D ay s. U n less

o th erw ise sp ecifically  in d icated  to  th e co n trary , th e w o rd  “d ay s” as u sed  in

th is L ease sh all m ean  an d  refer to  calen d ar d ay s. 2 0 . L im itatio n  o n

L iab ility . T h e o b lig atio n s o f L esso r u n d er th is L ease sh all n o t

co n stitu te p erso n al o b lig atio n s o f L esso r o r its p artn ers, m em b ers, d irecto rs,

o fficers o r sh areh o ld ers, an d  L essee sh all lo o k  to  th e P rem ises, an d  to  n o

o th er assets o f L esso r, fo r th e satisfactio n  o f an y  liab ility  o f L esso r w ith  resp ect to  th is

L ease, an d  sh all n o t seek  reco u rse ag ain st L esso r’s p artn ers, m em b ers, d irecto rs, o fficers o r

sh areh o ld ers, o r an y  o f th eir p erso n al assets fo r su ch  satisfactio n . 2 1 . T im e o f

E ssen ce. T im e is o f th e essen ce w ith  resp ect to  th e p erfo rm an ce o f all o b lig atio n s

to  b e p erfo rm ed  o r o b serv ed  b y  th e P arties u n d er th is L ease. 2 2 .

N o  P rio r o r O th er A g reem en ts; B ro k er D isclaim er. T h is L ease co n tain s all

ag reem en ts b etw een  th e P arties w ith  resp ect to  an y  m atter m en tio n ed  h erein ,

an d  n o  o th er p rio r o r co n tem p o ran eo u s ag reem en t o r

u n d erstan d in g  sh all b e effectiv e. L esso r an d  L essee each  rep resen ts an d  w arran ts

to  th e B ro k ers th at it h as m ad e, an d  is rely in g  so lely  u p o n , its

o w n  in v estig atio n  as to  th e n atu re, q u ality , ch aracter an d  fin an cial

resp o n sib ility  o f th e o th er P arty  to  th is L ease an d  as to  th e u se, n atu re,

q u ality  an d  ch aracter o f th e P rem ises. B ro k ers h av e n o  resp o n sib ility

w ith  resp ect th ereto  o r w ith  resp ect to  an y  d efau lt o r b reach  h ereo f b y  eith er

P arty . 2 3 . N o tices. 2 3 .1  N o tice R eq u irem en ts. A ll n o tices req u ired

o r p erm itted  b y  th is L ease o r ap p licab le law  sh all b e in  w ritin g  an d

m ay  b e d eliv ered  in  p erso n  (b y  h an d  o r b y  co u rier) o r

m ay  b e sen t b y  reg u lar, certified  o r reg istered  m ail o r U .S . P o stal S erv ice

E x p ress Mail, w ith  p o stag e p rep aid , o r b y  facsim ile tran sm issio n , an d

sh all b e d eem ed  su fficien tly  g iv en  if serv ed  in  a m an n er sp ecified  in  th is

P arag rap h  2 3 . T h e ad d resses n o ted  ad jacen t to  a P arty ’s sig n atu re

o n  th is L ease sh all b e th at P arty ’s ad d ress fo r d eliv ery  o r m ailin g  o f n o tices.

E ith er P arty  m ay  b y  w ritten  n o tice to  th e o th er sp ecify  a d ifferen t ad d ress

fo r n o tice, ex cep t th at u p o n  L essee’s tak in g  p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises,

th e P rem ises sh all co n stitu te L essee’s ad d ress fo r n o tice. A  co p y  o f all n o tices to

L esso r sh all b e co n cu rren tly  tran sm itted  to  su ch  p arty  o r p arties at su ch

ad d resses as L esso r m ay  fro m  tim e to  tim e h ereafter d esig n ate in  w ritin g . 2 3 .2

D ate o f N o tice. A n y  n o tice sen t b y  reg istered  o r certified  m ail, retu rn  receip t

req u ested , sh all b e d eem ed  g iv en  o n  th e d ate o f d eliv ery

sh o w n  o n  th e receip t card , o r if n o  d eliv ery  d ate is sh o w n , th e

p o stm ark  th ereo n . If sen t b y  reg u lar m ail th e n o tice sh all b e d eem ed

g iv en  7 2  h o u rs after th e sam e is ad d ressed  as req u ired  h erein  an d  m ailed

w ith  p o stag e p rep aid . N o tices d eliv ered  b y  U n ited  S tates E x p ress

Mail o r o v ern ig h t co u rier th at g u aran tee n ex t d ay  d eliv ery  sh all b e

d eem ed  g iv en  2 4  h o u rs after d eliv ery  o f th e sam e to  th e P o stal

S erv ice o r co u rier. N o tices tran sm itted  b y  facsim ile tran sm issio n  o r sim ilar m ean s sh all

b e d eem ed  d eliv ered  u p o n  telep h o n e co n firm atio n  o f receip t

(co n firm atio n  rep o rt fro m  fax  m ach in e is su fficien t), p ro v id ed  a

co p y  is also  d eliv ered  v ia d eliv ery  o r m ail. If n o tice is receiv ed  o n  a

S atu rd ay , S u n d ay  o r leg al h o lid ay , it sh all b e d eem ed  receiv ed

o n  th e n ex t b u sin ess d ay . 2 4 . Waiv ers. (a) N o  w aiv er b y  L esso r

o f th e D efau lt o r B reach  o f an y  term , co v en an t o r co n d itio n

h ereo f b y  L essee, sh all b e d eem ed  a w aiv er o f an y  o th er term , co v en an t

o r co n d itio n  h ereo f, o r o f an y  su b seq u en t D efau lt o r B reach

b y  L essee o f th e sam e o r o f an y  o th er term , co v en an t o r

co n d itio n  h ereo f. L esso r’s co n sen t to , o r ap p ro v al o f, an y  act sh all

n o t b e d eem ed  to  ren d er u n n ecessary  th e o b tain in g  o f L esso r’s

co n sen t to , o r ap p ro v al o f, an y  su b seq u en t o r sim ilar act b y  L essee,

o r b e co n stru ed  as th e b asis o f an  esto p p el to  en fo rce th e p ro v isio n

o r p ro v isio n s o f th is L ease req u irin g  su ch  co n sen t. (b ) T h e

accep tan ce o f R en t b y  L esso r sh all n o t b e a w aiv er o f an y  D efau lt o r

B reach  b y  L essee. A n y  p ay m en t b y  L essee m ay  b e accep ted  b y

L esso r o n  acco u n t o f m o n ey s o r d am ag es d u e L esso r,

n o tw ith stan d in g  an y  q u alify in g  statem en ts o r

co n d itio n s m ad e b y  L essee in  co n n ectio n  th erew ith , w h ich

su ch  statem en ts an d /o r co n d itio n s sh all b e o f n o  fo rce o r effect

w h atso ev er u n less sp ecifically  ag reed  to  in  w ritin g  b y  L esso r at o r b efo re

th e tim e o f d ep o sit o f su ch  p ay m en t. (C ) T H E

P A R T IE S  A G R E E  T H A T  T H E

T E R MS  O F  T H IS  L E A S E  S H A L L

G O V E R N  WIT H  R E G A R D  T O  A L L

MA T T E R S  R E L A T E D  T H E R E T O

A N D  H E R E B Y  WA IV E  T H E

P R O V IS IO N S  O F  A N Y  P R E S E N T  O R

F U T U R E  S T A T U T E  T O  T H E

E X T E N T  T H A T  S U C H  P A G E  1 3  O F
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 S T A T U T E  IS  IN C O N S IS T E N T  WIT H

T H IS  L E A S E . 2 5 . D isclo su res R eg ard in g  T h e N atu re

o f a R eal E state A g en cy  R elatio n sh ip . (a) Wh en  en terin g  in to  a

d iscu ssio n  w ith  a real estate ag en t reg ard in g  a real estate tran sactio n , a L esso r o r L essee

sh o u ld  fro m  th e o u tset u n d erstan d  w h at ty p e o f ag en cy

relatio n sh ip  o r rep resen tatio n  it h as w ith  th e ag en t o r ag en ts in  th e

tran sactio n . L esso r an d  L essee ack n o w led g e b ein g  ad v ised  b y

th e B ro k ers in  th is tran sactio n , as fo llo w s: (i) L esso r’s A g en t. A  L esso r’s ag en t

u n d er a listin g  ag reem en t w ith  th e L esso r acts as th e ag en t fo r th e L esso r

o n ly . A  L esso r’s ag en t o r su b ag en t h as th e fo llo w in g  affirm ativ e

o b lig atio n s: T o  th e L esso r: A  fid u ciary  d u ty  o f u tm o st care,

in teg rity , h o n esty , an d  lo y alty  in  d ealin g s w ith  th e L esso r.

T o  th e L essee an d  th e L esso r: a. D ilig en t ex ercise o f reaso n ab le sk ills an d  care in

p erfo rm an ce o f th e ag en t’s d u ties, b . A  d u ty  o f h o n est an d  fair

d ealin g  an d  g o o d  faith . c. A  d u ty  to  d isclo se all facts k n o w n

to  th e ag en t m aterially  affectin g  th e v alu e o r d esirab ility  o f th e p ro p erty  th at are

n o t k n o w n  to , o r w ith in  th e d ilig en t atten tio n  an d

o b serv atio n  o f, th e P arties. A n  ag en t is n o t o b lig ated  to  rev eal to  eith er

P arty  an y  co n fid en tial in fo rm atio n  o b tain ed  fro m  th e o th er

P arty  w h ich  d o es n o t in v o lv e th e affirm ativ e d u ties set fo rth

ab o v e. (ii) L essee’s A g en t. A n  ag en t can  ag ree to  act as ag en t fo r th e L essee o n ly .

In  th ese situ atio n s, th e ag en t is n o t th e L esso r’s ag en t, ev en  if b y  ag reem en t

th e ag en t m ay  receiv e co m p en satio n  fo r serv ices ren d ered , eith er in  fu ll o r in

p art fro m  th e L esso r. A n  ag en t actin g  o n ly  fo r a L essee h as th e

fo llo w in g  affirm ativ e o b lig atio n s. T o  th e L essee: A  fid u ciary

d u ty  o f u tm o st care, in teg rity , h o n esty , an d  lo y alty  in

d ealin g s w ith  th e L essee. T o  th e L essee an d  th e L esso r: a. D ilig en t ex ercise o f

reaso n ab le sk ills an d  care in  p erfo rm an ce o f th e ag en t’s d u ties, b . A  d u ty

o f h o n est an d  fair d ealin g  an d  g o o d  faith , c. A  d u ty  to

d isclo se all facts k n o w n  to  th e ag en t m aterially  affectin g  th e v alu e o r d esirab ility

o f th e p ro p erty  th at are n o t k n o w n  to , o r w ith in  th e

d ilig en t atten tio n  an d  o b serv atio n  o f, th e P arties. A n  ag en t is n o t

o b lig ated  to  rev eal to  eith er P arty  an y  co n fid en tial in fo rm atio n

o b tain ed  fro m  th e o th er P arty  w h ich  d o es n o t in v o lv e

th e affirm ativ e d u ties set fo rth  ab o v e. (iii) A g en t R ep resen tin g  B o th

L esso r an d  L essee. A  real estate ag en t, eith er actin g  d irectly  o r th ro u g h  o n e o r

m o re asso ciate licen ses, can  leg ally  b e th e ag en t o f b o th  th e L esso r an d  th e L essee

in  a tran sactio n , b u t o n ly  w ith  th e k n o w led g e an d

co n sen t o f b o th  th e L esso r an d  th e L essee. In  a d u al ag en cy

situ atio n , th e ag en t h as th e fo llo w in g  affirm ativ e o b lig atio n s to

b o th  th e L esso r an d  th e L essee: a. A  fid u ciary  d u ty  o f u tm o st care,

in teg rity , h o n esty  an d  lo y alty  in  th e d ealin g s w ith  eith er L esso r

o r th e L essee, b . O th er d u ties to  th e L esso r an d  th e L essee as stated  ab o v e in

su b p arag rap h s (i) o r (ii). In  rep resen tin g  b o th  L esso r an d  L essee, th e

ag en t m ay  n o t w ith o u t th e ex p ress p erm issio n  o f th e resp ectiv e

P arty , d isclo se to  th e o th er P arty  th at th e L esso r w ill accep t ren t in  an

am o u n t less th an  th at in d icated  in  th e listin g  o r th at th e L essee is w illin g  to

p ay  a h ig h er ren t th an  th at o ffered . T h e ab o v e d u ties o f th e ag en t

in  a real estate tran sactio n  d o  n o t reliev e a L esso r o r L essee fro m  th e resp o n sib ility  to

p ro tect th eir o w n  in terests. L esso r an d  L essee sh o u ld  carefu lly  read  all ag reem en ts

to  assu re th at th ey  ad eq u ately  ex p ress th eir u n d erstan d in g  o f th e

tran sactio n . A  real estate ag en t is a p erso n  q u alified  to  ad v ise ab o u t real estate. If leg al o r tax

ad v ice is d esired , co n su lt a co m p eten t p ro fessio n al. (b ) B ro k ers h av e

n o  resp o n sib ility  w ith  resp ect to  an y  d efau lt o r b reach  h ereo f b y

eith er P arty . T h e P arties ag ree th at n o  law su it o r o th er leg al p ro ceed in g

in v o lv in g  an y  b reach  o f d u ty , erro r o r o m issio n  relatin g

to  th is L ease m ay  b e b ro u g h t ag ain st B ro k er m o re th an  o n e

y ear after th e S tart D ate an d  th at th e liab ility  (in clu d in g  co u rt co sts an d

atto rn ey s’ fees), o f an y  B ro k er w ith  resp ect to  an y  su ch  law su it an d /o r

leg al p ro ceed in g  sh all n o t ex ceed  th e fee receiv ed  b y  su ch  B ro k er

p u rsu an t to  th is L ease; p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at th e

fo reg o in g  lim itatio n  o n  each  B ro k er’s liab ility  sh all n o t b e

ap p licab le to  an y  g ro ss n eg lig en ce o r w illfu l m isco n d u ct o f

su ch  B ro k er. (c) L esso r an d  L essee ag ree to  id en tify  to  B ro k ers as

“C o n fid en tial” an y  co m m u n icatio n  o r in fo rm atio n

g iv en  B ro k ers th at is co n sid ered  b y  su ch  P arty  to  b e

co n fid en tial. 2 6 . N o  R ig h t T o  H o ld o v er. L essee h as n o

rig h t to  retain  p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises o r an y  p art th ereo f

b ey o n d  th e ex p iratio n  o r term in atio n  o f th is L ease. In  th e ev en t

th at L essee h o ld s o v er, th en  th e B ase R en t sh all b e in creased  to  1 2 5 %

o f th e B ase R en t ap p licab le im m ed iately  p reced in g  th e ex p iratio n  o r

term in atio n . N o th in g  co n tain ed  h erein  sh all b e co n stru ed  as

co n sen t b y  L esso r to  an y  h o ld in g  o v er b y  L essee 2 7 .

C u m u lativ e R em ed ies. N o  rem ed y  o r electio n  h ereu n d er sh all b e

d eem ed  ex clu siv e b u t sh all, w h erev er p o ssib le, b e cu m u lativ e w ith  all

o th er rem ed ies at law  o r in  eq u ity . 2 8 . C o v en an ts an d

C o n d itio n s; C o n stru ctio n  o f A g reem en t. A ll

p ro v isio n s o f th is L ease to  b e o b serv ed  o r p erfo rm ed  b y  L essee are

b o th  co v en an ts an d  co n d itio n s. In  co n stru in g  th is L ease, all

h ead in g s an d  titles are fo r th e co n v en ien ce o f th e P arties o n ly  an d  sh all

n o t b e co n sid ered  a p art o f th is L ease. Wh en ev er req u ired  b y  th e

co n tex t, th e sin g u lar sh all in clu d e th e p lu ral an d  v ice v ersa. T h is L ease sh all

n o t b e co n stru ed  as if p rep ared  b y  o n e o f th e P arties, b u t rath er

acco rd in g  to  its fair m ean in g  as a w h o le, as if b o th  P arties h ad  p rep ared  it.

2 9 . B in d in g  E ffect; C h o ice o f L aw . T h is L ease sh all b e

b in d in g  u p o n  th e P arties, th eir p erso n al rep resen tativ es, su ccesso rs an d

assig n s an d  b e g o v ern ed  b y  th e law s o f th e S tate in  w h ich  th e

P rem ises are lo cated . A n y  litig atio n  b etw een  th e P arties h ereto  co n cern in g

th is L ease sh all b e in itiated  in  th e co u n ty  in  w h ich  th e P rem ises are lo cated .

3 0 . S u b o rd in atio n ; A tto rn m en t; N o n -D istu rb an ce.

3 0 .1  S u b o rd in atio n . T h is L ease an d  an y  O p tio n

g ran ted  h ereb y  sh all b e su b ject an d  su b o rd in ate to  an y

g ro u n d  lease, m o rtg ag e, d eed  o f tru st, o r o th er

h y p o th ecatio n  o r secu rity  d ev ice (co llectiv ely , “S ecu rity  D ev ice”),

n o w  o r h ereafter p laced  u p o n  th e P rem ises, to  an y  an d  all ad v an ces

m ad e o n  th e secu rity  th ereo f, an d  to  all ren ew als, m o d ificatio n s, an d

ex ten sio n s th ereo f. L essee ag rees th at th e h o ld ers o f an y  su ch  S ecu rity

D ev ices (in  th is L ease to g eth er referred  to  as “L en d er”) sh all h av e n o  liab ility  o r

o b lig atio n  to  p erfo rm  an y  o f th e o b lig atio n s o f L esso r

u n d er th is L ease. A n y  L en d er m ay  elect to  h av e th is L ease an d /o r

an y  O p tio n  g ran ted  h ereb y  su p erio r to  th e lien  o f its S ecu rity

D ev ice b y  g iv in g  w ritten  n o tice th ereo f to  L essee w h ereu p o n

th is L ease an d  su ch  O p tio n s sh all b e d eem ed  p rio r to  su ch

S ecu rity  D ev ice, n o tw ith stan d in g  th e relativ e d ates o f th e

d o cu m en tatio n  o r reco rd atio n  th ereo f. 3 0 .2  A tto rn m en t.

In  th e ev en t th at L esso r tran sfers title to  th e P rem ises, o r th e P rem ises are acq u ired  b y

an o th er u p o n  th e fo reclo su re o r term in atio n  o f a S ecu rity  D ev ise

to  w h ich  th is L ease is su b o rd in ated  (i) L essee sh all, su b ject to  th e n o n -

d istu rb an ce p ro v isio n s o f P arag rap h  3 0 .3 , atto rn  to  su ch

n ew  o w n er, an d  u p o n  req u est, en ter in to  a n ew  lease,

co n tain in g  all o f th e term s an d  p ro v isio n s o f th is L ease, w ith  su ch

n ew  o w n er fo r th e rem ain d er o f th e term  h ereo f, o r, at th e electio n  o f th e

n ew  o w n er, th is L ease w ill au to m atically  b eco m e a n ew  lease b etw een  L essee

an d  su ch  n ew  o w n er, an d  (ii) L esso r sh all th ereafter b e reliev ed  o f an y

fu rth er o b lig atio n s h ereu n d er an d  su ch  n ew  o w n er sh all

assu m e all o f L esso r’s o b lig atio n s, ex cep t th at su ch  n ew  o w n er sh all

n o t: (a) b e liab le fo r an y  act o r o m issio n  o f an y  p rio r lesso r o r w ith  resp ect

to  ev en ts o ccu rrin g  p rio r to  acq u isitio n  o f P A G E  1 4

O F  1 8  IN IT IA L S  IN lT IA L S  © 2 0 0 1  - A IR

C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  F O R M S T N -1 0 -6 /0 7 E

 



 o w n ersh ip ; (b ) b e su b ject to  an y  o ffsets o r d efen ses w h ich  L essee

m ig h t h av e ag ain st an y  p rio r lesso r, (c) b e b o u n d  b y

p rep ay m en t o f m o re th an  o n e m o n th ’s ren t, o r (d ) b e liab le fo r

th e retu rn  o f an y  secu rity  d ep o sit p aid  to  an y  p rio r lesso r w h ich

w as n o t p aid  o r cred ited  to  su ch  n ew  o w n er. 3 0 .3  N o n -

D istu rb an ce. With  resp ect to  S ecu rity  D ev ices en tered  in to  b y  L esso r after th e

ex ecu tio n  o f th is L ease, L essee’s su b o rd in atio n  o f th is L ease sh all b e su b ject

to  receiv in g  a co m m ercially  reaso n ab le n o n -d istu rb an ce ag reem en t (a

“N o n -D istu rb an ce A g reem en t”) fro m  th e L en d er w h ich

N o n -D istu rb an ce A g reem en t p ro v id es th at L essee’s p o ssessio n  o f

th e P rem ises, an d  th is L ease, in clu d in g  an y  o p tio n s to  ex ten d

th e term  h ereo f, w ill n o t b e d istu rb ed  so  lo n g  as L essee is n o t in  B reach

h ereo f an d  atto rn s to  th e reco rd  o w n er o f th e P rem ises. F u rth er,

w ith in  6 0  d ay s after th e ex ecu tio n  o f th is L ease, L esso r sh all, if req u ested

b y  L essee, u se its co m m ercially  reaso n ab le effo rts to  o b tain  a N o n -

D istu rb an ce A g reem en t fro m  th e h o ld er o f an y  p re-ex istin g

S ecu rity  D ev ice w h ich  is secu red  b y  th e P rem ises. In  th e ev en t th at L esso r is

u n ab le to  p ro v id e th e N o n -D istu rb an ce A g reem en t

w ith in  said  6 0  d ay s, th en  L essee m ay , at L essee’s o p tio n , d irectly  co n tact

L en d er an d  attem p t to  n eg o tiate fo r th e ex ecu tio n  an d  d eliv ery

o f a N o n -D istu rb an ce A g reem en t. 3 0 .4  S elf-E x ecu tin g .

T h e ag reem en ts co n tain ed  in  th is P arag rap h  3 0  sh all b e effectiv e

w ith o u t th e ex ecu tio n  o f an y  fu rth er d o cu m en ts;

p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at, u p o n  w ritten  req u est fro m  L esso r

o r a L en d er in  co n n ectio n  w ith  a sale, fin an cin g  o r refin an cin g  o f

th e P rem ises, L essee an d  L esso r sh all ex ecu te su ch  fu rth er w ritin g s as m ay  b e

reaso n ab ly  req u ired  to  sep arately  d o cu m en t an y

su b o rd in atio n , atto rn m en t an d /o r N o n -D istu rb an ce

A g reem en t p ro v id ed  fo r h erein . 3 1 . A tto rn ey s’ F ees. If an y

P arty  o r B ro k er b rin g s an  actio n  o r p ro ceed in g

in v o lv in g  th e P rem ises w h eth er fo u n d ed  in  to rt, co n tract o r

eq u ity , o r to  d eclare rig h ts h ereu n d er, th e P rev ailin g  P arty  (as h ereafter

d efin ed ) in  an y  su ch  p ro ceed in g , actio n , o r ap p eal th ereo n , sh all

b e en titled  to  reaso n ab le atto rn ey s’ fees. S u ch  fees m ay  b e aw ard ed  in  th e sam e

su it o r reco v ered  in  a sep arate su it, w h eth er o r n o t su ch  actio n  o r

p ro ceed in g  is p u rsu ed  to  d ecisio n  o r ju d g m en t. T h e term ,

“P rev ailin g  P arty ” sh all in clu d e, w ith o u t lim itatio n , a P arty  o r

B ro k er w h o  su b stan tially  o b tain s o r d efeats th e relief so u g h t, as th e case

m ay  b e, w h eth er b y  co m p ro m ise, settlem en t, ju d g m en t, o r th e

ab an d o n m en t b y  th e o th er P arty  o r B ro k er o f its claim  o r

d efen se. T h e atto rn ey s’ fees aw ard  sh all n o t b e co m p u ted  in  acco rd an ce

w ith  an y  co u rt fee sch ed u le, b u t sh all b e su ch  as to  fu lly  reim b u rse all

atto rn ey s’ fees reaso n ab ly  in cu rred . In  ad d itio n , L esso r sh all b e en titled  to

atto rn ey s’ fees, co sts an d  ex p en ses in cu rred  in  th e p rep aratio n  an d  serv ice o f

n o tices o f D efau lt an d  co n su ltatio n s in  co n n ectio n  th erew ith ,

w h eth er o r n o t a leg al actio n  is su b seq u en tly  co m m en ced  in

co n n ectio n  w ith  su ch  D efau lt o r resu ltin g  B reach  ($ 2 0 0  is a

reaso n ab le m in im u m  p er o ccu rren ce fo r su ch  serv ices an d

co n su ltatio n ). 3 2 . L esso r’s A ccess; S h o w in g  P rem ises; R ep airs. L esso r

an d  L esso r’s ag en ts sh all h av e th e rig h t to  en ter th e P rem ises at an y  tim e, in  th e case

o f an  em erg en cy , an d  o th erw ise at reaso n ab le tim es after reaso n ab le p rio r n o tice

fo r th e p u rp o se o f sh o w in g  th e sam e to  p ro sp ectiv e p u rch asers,

len d ers, o r ten an ts, an d  m ak in g  su ch  alteratio n s, rep airs, im p ro v em en ts

o r ad d itio n s to  th e P rem ises as L esso r m ay  d eem  n ecessary  o r d esirab le an d

th e erectin g , u sin g  an d  m ain tain in g  o f u tilities, serv ices, p ip es an d

co n d u its th ro u g h  th e P rem ises an d /o r o th er p rem ises as lo n g  as

th ere is n o  m aterial ad v erse effect to  L essee’s u se o f th e P rem ises. A ll su ch  activ ities sh all b e

w ith o u t ab atem en t o f ren t o r liab ility  to  L essee. *  (S ee attach m en t) 3 3 .

A u ctio n s. L essee sh all n o t co n d u ct, n o r p erm it to  b e

co n d u cted , an y  au ctio n  u p o n  th e P rem ises w ith o u t

L esso r’s p rio r w ritten  co n sen t. L esso r sh all n o t b e o b lig ated  to  ex ercise

an y  stan d ard  o f reaso n ab len ess in  d eterm in in g  w h eth er to  p erm it

an  au ctio n . 3 4 . S ig n s. L esso r m ay  p lace o n  th e P rem ises

o rd in ary  “F o r S ale” sig n s at an y  tim e an d  o rd in ary  “F o r L ease”

sig n s d u rin g  th e last 6  m o n th s o f th e term  h ereo f. E x cep t fo r

o rd in ary  “fo r su b lease” sig n s, L essee sh all n o t p lace an y  sig n  u p o n

th e P rem ises w ith o u t L esso r’s p rio r w ritten  co n sen t. A ll sig n s m u st

co m p ly  w ith  all A p p licab le R eq u irem en ts. 3 5 . T erm in atio n ;

Merg er. U n less sp ecifically  stated  o th erw ise in  w ritin g  b y  L esso r, th e

v o lu n tary  o r o th er su rren d er o f th is L ease b y  L essee, th e m u tu al

term in atio n  o r can cellatio n  h ereo f, o r a term in atio n  h ereo f b y  L esso r fo r

B reach  b y  L essee, sh all au to m atically  term in ate an y  su b lease o r lesser estate in  th e P rem ises;

p ro v id ed , h o w ev er, th at L esso r m ay  elect to  co n tin u e an y

o n e o r all ex istin g  su b ten an cies. L esso r’s failu re w ith in  1 0  d ay s

fo llo w in g  an y  su ch  ev en t to  elect to  th e co n trary  b y  w ritten

n o tice to  th e h o ld er o f an y  su ch  lesser in terest, sh all co n stitu te L esso r’s electio n  to

h av e su ch  ev en t co n stitu te th e term in atio n  o f su ch  in terest. 3 6 .

C o n sen ts. E x cep t as o th erw ise p ro v id ed  h erein , w h erev er in  th is

L ease th e co n sen t o f a P arty  is req u ired  to  an  act b y  o r fo r th e o th er P arty ,

su ch  co n sen t sh all n o t b e u n reaso n ab ly  w ith h eld  o r

d elay ed . L esso r’s actu al reaso n ab le co sts an d  ex p en ses (in clu d in g  b u t

n o t lim ited  to  arch itects’, atto rn ey s’, en g in eers’ an d  o th er co n su ltan ts’ fees)

in cu rred  in  th e co n sid eratio n  o f, o r resp o n se to , a req u est b y  L essee fo r

an y  L esso r co n sen t, in clu d in g  b u t n o t lim ited  to  co n sen ts

to  an  assig n m en t, a su b lettin g  o r th e p resen ce o r u se o f a H azard o u s

S u b stan ce, sh all b e p aid  b y  L essee u p o n  receip t o f an  in v o ice

an d  su p p o rtin g  d o cu m en tatio n  th erefo r. L esso r’s co n sen t

to  an y  act, assig n m en t o r su b lettin g  sh all n o t co n stitu te an

ack n o w led g m en t th at n o  D efau lt o r B reach  b y  L essee o f th is L ease

ex ists, n o r sh all su ch  co n sen t b e d eem ed  a w aiv er o f an y  th en

ex istin g  D efau lt o r B reach , ex cep t as m ay  b e o th erw ise sp ecifically  stated  in

w ritin g  b y  L esso r at th e tim e o f su ch  co n sen t. T h e failu re to  sp ecify

h erein  an y  p articu lar co n d itio n  to  L esso r’s co n sen t sh all n o t

p reclu d e th e im p o sitio n  b y  L esso r at th e tim e o f co n sen t o f su ch

fu rth er o r o th er co n d itio n s as are th en  reaso n ab le w ith  referen ce to  th e p articu lar

m atter fo r w h ich  co n sen t is b ein g  g iv en . In  th e ev en t th at eith er P arty

d isag rees w ith  an y  d eterm in atio n  m ad e b y  th e o th er h ereu n d er

an d  reaso n ab ly  req u ests th e reaso n s fo r su ch  d eterm in atio n , th e

d eterm in in g  p arty  sh all fu rn ish  its reaso n s in  w ritin g  an d  in

reaso n ab le d etail w ith in  1 0  b u sin ess d ay s fo llo w in g  su ch

req u est. 3 7 . G u aran to r. (R E S E R V E D ) 3 8 . Q u iet

P o ssessio n . S u b ject to  p ay m en t b y  L essee o f th e R en t an d

p erfo rm an ce o f all o f th e co v en an ts, co n d itio n s an d

p ro v isio n s o n  P A G E  1 5  O F  1 8  IN IT IA L S
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 L essee’s p art to  b e o b serv ed  an d  p erfo rm ed  u n d er th is L ease, L essee sh all

h av e q u iet p o ssessio n  an d  q u iet en jo y m en t o f th e P rem ises

d u rin g  th e term  h ereo f. 3 9 . O p tio n s. If L essee is g ran ted  an

O p tio n , as d efin ed  b elo w , th en  th e fo llo w in g

p ro v isio n s sh all ap p ly : 3 9 .1  D efin itio n . “O p tio n ” sh all

m ean : (a) th e rig h t to  ex ten d  o r red u ce th e term  o f o r ren ew  th is L ease o r to

ex ten d  o r red u ce th e term  o f o r ren ew  an y  lease th at L essee h as o n  o th er

p ro p erty  o f L esso r; (b ) th e rig h t o f first refu sal o r first o ffer to  lease eith er th e P rem ises o r

o th er p ro p erty  o f L esso r; (c) th e rig h t to  p u rch ase, th e rig h t o f first o ffer to

p u rch ase o r th e rig h t o f first refu sal to  p u rch ase th e P rem ises o r o th er

p ro p erty  o f L esso r. 3 9 .2  O p tio n s P erso n al T o  O rig in al

L essee. A n y  O p tio n  g ran ted  to  L essee in  th is L ease is p erso n al to  th e

o rig in al L essee, an d  can n o t b e assig n ed  o r ex ercised  b y  an y o n e

o th er th an  said  o rig in al L essee an d  o n ly  w h ile th e o rig in al L essee is in

fu ll p o ssessio n  o f th e P rem ises an d , if req u ested  b y  L esso r, w ith  L essee

certify in g  th at L essee h as n o  in ten tio n  o f th ereafter assig n in g  o r

su b lettin g . 3 9 .3  Mu ltip le O p tio n s. In  th e ev en t th at L essee h as

an y  m u ltip le O p tio n s to  ex ten d  o r ren ew  th is L ease, a later O p tio n

can n o t b e ex ercised  u n less th e p rio r O p tio n s h av e b een  v alid ly

ex ercised . 3 9 .4  E ffect o f D efau lt o n  O p tio n s. (a) L essee sh all h av e n o

rig h t to  ex ercise an  O p tio n : (i) d u rin g  th e p erio d

co m m en cin g  w ith  th e g iv in g  o f an y  n o tice o f D efau lt

an d  co n tin u in g  u n til said  D efau lt is cu red , (ii) d u rin g  th e

p erio d  o f tim e an y  R en t is u n p aid  (w ith o u t reg ard  to

w h eth er n o tice th ereo f is g iv en  L essee), (iii) d u rin g  th e tim e L essee is in  B reach  o f

th is L ease, o r (iv ) in  th e ev en t th at L essee h as b een  g iv en  3  o r m o re n o tices

o f sep arate D efau lt, w h eth er o r n o t th e D efau lts are cu red , d u rin g  th e 1 2

m o n th  p erio d  im m ed iately  p reced in g  th e ex ercise o f th e

O p tio n . (b ) T h e p erio d  o f tim e w ith in  w h ich  an

O p tio n  m ay  b e ex ercised  sh all n o t b e ex ten d ed  o r en larg ed

b y  reaso n  o f L essee’s in ab ility  to  ex ercise an  O p tio n  b ecau se o f th e

p ro v isio n s o f P arag rap h  3 9 .4 (a). (c) A n  O p tio n  sh all term in ate

an d  b e o f n o  fu rth er fo rce o r effect, n o tw ith stan d in g  L essee’s d u e

an d  tim ely  ex ercise o f th e O p tio n , if, after su ch  ex ercise an d  p rio r to  th e

co m m en cem en t o f th e ex ten d ed  term  o r co m p letio n  o f th e

p u rch ase, (i) L essee fails to  p ay  R en t fo r a p erio d  o f 3 0  d ay s after su ch  R en t

b eco m es d u e (w ith o u t an y  n ecessity  o f L esso r to  g iv e n o tice

th ereo f), o r (ii) if L essee co m m its a B reach  o f th is L ease. 4 0 . Mu ltip le B u ild in g s. If

th e P rem ises are a p art o f a g ro u p  o f b u ild in g s co n tro lled  b y

L esso r, L essee ag rees th at it w ill ab id e b y  an d  co n fo rm  to  all reaso n ab le ru les

an d  reg u latio n s w h ich  L esso r m ay  m ak e fro m  tim e to  tim e fo r th e

m an ag em en t, safety , an d  care o f said  p ro p erties, in clu d in g  th e care an d

clean lin ess o f th e g ro u n d s an d  in clu d in g  th e p ark in g ,

lo ad in g  an d  u n lo ad in g  o f v eh icles, an d  to  cau se its

em p lo y ees, su p p liers, sh ip p ers, cu sto m ers, co n tracto rs an d  in v itees to  so

ab id e an d  co n fo rm . L essee also  ag rees to  p ay  its fair sh are o f co m m o n

ex p en ses in cu rred  in  co n n ectio n  w ith  su ch  ru les an d

reg u latio n s. 4 1 . S ecu rity  Measu res. L essee h ereb y  ack n o w led g es th at

th e R en t p ay ab le to  L esso r h ereu n d er d o es n o t in clu d e th e co st

o f g u ard  serv ice o r o th er secu rity  m easu res, an d  th at L esso r sh all h av e n o

o b lig atio n  w h atso ev er to  p ro v id e sam e. L essee assu m es all

resp o n sib ility  fo r th e p ro tectio n  o f th e P rem ises, L essee, its ag en ts an d  in v itees

an d  th eir p ro p erty  fro m  th e acts o f th ird  p arties. 4 2 . R eserv atio n s. L esso r

reserv es to  itself th e rig h t, fro m  tim e to  tim e, to  g ran t, w ith o u t th e co n sen t o r

jo in d er o f L essee, su ch  easem en ts, rig h ts an d  d ed icatio n s th at L esso r d eem s

n ecessary , an d  to  cau se th e reco rd atio n  o f p arcel m ap s an d  restrictio n s, so

lo n g  as su ch  easem en ts, rig h ts, d ed icatio n s, m ap s an d  restrictio n s d o

n o t u n reaso n ab ly  in terfere w ith  th e u se o f th e P rem ises b y  L essee. L essee ag rees

to  sig n  an y  d o cu m en ts reaso n ab ly  req u ested  b y  L esso r to

effectu ate an y  su ch  easem en t rig h ts, d ed icatio n , m ap  o r restrictio n s. 4 3 .

P erfo rm an ce U n d er P ro test. If at an y  tim e a d isp u te sh all arise as to  an y

am o u n t o r su m  o f m o n ey  to  b e p aid  b y  o n e P arty

to  th e o th er u n d er th e p ro v isio n s h ereo f, th e P arty  ag ain st

w h o m  th e o b lig atio n  to  p ay  th e m o n ey  is asserted  sh all h av e

th e rig h t to  m ak e p ay m en t “u n d er p ro test” an d  su ch

p ay m en t sh all n o t b e reg ard ed  as a v o lu n tary  p ay m en t an d

th ere sh all su rv iv e th e rig h t o n  th e p art o f said  P arty  to  in stitu te su it fo r

reco v ery  o f su ch  su m . If it sh all b e ad ju d g ed  th at th ere w as n o  leg al

o b lig atio n  o n  th e p art o f said  P arty  to  p ay  su ch  su m  o r

an y  p art th ereo f, said  P arty  sh all b e en titled  to  reco v er su ch  su m  o r so

m u ch  th ereo f as it w as n o t leg ally  req u ired  to  p ay . A  P arty  w h o

d o es n o t in itiate su it fo r th e reco v ery  o f su m s p aid  “u n d er p ro test”

w ith  6  m o n th s sh all b e d eem ed  to  h av e w aiv ed  its rig h t to

p ro test su ch  p ay m en t. 4 4 . A u th o rity ; Mu ltip le P arties;

E x ecu tio n . (a) If eith er P arty  h ereto  is a co rp o ratio n , tru st, lim ited  liab ility

co m p an y , p artn ersh ip , o r sim ilar en tity , each  in d iv id u al

ex ecu tin g  th is L ease o n  b eh alf o f su ch  en tity  rep resen ts an d  w arran ts th at

h e o r sh e is d u ly  au th o rized  to  ex ecu te an d  d eliv er th is L ease o n  its

b eh alf (b ) If th is L ease is ex ecu ted  b y  m o re th an  o n e p erso n  o r en tity  as

“L essee”, each  su ch  p erso n  o r en tity  sh all b e jo in tly  an d  sev erally  liab le

h ereu n d er. It is ag reed  th at an y  o n e o f th e n am ed  L essees sh all b e

em p o w ered  to  ex ecu te an y  am en d m en t to  th is L ease, o r o th er

d o cu m en t an cillary  th ereto  an d  b in d  all o f th e n am ed  L essees, an d

L esso r m ay  rely  o n  th e sam e as if all o f th e n am ed  L essees h ad  ex ecu ted  su ch

d o cu m en t. (c) T h is L ease m ay  b e ex ecu ted  b y  th e P arties in

co u n terp arts, each  o f w h ich  sh all b e d eem ed  an  o rig in al an d  ail o f

w h ich  to g eth er sh all co n stitu te o n e an d  th e sam e in stru m en t. 4 5 .

C o n flict. 4 6 . O ffer. P rep aratio n  o f th is L ease b y  eith er P arty  o r th eir ag en t

an d  su b m issio n  o f sam e to  th e o th er P arty  sh all n o t b e d eem ed

an  o ffer to  lease to  th e o th er P arty . T h is L ease is n o t in ten d ed  to  b e

b in d in g  u n til ex ecu ted  an d  d eliv ered  b y  all P arties h ereto . 4 7 .

A m en d m en ts. T h is L ease m ay  b e m o d ified  o n ly  in

w ritin g , sig n ed  b y  th e P arties in  in terest at th e tim e o f th e m o d ificatio n . A s

lo n g  as th ey  d o  n o t m aterially  ch an g e L essee’s o b lig atio n s

h ereu n d er, L essee ag rees to  m ak e su ch  reaso n ab le n o n -m o n etary

m o d ificatio n s to  th is L ease as m ay  b e reaso n ab ly  req u ired  b y  a

L en d er in  co n n ectio n  w ith  th e o b tain in g  o f n o rm al

fin an cin g  o r refin an cin g  o f th e P rem ises. P A G E  1 6  O F

1 8  IN IT IA L S  IN IT IA L S  © 2 0 0 1  - A IR

C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  F O R M S T N -1 0 -6 /0 7 E

 



 4 8 . Waiv er o f Ju ry  T rial. T H E  P A R T IE S

H E R E B Y  WA IV E  T H E IR

R E S P E C T IV E  R IG H T S  T O  T R IA L  B Y

JU R Y  IN  A N Y  A C T IO N  O R

P R O C E E D IN G  IN V O L V IN G  T H E

P R O P E R T Y  O R  A R IS IN G  O U T  O F

T H IS  A G R E E ME N T . 4 9 . Med iatio n  an d

A rb itratio n  o f D isp u tes. A n  A d d en d u m  req u irin g  th e

Med iatio n  an d /o r th e A rb itratio n  o f all d isp u tes b etw een  th e P arties

an d /o r B ro k ers arisin g  o u t o f th is L ease is is n o t attach ed  to  th is L ease. * (S ee

attach m en t) 5 0 . A m erican s w ith  D isab ilities A ct. S in ce co m p lian ce w ith  th e

A m erican s w ith  D isab ilities A ct (A D A ) is d ep en d en t u p o n  L essee’s sp ecific

u se o f th e P rem ises, L esso r m ak es n o  w arran ty  o r rep resen tatio n  as to

w h eth er o r n o t th e P rem ises co m p ly  w ith  A D A  o r an y  sim ilar

leg islatio n . In  th e ev en t th at L essee’s u se o f th e P rem ises req u ires m o d ificatio n s o r

ad d itio n s to  th e P rem ises in  o rd er to  b e in  A D A  co m p lian ce, L essee

ag rees to  m ak e an y  su ch  n ecessary  m o d ificatio n s an d /o r ad d itio n s at

L essee’s ex p en se. L E S S O R  A N D  L E S S E E

H A V E  C A R E F U L L Y  R E A D  A N D

R E V IE WE D  T H IS  L E A S E  A N D  E A C H

T E R M A N D  P R O V IS IO N  C O N T A IN E D

H E R E IN , A N D  B Y  T H E  E X E C U T IO N

O F  T H IS  L E A S E  S H O W T H E IR

IN F O R ME D  A N D  V O L U N T A R Y

C O N S E N T  T H E R E T O . T H E

P A R T IE S  H E R E B Y  A G R E E  T H A T ,

A T  T H E  T IME  T H IS  L E A S E  IS

E X E C U T E D , T H E  T E R MS  O F  T H IS

L E A S E  A R E  C O MME R C IA L L Y

R E A S O N A B L E  A N D

E F F E C T U A T E  T H E  IN T E N T  A N D

P U R P O S E  O F  L E S S O R  A N D

L E S S E E  WIT H  R E S P E C T  T O  T H E

P R E MIS E S . A T T E N T IO N : N O

R E P R E S E N T A T IO N  O R

R E C O MME N D A T IO N  IS  MA D E  B Y

T H E  A IR  C O MME R C IA L  R E A L

E S T A T E  A S S O C IA T IO N  O R  B Y  A N Y

B R O K E R  A S  T O  T H E  L E G A L

S U F F IC IE N C Y , L E G A L  E F F E C T , O R

T A X  C O N S E Q U E N C E S  O F  T H IS

L E A S E  O R  T H E  T R A N S A C T IO N  T O

WH IC H  IT  R E L A T E S . T H E  P A R T IE S

A R E  U R G E D  T O : 1 . S E E K  A D V IC E  O F

C O U N S E L  A S  T O  T H E  L E G A L  A N D

T A X  C O N S E Q U E N C E S  O F  T H IS

L E A S E . 2 . R E T A IN  A P P R O P R IA T E

C O N S U L T A N T S  T O  R E V IE W A N D

IN V E S T IG A T E  T H E  C O N D IT IO N  O F

T H E  P R E MIS E S . S A ID

IN V E S T IG A T IO N  S H O U L D  IN C L U D E

B U T  N O T  B E  L IMIT E D  T O : T H E

P O S S IB L E  P R E S E N C E  O F

H A Z A R D O U S  S U B S T A N C E S , T H E

Z O N IN G  O F  T H E  P R E MIS E S , T H E

S T R U C T U R A L  IN T E G R IT Y , T H E

C O N D IT IO N  O F  T H E  R O O F  A N D

O P E R A T IN G  S Y S T E MS , A N D  T H E

S U IT A B IL IT Y  O F  T H E  P R E MIS E S

F O R  L E S S E E ’S  IN T E N D E D  U S E .

WA R N IN G : IF  T H E  P R E MIS E S  IS

L O C A T E D  IN  A  S T A T E  O T H E R

T H A N  C A L IF O R N IA , C E R T A IN

P R O V IS IO N S  O F  T H E  L E A S E  MA Y

N E E D  T O  B E  R E V IS E D  T O  C O MP L Y

WIT H  T H E  L A WS  O F  T H E  S T A T E  IN

WH IC H  T H E  P R E MIS E S  IS  L O C A T E D .

T h e p arties h ereto  h av e ex ecu ted  th is L ease at th e p lace an d  o n  th e d ates sp ecified

ab o v e th eir resp ectiv e sig n atu res. E x ecu ted  at: E x ecu ted  at: O n : O n :

B y  L E S S O R : B y  L E S S E E : H IL L S ID E

A S S O C IA T E S  II, L L C

A E R O V IR O N ME N T , IN C  . / A

D E L A WA R E  C O R P O R A T IO N  B y : B y :

N am e P rin ted : MA R G A R E T  M. K E S T L E Y

N am e P rin ted : C A T H L E E N  S . C L IN E , T itle:

A U T H O R IZ E D  A G E N T  T itle: V P  A D MIN

B y : B y : N am e P rin ted : N am e P rin ted : T itle: T itle: A d d ress: A d d ress:

T elep h o n e: ( ) T elep h o n e: ( ) F acsim ile: ( ) F acsim ile: ( ) F ed eral ID  N o . F ed eral ID

N o . B R O K E R : B R O K E R : A ttn : A ttn : T itle: T itle:

A d d ress: A d d ress: T elep h o n e: ( ) T elep h o n e: ( ) F acsim ile: ( ) F acsim ile: ( _ )

F ed eral ID  N o . F ed eral ID  N o . P A G E  1 7  O F  1 8

IN IT IA L S  IN IT IA L S  © 2 0 0 1  - A IR

C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  F O R M S T N -1 0 -6 /0 7 E

 



 N O T IC E : T h ese fo rm s are o ften  m o d ified  to  m eet ch an g in g

req u irem en ts o f law  an d  in d u stry  n eed s. A lw ay s w rite o r call to  m ak e

su re y o u  are u tilizin g  th e m o st cu rren t fo rm : A IR  C o m m ercial R eal E state

A sso ciatio n , 8 0 0  W 6 th  S treet, S u ite 8 0 0 , L o s A n g eles,

C A  9 0 0 1 7 . T elep h o n e N o . (2 1 3 ) 6 8 7 -

8 7 7 7 . F ax  N o .: (2 1 3 ) 6 8 7 -8 6 1 6 . ©

C o p y rig h t 2 0 0 1  - B y  A IR  C o m m ercial R eal E state

A sso ciatio n . A ll rig h ts reserv ed . N o  p art o f th ese w o rk s m ay  b e

rep ro d u ced  in  an y  fo rm  w ith o u t p erm issio n  in  w ritin g .

P A G E  1 8  O F  1 8  IN IT IA L S  © 2 0 0 1  - A IR

C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  F O R M S T N -1 0 -6 /0 7 E

 



 D ate: D E C E MB E R  1 2 , 2 0 1 3  B y  an d  B etw een

(L esso r) H IL L S ID E  A S S O C IA T E S  IT , L L C

(L essee)A E R O V IR O N ME N T , IN C ., A

D E L A WA R E  C O R P O R A T IO N  A d d ress o f

P rem ises: 9 9 6  F L O WE R  G L E N  S T R E E T

S IMI V A L L E Y , C A  9 3 0 6 5  1 . B ase R en t P artial

A b atem en t. P ro v id ed  L essee sh all n o t b e in  m aterial d efau lt o f th e L ease, after

an y  ap p licab le n o tice an d  cu re p erio d s, im m ed iately  p rio r to  o r

d u rin g  an y  B ase R en t p artial ab atem en t p erio d , as p ro v id ed  in

th at certain  R en tal C o n cessio n  A g reem en t attach ed  h ereto , th e B ase R en t

p ay ab le b y  L essee to  L esso r fo r th e P rem ises sh all b e p artially  ab ated  to  th e

ex ten t p ro v id ed  an d  d u rin g  th e p erio d s p ro v id ed

in  th at certain  R en tal C o n cessio n  A g reeem en t attach ed  h ereto . 2 .

Main ten an ce an d  R ep airs, P arag rap h  7  o f th is L ease is h ereb y

am en d ed  to  p ro v id e th at L essee sh all b e o b lig ated  to  m an ag e

an d  co n tract d irectly  fo r serv ices related  to  L essee’s o b lig atio n s to  m ain tain  th e

P rem ises, in clu d in g , b u t n o t lim ited  to , all u tilities an d  jan ito rial serv ice, L esso r

sh all b e resp o n sib le, at L esso r’s so le co st an d  ex p en se, fo r th at p o rtio n  o f

ro o f rep lacem en t an d  fu tu re ro o f rep air co st w h ich  ex ceed s

$ 1 ,0 0 0  p er o ccu rren ce, p er b u ild in g . L essee sh all b e resp o n sib le, at

L essee’s so le co st an d  ex p en se, fo r th e first $ 1 ,0 0 0  o f ro o f rep lacem en t

an d  fu tu re ro o f rep air co st n o t p ay ab le b y  L esso r ab o v e. A

ro o f assessm en t o f th e P rem ises sh all b e p erfo rm ed  b y  a licen sed  ro o fin g

co n tracto r. A ll ro o fin g  rep lacem en t an d /o r rep air w o rk  sh all b e

p erfo rm ed  to  ap p licab le g o v ern m en tal co d e req u irem en ts,

w ith in  o n e h u n d red  an d  tw en ty  (1 2 0 ) d ay s o f lease

ex ecu tio n  w eath er p erm ittin g . 3 . T ax  P ro test. D u rin g  th e term  o f

L ease, L essee sh all b e en titled , at its electio n , to  file a p ro test w ith  th e V en tu ra C o u n ty

T ax  A ssesso r’s O ffice to  red u ce th e real p ro p erty  tax es to  reflect th e cu rren t v alu atio n

o f th e P ro p erty . 4 . E x terio r Win d o w s an d  D o o rs. P rio r

to  Jan u ary  3 1 st, 2 0 1 4 , su b ject to  su ch  ex ten sio n  o f

ad d itio n al tim e as m ay  b e req u ired  d u e to  w eath er, L esso r, at L esso rs so le co st

an d  ex p en se, sh all rep air an d  re-seal all ex terio r w in d o w s an d  d o o rs o f

th e P rem ises, In  a w o rk m an -lik e an d  p ro fessio n al m an n er, as m ay  b e

req u ired . L essee sh all m ain tain  all ex terio r w in d o w s an d  d o o rs o f th e

P rem ises th ro u g h o u t T erm  o f th e L ease. 5 . H V A C . L esso r

an d  L essee ag ree th at, w ith in  a co m m ercially  reaso n ab le tim e, u p o n

m u tu al ag reem en t o f L esso r an d  L essee, th e H V A C  u n its o f th e

P rem ises th at h av e ex ceed ed  th eir u sefu l life an d  an y  o th er H V A C

m ajo r co m p o n en ts (su ch  as co m p resso rs, fan s, etc.) th at fail, fo r reaso n s o th er

th an  failu re o f L essee to  m ain tain  su ch  H V A C  m ajo r

co m p o n en ts, d u rin g  th e ex ten d ed  T erm  o f th e L ease

(co llectiv ely , th e “H V A C  Wo rk ”) sh all b e rep aired  o r rep laced , as m ay  b e

req u ired , su b ject to  th e co st allo catio n  p ro v id ed  b elo w . L essee sh all

n o t p erfo rm  an y  o f th e H V A C  Wo rk  w ith o u t L esso r’s

p rio r ap p ro v al o f th e w o rk  to  b e d o n e an d  th e estim ated  co st

o f su ch  w o rk  T h e co st o f su ch  H V A C  Wo rk  sh all b e

b o rn e 5 0 %  b y  L esso r an d  5 0 %  b y  L essee an d  L essee’s sh are

o f su ch  co st sh all b e p ay ab le b y  L essee u p o n  d em an d  b y

L esso r, L essee sh all b e en titled  to  ap p ly  its B ase R en t p artial ab atem en t o r an y

p o rtio n  th ereo f d u rin g  th e tw elfth  (1 2 th ) th ro u g h  th e

six teen th  (1 6 th ) m o n th s o f th e T erm  o f th is L ease, as p ro v id ed

In  th e attach ed  R en tal C o n cessio n  A g reem en t, to  satisfy  its o b lig atio n

fo r its sh are o f su ch  H V A C  Wo rk  an d . In  th e ev en t o f su ch

electio n  b y  L essee, th e am o u n t o f su ch  B ase R en t p artial ab atem en t sh all b e

red u ced  b y  th e am o u n t o f L essee’s sh are o f th e H V A C  Wo rk

so  ap p lied  (B ase ren t is n o t in creased  an d  rem ain s th e sam e. L essee is ju st n o t en titled

to  o ffset co st o f H V A C  w o rk  as ren t co n cessio n  sin ce L essee d id  n o t

p ay ). N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , L essee sh all m ain tain  all

H V A C  u n its an d  H V A C  m ajo r co m p o n en ts

d u rin g  th e T erm  th ro u g h  a serv ice co n tract w ith  L esso r’s

ap p ro v ed  H V A C  v en d o r. 6 . P ark in g  A rea, L esso r sh all,

w ith in  tw elv e (1 2 ) m o n th s o f lease ex ecu tio n  w eath er p erm ittin g

(su ch  w o rk  to  b e d o n e d u rin g  d ay lig h t sav in g s tim e)

slu rry  co at an d  restrip e th e p ark in g  areas o f th e P ro p erty , at L esso r’s so le co st

an d  ex p en se, o n  n o n -w o rk  d ay s (S atu rd ay s an d

S u n d ay s). 7 . R en tal R efu n d  P ay m en t. P ro m p tly  after

m u tu al ex ecu tio n  o f th is A m en d m en t, L esso r ag rees to  refu n d

to  L essee B ase R en t p aid  b y  L essee fo r th e P rem ises d u rin g  2 0 1 3

in  th e am o u n t o f $ 1 0 7 ,5 2 0 . & . O p tio n  to

E x ten d  T erm . L essee sh all h av e o n e (1 ) o p tio n  to  ex ten d  th e

T erm  fo r six ty  (6 0 ) m o n th s o n  th e term s an d  su b ject to  th e

co n d itio n s p ro v id ed  in  th e attach ed  O p tio n  to  R en ew .

9 . S treet P riv atizatio n . L esso r ag rees to  co o p erate w ith  th e C ity  o f S im i

V alley  w ith  resp ect to  th e p riv atizatio n  o f E n ch an ted  Way /F lo w er

G len  S treet. L essee sh all b e resp o n sib le fo r o b tain in g  all ap p ro v als an d

p erm its n ecessary  fo r su ch  p riv atizatio n , at L essee’s so le co st an d  ex p en se. If

E n ch an ted  Way /F lo w er G len  S treet are su ccessfu lly  p riv atized , L essee sh all b e

resp o n sib le fo r all m ain ten an ce o f su ch  p riv atized  street(s), at L essee’s so le co st an d

ex p en se d u rin g  th e L ease term . 1 0 . N o n -D istu rb an ce

A g reem en t. L esso r an d  L essee ack n o w led g e th eir resp ectiv e rig h ts an d

o b lig atio n s u n d er P arag rap h  3 0 .3  reg ard in g  N o n -

D istu rb an ce A g reem en ts. 

 



 A IR  C O MME R C IA L  R E A L  E S T A T E

A S S O C IA T IO N  S T A N D A R D

IN D U S T R IA L /C O MME R C IA L  S IN G L E -

T E N A N T  L E A S E  - N E T

A T T A C H ME N T  7 .1 (b ) H o w ev er, if in  L esso r’s so le

o p in io n  o n e o r m o re serv ice p ro v id ers co n tracted  fo r b y  L essee is

p erfo rm in g  in  a su b stan d ard  fash io n , L esso r m ay  g iv e L essee

3 0  d ay s’ w ritten  n o tice to  cu re th e p ro b lem . S h o u ld  L essee fail to

cu re th e su b stan d ard  p erfo rm an ce w ith in  th at 3 0  d ay  p erio d ,

th en  L esso r m ay , at its o p tio n , p ro cu re an d  m ain tain  a su b stitu te serv ice

p ro v id er(s), th e co st fo r w h ich  L essee sh all reim b u rse L esso r, u p o n

d em an d . 9 .2  ..., ex cep t em erg en cy  rep airs req u ired  in  th e

ju d g m en t o f L essee to  p rev en t ad d itio n al lo ss to  real o r p erso n al

p ro p erty  o f th e p arties h ereto . 9 .4 . ...7  d ay s after L esso r d eterm in es th at

d am ag e is T o tal D estru ctio n . 1 3 .1  (c) N o  d efau lt o r b reach  sh all o ccu r

w h en  access is d en ied  b y  L essee w h en  L esso r o r its em p lo y ees o r ag en ts

d o  n o t co m p ly  w ith  th e citizen sh ip  an d  statu s req u irem en ts o f

th e In tern atio n al T raffic in  A rm s R eg u latio n s o f th e U n ited  S tates

G o v ern m en t. S u ch  reg u latio n s req u ire th at an y o n e

allo w ed  access to  th e b u ild in g  m u st b e a U .S . citizen , leg al p erm an en t

resid en t o r a m em b er o f a p ro tected  class sin ce item s p ro d u ced  in  th e p rem ises are listed

o n  th e U .S . Mu n itio n s list o f th e IT A R . 3 2 . N o  d efau lt o r

b reach  sh all o ccu r w h en  access is d en ied  b y  L essee w h en  L esso r o r its

em p lo y ees o r ag en ts d o  n o t co m p ly  w ith  th e citizen sh ip

an d  statu s req u irem en ts o f th e In tern atio n al T raffic in  A rm s R eg u latio n s

o f th e U n ited  S tates G o v ern m en t. S u ch  reg u latio n s req u ire th at

an y o n e allo w ed  access to  th e b u ild in g  m u st b e a U .S . citizen , leg al

p erm an en t resid en t o r a m em b er o f a p ro tected  class sin ce item s p ro d u ced  in

th e p rem ises are listed  o n  th e U .S . Mu n itio n s list o f th e IT A R . 4 5 ,

A g reem en t co n stitu tes th e en tire ag reem en t b etw een  th e p arties, reg ard less o f an y

p rio r n eg o tiatio n s. T h is A g reem en t sh all o n ly  b e am en d ed

o r o th erw ise ch an g ed  th ro u g h  a w ritin g , sig n ed  b y

b o th  L esso r an d  L essee. 4 9 , T h e p arties sh all ag ree to  first attem p t m ed iatio n

o f an y  d isp u tes, w ith  an  ag reed  to  m ed iato r an d  h is/h er co st sh ared

eq u ally  b y  th e p arties. If said  m ed iatio n  d o es n o t o ccu r w ith in

3 0  d ay s o f th e d isp u te arisin g , th en  eith er p arty  m ay  p ro ceed  to

C o u rt. N o tw ith stan d in g  th e fo reg o in g , lesso r sh all n o t b e

o b lig ated  to  en g ag e in  m ed iatio n  fo r an y  cau se o f actio n

seek in g  p o ssessio n  an d /o r ren ts o w ed  b y  L essee. In  su ch  cases, th e

C iv il co d e an d  th e C o d e o f C iv il P ro ced u re sh all g o v ern

th e d isp u te reso lu tio n .

 



 R E N T  A D JU S T ME N T (S ) S T A N D A R D

L E A S E  A D D E N D U M D ated

D E C E MB E R  1 2 , 2 0 1 3  B y  an d  B etw een

(L esso r) H IL L S ID E  A S S O C IA T E S  II, L L C

(L essee)A E R O V IR O N ME N T , IN C ., A

D E L A WA R E  C O R P O R A T IO N  A d d ress o f

P rem ises: 9 9 6  F L O WE R  G L E N  S T R E E T

S IMI V A L L E Y , C A  9 3 0 6 5  P arag rap h  A .

R E N T  A D JU S T ME N T S : T h e m o n th ly  ren t

fo r each  m o n th  o f th e ad ju stm en t p erio d (s) sp ecified  b elo w  sh all b e

in creased  u sin g  th e m eth o d (s) in d icated  b elo w : (C h eck

Meth o d (s) to  b e U sed  an d  F ill in  A p p ro p riately ) 1 . C o st o f

L iv in g  A d ju stm en t(s) (C O L A ) a. O n  (F ill in  C O L A  D ates):

N /A  th e B ase R en t sh all b e ad ju sted  b y  th e ch an g e, if an y , fro m  th e

B ase Mo n th  sp ecified  b elo w , in  th e C o n su m er P rice In d ex  o f

th e B u reau  o f L ab o r S tatistics o f th e U .S . D ep artm en t o f L ab o r fo r (select

o n e): C P I W (U rb an  Wag e E arn ers an d  C lerical Wo rk ers) o r C P I U

(A ll U rb an  C o n su m ers), fo r (F ill in  U rb an  A rea): N /A  , A ll Item s

(1 9 8 2 -1 9 8 4  =  1 0 0 ), h erein  referred  to  as “C P I”. b . T h e

m o n th ly  ren t p ay ab le in  acco rd an ce w ith  p arag rap h  A .l.a. o f th is

A d d en d u m  sh all b e calcu lated  as fo llo w s: th e B ase R en t set fo rth  in

p arag rap h  1 .5  o f th e attach ed  L ease, sh all b e m u ltip lied  b y  a fractio n  th e

n u m erato r o f w h ich  sh all b e th e C P I o f th e calen d ar m o n th  2

m o n th s p rio r to  th e m o n th (s) sp ecified  in  p arag rap h  A .l.a.

ab o v e d u rin g  w h ich  th e ad ju stm en t is to  tak e effect, an d  th e

d en o m in ato r o f w h ich  sh all b e th e C P I o f th e calen d ar

m o n th  w h ich  is 2  m o n th s p rio r to  (select o n e): th e first m o n th

o f th e term  o f th is L ease as set fo rth  in  p arag rap h  1 .3  (“B ase Mo n th ”) o r (F ill

in  O th er “B ase Mo n th ”): N /A . T h e su m  so  calcu lated  sh all co n stitu te th e

n ew  m o n th ly  ren t h ereu n d er, b u t in  n o  ev en t, sh all an y

su ch  n ew  m o n th ly  ren t b e less th an  th e ren t p ay ab le fo r th e

m o n th  im m ed iately  p reced in g  th e ren t ad ju stm en t. c. In  th e ev en t

th e co m p ilatio n  an d /o r p u b licatio n  o f th e C P I sh all b e tran sferred

to  an y  o th er g o v ern m en tal d ep artm en t o r b u reau  o r

ag en cy  o r sh all b e d isco n tin u ed , th en  th e in d ex  m o st n early

th e sam e as th e C P I sh all b e u sed  to  m ak e su ch  calcu latio n . In  th e ev en t th at

th e P arties can n o t ag ree o n  su ch  altern ativ e in d ex , th en  th e m atter sh all b e

su b m itted  fo r d ecisio n  to  th e A m erican  A rb itratio n  A sso ciatio n  in

acco rd an ce w ith  th e th en  ru les o f said  A sso ciatio n  an d  th e d ecisio n  o f

th e arb itrato rs sh all b e b in d in g  u p o n  th e p arties. T h e co st o f said

A rb itratio n  sh all b e p aid  eq u ally  b y  th e P arties. II. Mark et R en tal V alu e

A d ju stm en t(s) (MR V ) a. O n  (F ill in  MR V  A d ju stm en t D ate(s):

N /A  th e B ase R en t sh all b e ad ju sted  to  th e “Mark et R en tal V alu e” o f th e

p ro p erty  as fo llo w s: 1 ) F o u r m o n th s p rio r to  each  Mark et

R en tal V alu e A d ju stm en t D ate d escrib ed  ab o v e, th e P arties sh all attem p t to

ag ree u p o n  w h at th e n ew  MR V  w ill b e o n  th e ad ju stm en t

d ate. If ag reem en t can n o t b e reach ed  w ith in  th irty  d ay s, th en : (a) L esso r

an d  L essee sh all im m ed iately  ap p o in t a m u tu ally  accep tab le ap p raiser o r

b ro k er to  estab lish  th e n ew  MR V  w ith in  th e n ex t 3 0  d ay s.

A n y  asso ciated  co sts w ill b e sp lit eq u ally  b etw een  th e P arties, o r (b ) B o th

L esso r an d  L essee sh all each  im m ed iately  m ak e a reaso n ab le d eterm in atio n  o f

th e MR V  an d  su b m it su ch  d eterm in atio n , in  w ritin g , to

arb itratio n  in  acco rd an ce w ith  th e fo llo w in g  p ro v isio n s: (i)

With in  1 5  d ay s th ereafter, L esso r an d  L essee sh all each  select an  ap p raiser o r b ro k er

(“C o n su ltan t” -ch eck  o n e) o f th eir ch o ice to  act as an  arb itrato r. T h e tw o

arb itrato rs so  ap p o in ted  sh all im m ed iately  select a th ird  m u tu ally  accep tab le

C o n su ltan t to  act as a th ird  arb itrato r. (ii) T h e 3  arb itrato rs sh all w ith in  3 0

d ay s o f th e ap p o in tm en t o f th e th ird  arb itrato r reach  a d ecisio n  as to

w h at th e actu al MR V  fo r th e P rem ises is, an d  w h eth er L esso r’s o r L essee’s

su b m itted  MR V  is th e clo sest th ereto . T h e d ecisio n  o f a m ajo rity  o f th e

arb itrato rs sh all b e b in d in g  o n  th e P arties. T h e su b m itted  MR V

w h ich  is d eterm in ed  to  b e th e clo sest to  th e actu al MR V  sh all th ereafter b e u sed

b y  th e P arties. P A G E  1  O F  2  IN IT IA L S  IN lT IA L S
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 (iii) If eith er o f th e P arties fails to  ap p o in t an  arb itrato r w ith in  th e sp ecified  1 5  d ay s,

th e arb itrato r tim ely  ap p o in ted  b y  o n e o f th em  sh all reach  a d ecisio n

o n  h is o r h er o w n , an d  said  d ecisio n  sh all b e b in d in g

o n  th e P arties. (iv ) T h e en tire co st o f su ch  arb itratio n  sh all b e p aid  b y  th e

p arty  w h o se su b m itted  MR V  is n o t selected , i.e , th e o n e th at is N O T

th e clo sest to  th e actu al MR V . 2 ) N o tw ith stan d in g  th e

fo reg o in g , th e n ew  MR V  sh all n o t b e less th an  th e ren t p ay ab le

fo r th e m o n th  im m ed iately  p reced in g  th e ren t ad ju stm en t. b .

U p o n  th e estab lish m en t o f each  N ew  Mark et R en tal V alu e: 1 ) th e

n ew  MR V  w ill b eco m e th e n ew  “B ase R en t” fo r th e p u rp o se o f

calcu latin g  an y  fu rth er A d ju stm en ts, an d  2 ) th e first m o n th  o f each

Mark et R en tal V alu e term  sh all b eco m e th e n ew  ‘B ase Mo n th ’ fo r th e

p u rp o se o f calcu latin g  an y  fu rth er A d ju stm en ts. III. F ix ed  R en tal

A d ju stm en t(s) (F R A ) T h e B ase R en t sh all b e in creased  to  th e

fo llo w in g  am o u n ts o n  th e d ates set fo rth  b elo w : O n  (F ill in

F R A  A d ju stm en t D ate(s)): T h e N ew  B ase R en t sh all b e:

D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 3  $ 2 7 ,5 2 5 .0 0

D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 5  $ 2 8 ,7 6 4 .0 0

D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 7  $ 3 0 ,0 5 8 .0 0

D E C E MB E R  1 , 2 0 1 9  $ 3 1 ,4 1 1 .0 0  B .

N O T IC E : U n less sp ecified  o th erw ise h erein , n o tice o f an y  su ch

ad ju stm en ts, o th er th an  F ix ed  R en tal A d ju stm en ts, sh all b e m ad e as

sp ecified  in  p arag rap h  2 3  o f th e L ease. N O T IC E : T h ese fo rm s are

o ften  m o d ified  to  m eet ch an g in g  req u irem en ts o f law  an d

in d u stry  n eed s. A lw ay s w rite o r call to  m ak e su re y o u  are u tilizin g  th e

m o st cu rren t fo rm : A IR  C o m m ercial R eal E state A sso ciatio n , 8 0 0  W

6 th  S treet, S u ite 8 0 0 , L o s A n g eles, C A  9 0 0 1 7 .

T elep h o n e N o . (2 1 3 ) 6 8 7 -8 7 7 7 . F ax  N o .:

(2 1 3 ) 6 8 7 -8 6 1 6 . P A G E  2  O F  2
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RENT CONCESSION AGREEMENT

 
This document shall set-forth the agreement of HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC, a California Liability Company Lessor, and
AEROVIRONMENT, INC., a Delaware Corporation, Lessee concerning the Rent Concessions offered to Lessee in connection with that certain Lease dated
DECEMBER 12, 2013 by and between Lessor and Lessee for the premises located at: 996 FLOWER GLEN STREET City of SIMI VALLEY, State of
California (the “Lease”).
 
AS MATERIAL CONSIDERATION for the Rent Concession set-forth herein is Lessee’s agreement to lease the Premises on the terms and provisions of the
Lease for the entire Lease term.  Lessee acknowledges that the Free Rent as set-forth below (herein called “Rent Concession”) is a concession given to Lessee
for leasing the Premises for the term stated in the Lease Agreement.  In the event Lessee becomes in default of any material Lease provision at any time during
the Lease term and has not cured such default within the applicable Notice and Cure periods in the lease, Lessor and Lessee agree that:  (a) in addition to any
other remedy available to Lessor, Lessor shall be entitled to recover from Lessee the unamortized rental amount of any received Rental Concessions taken by
Lessee prior to such default date, (b) Lessee agrees to pay such amount to Lessor with the next rental payment.  Lessee shall be entitled to the Free Rent
and/or Rent Concession(s) provided below for the applicable period of time referenced below:
 

DECEMBER 1, 2013 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2013 $ 13,762.50
JANUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2014 $ 27,525.00
FEBRUARY 1, 2014 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2014 $ 27,525.00
MARCH 1, 2014 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2014 $ 27,525.00
APRIL 1, 2014 THROUGH APRIL 30, 2014 $ 13,762.50
MAY 1, 2014 THROUGH MAY 31, 2014 $ 13,762.50
JUNE 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2014 $ 3,030.50
NOVEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2014 $ 13,762.50
DECEMBER 1, 2014 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2014 $ 13,762.50
JANUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2015 $ 13,762.50
FEBRUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2015 $ 13,762.50
MARCH 1, 2015 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2015 $ 13,762.50

 
No NNN as defined in the lease shall be abated by the Rent Concession.
 
Rent Concession(s) referenced above equal a fair rental value in a sum as determined at the time the Rent Concession commences.
 
THIS DOCUMENT shall not be deemed binding upon Lessor unless and until it is executed by Lessor and a copy delivered to Lessee.
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.
 

 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California Limited Liability Company A Delaware Corporation
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



 
OPTION TO RENEW

 
Tenant is granted one option to extend the lease for a period of Five (5) years commencing immediately after the expiration of the basic lease term.  It shall be
the obligation of the tenant to notify the Landlord of its intention to exercise its option to renew within the period between 270 days and 360 days prior to
the day that the current lease expires.  The notification of the intent to exercise its option shall be sent by tenant in writing by U.S. mail certified, overnight
courier delivery or registered with return receipt requested.
 
The commencement rent for the first month of the option period shall be equal to comparable market rent for a similar building located within a ten-mile
radius of the lease property giving consideration to all concessions, tenant improvement allowance and rental abatement for a non-renewal and non-sublease
space.  In analyzing the comparable building properties, the parties may take into account all factors including ceiling height, parking ratio, loading docks,
loading doors and height/size of those doors, HVAC, office build out, electrical power and distribution, skylights, yard space, the general location and the
view from inside the building.
 
Upon receipt within the time period spelled out above and the tenant’s exercise of its option to extend said lease both parties will meet and confer in an
attempt to arrive at the beginning rent during the option period.  If the parties are not able to agree on the option period rent, each party shall designate a
licensed real estate broker who has dealt with industrial property in the Simi Valley for not less than 5 years from the date of his appointment, and is at that
time employed by an established real estate brokerage firm.  If both brokers are unable to agree on the reasonable commencement rent for the option period,
then both brokers will attempt to designate a third broker with qualifications at least as stringent as those required of the original brokers. Said third broker
shall be given all of the material used by the original brokers to base their reasonable market value, and said broker shall make his own investigation. The
third broker then shall select the opinion of one broker as the most correct value, and the value selected by said third broker shall be binding upon the parties.
 
If two original brokers cannot agree on a third broker, or if the third broker is unacceptable to the parties as defined herein, then either party may request that
the presiding judge of the Superior Court of the County of Ventura select a commercial real estate broker from the list usually kept by said presiding judge,
and said appointed brokers opinion shall be absolutely binding on all parties.
 
Any outside broker representing the tenant will receive a 2.5% commission for the option term, payable by Landlord.
 
If Lessee is in monetary default on the date of giving the option notice or at any time prior to the commencement of the renewal term, the option notice shall
be totally ineffective and this Lease shall expire at the end of the initial term.
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the new Market Rent Value shall not be less than the rent payable for the month immediately preceding the rent adjustment.
 
 
Dated this 18 day of December, 2013.

 
LESSOR: LESSEE:
HILLSIDE ASSOCIATES II, LLC AEROVIRONMENT, INC.
A California Limited Liability Company A Delaware Corporation
  
By MID VALLEY PROPERTIES,
Managing Agent
  
  
BY: /s/ Margaret M. Kestly BY: /s/ Cathleen S. Cline

Margaret M. Kestly, Authorized Agent CATHLEEN S. CLINE
VP, ADMIN

 



Exhibit 31.1
 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

 
I, Timothy E. Conver, certify that:
 

1.              I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of AeroVironment, Inc.;
 
2.              Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.              Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.              The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 
a)             Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b)             Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
c)              Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
d)             Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.              The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

a)             All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
b)             Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 

Date: March 4, 2014
   

/s/ Timothy E. Conver
Timothy E. Conver
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

 



Exhibit 31.2
 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

 
I, Jikun Kim, certify that:
 

1.              I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of AeroVironment, Inc.;
 
2.              Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the

statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
 
3.              Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the

financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.              The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 
a)             Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b)             Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
c)              Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 
d)             Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.              The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the

registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 

a)             All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

 
b)             Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.
 

Date: March 4, 2014
   

/s/ Jikun Kim
Jikun Kim
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

 



Exhibit 32
 

Certification
 

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 

(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)
 

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code) (the
“Act”), each of the undersigned officers of AeroVironment, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to each such officer’s
knowledge, that:

 
The Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 25, 2014 (the “Periodic Report”) of the Company fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78o(d)) and information contained in the Periodic Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

 
/s/ Timothy E. Conver
Timothy E. Conver
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President

  
/s/ Jikun Kim
Jikun Kim
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

 
Dated: March 4, 2014
 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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